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Corporate Information
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors
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Telephone: 2848-1668
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SHARE LISTING

The Company’s shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

For enquiries relating to investor relations,
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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GENERAL OVERVIEW

The Company and its subsidiaries (altogether the “Group”)
reported a consolidated profit after taxation attributable to
shareholders of the Company of approximately HK$451.99 million
(2007: HK$2,588.31 million) and a basic earnings per share of
HK$0.34 (2007: HK$1.96) for the year ended 31st December,
2008.

The decline in results for the year under review was principally
related to a gain on fair value changes of investment properties of
the Group credited in the financial statements of the Group for
the year 2007 pursuant to the applicable accounting standards.
As stated in the annual report of the Company for the year
ended 31st December, 2007, two out of four blocks of residential
towers of a prime residential development project of the Group
in the Mainland China, Tomson Riviera, were classified for
investment purpose. A significant net gain on fair value change of
approximately HK$3,252.54 million was recorded in 2007 as the
said two blocks of investment properties were measured at their
fair value in the financial statements of the Group for the year
2007 instead of being stated at book cost when being classified
as properties under development in previous financial statements
according to the applicable accounting standards. The said gain
on fair value change arisen from the change of classification could

only be recognized once.

If the changes in fair value of investment properties were disregarded,
the Group’s profit before taxation for the year ended 31st December,
2008 would amount to approximately HK$1,087.83 million (2007:
HK$388.57 million). The improvement in the profit before taxation
for the year under review was mainly attributable to recognition of
a huge amount of sale proceeds from property development projects
in Shanghai in 2008 and the total gross proceeds from operations
of the Group for the year under review increased substantially to
approximately HK$2,386.93 million (2007: HK$785.27 million).

On the other hand, a net loss in securities investments held for
trading of approximately HK$32.60 million and an impairment
loss on long-term securities investments of approximately

HK$32.22 million were recorded during the year under review as
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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a result of a decline in global stock markets in 2008. Nevertheless,
investment in long-term equity securities of the Group made a
contribution of approximately HK$36.60 million to the results
of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2008 by way of

dividend receipt.

In addition, the Group shared a net profit of its associates and
jointly controlled entities of approximately HK$9.46 million for
the year 2008.

DIVIDEND

For the year ended 31st December, 2008, the Board of Directors
of the Company (the “Board”) recommends a payment of a final
dividend of 5.5 HK cents per share (2007: 5.5 HK cents per share)
to shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on Friday, 5th June, 2009 (the “Record Date”). The
shareholders will be given an option to elect to receive shares of the

Company credited as fully paid in lieu of cash in respect of part or

all of the final dividend (the “Scrip Dividend Scheme”).

The Scrip Dividend Scheme will be subject to (i) the approval
of the proposed final dividend at the annual general meeting of
the Company to be held on Friday, 5th June, 2009; and (ii) The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
granting listing of and permission to deal in the new shares to be
allotted thereunder. For the purpose of determining the number
of new shares to be allotted, the market value of new share will
be calculated as the average of the closing prices per share of the
Company traded on the Stock Exchange for the five consecutive
trading days up to and including the Record Date. A circular
giving full details of the Scrip Dividend Scheme together with a
form of election will be sent to the shareholders of the Company
in due course. Dividend warrants and/or share certificates for
the scrip dividend are expected to be despatched on or about
Wednesday, 15th July, 2009.

OPERATIONS REVIEW

Operation base of the Group remains in the Mainland China and
property development and investment in Shanghai was the major

source of profit for the year under review.
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During the year 2008, property development and trading was
not only the principal revenue generator but also the prime profit
maker of the Group and recorded a contribution of approximately
HK$1,074.26 million. Property investment was the second profit
contributor to the Group and delivered a profit of approximately
HK$57.64 million to the Group’s annual results. Though leisure
activities reported an operating loss of approximately HK$2.04
million, the Group shared a profit of approximately HK$11.05
million from its hotel operation for 2008. In addition, industrial
operations made a contribution of approximately HK$6.84 million
to the Group’s annual results for 2008. On the other hand,
suffering from the downturn of the stock market in Hong Kong in
2008, securities trading activities of the Group have dropped and
recorded an operating loss of approximately HK$32.74 million,
nevertheless, the Group received dividends from its long-term
equity investments of approximately HK$36.60 million during the

year under review.

Tomson Riviera Garden
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Property Development and Investment

Property development and investment is no doubt the core business
of the Group and generated total revenue of approximately
HK$2,172.77 million for the year ended 31st December, 2008.
Property development accounted for approximately 88% of the
gross proceeds from operations of the Group while property
investment accounted for approximately 3%. Sale of Tomson

Riviera Garden was the principal revenue generator.

Tomson Riviera Garden

Tomson Riviera Garden is the latest residential project of the
Group on a site adjacent to Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club
in Huamu District of Pudong, Shanghai and is being developed by
two phases. The Group holds a 70% interest in the project. Phase
1 comprises 172 residential units and of its total residential gross
floor area for sale in value of around 52,900 square meters, over
90% were sold. Upon completion of construction in 2008, sale
proceeds from Phase 1 were recognized in the annual results of the
Group for the year under review and accounted for approximately
84%, being the major source, of the gross proceeds from operations

of the Group for the year.

Phase 2 of the residential project will provide around 120 units
of single houses or townhouses of a total residential gross floor
area for sale in value of approximately 38,300 square meters.
Construction of the townhouses commenced in August 2008 and it
is scheduled to start construction of the single houses in the end of
April 2009. The whole Phase 2 is targeted for completion around
2010 and the townhouses will be launched for pre-sale in April
2009.

Tomson Riviera

Tomson Riviera, a valuable residential development of the Group
along the riverfront of Pudong and overlooking the Bund,
comprises four residential towers of a total residential gross floor
area of approximately 117,400 square meters. Of the four residential
towers, two are earmarked for sale and another two are retained for

investment purpose.
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Tomson Riviera ¥ i —

For the year ended 31st December, 2008, revenue from sale and
leasing of the project accounted for nearly 4% of the total gross
proceeds from operations of the Group and the leasing rate is
improving. The management will endeavour to promote Tomson

Riviera for both sale and leasing purposes.

Tomson Golf Villas and Garden

Tomson Golf Villas and Garden are the first two residential
projects of the Group developed around the periphery of Tomson
Shanghai Pudong Golf Club. There are altogether seven phases
of Tomson Golf Villas in addition to a development of apartment
houses, namely Tomson Golf Garden. Only a few units of these

projects are now available for sale.
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Xingguo Garden

Apart from holding less than 10 car parks for sale, all the
residential gross floor area of Xingguo Garden, the sole residential

development of the Group in Puxi, has already been sold out.

Commercial and Industrial Buildings

Rental income and management fee from the Group’s commercial
and industrial property portfolio in Pudong, comprising Tomson
Commercial Building, Tomson International Trade Building,
Tomson Waigaogiao Industrial Park and the commercial podium
of Tomson Business Centre, provided a steady recurrent revenue
to the Group and accounted for approximately 3% of the gross

proceeds from operations of the Group for the year under review.

Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club
2 I 768 0y BRI
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Hospitality and Leisure Industry
Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club

Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club generated revenue of
approximately HK$79.55 million, being about 3% of the gross
proceeds from operations of the Group, for the year under review.
It was a sharp decline in revenue as compared with the last
corresponding period in 2007 and reported an operating loss of
approximately HK$2.04 million for the year 2008. Performance
of both golfing activities and sale of membership debentures have
shown a regression under the impact of the adverse global economic

environment.

Having BMW Asian Open run in the Golf Club for consecutive
five years since 2004, the Golf Club will not participate in such
international tournament in 2009 and 2010 for renovation. The
renovation project started in June 2008 and will be carried out by

phases so as to strengthen the competitiveness of the Golf Club.

Hotel Inter-Continental Pudong Shanghai
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Hotel Inter-Continental Pudong Shanghai

For the year ended 31st December, 2008, the Group shared a profit
of approximately HK$11.05 million from Hotel Inter-Continental
Pudong Shanghai in which it holds a 50% interest. The hotel
operation achieved an average occupancy rate of 58% in 2008. The
operation results was affected by the restriction of foreign visitors
to the Mainland China during the organization of Olympic Games
and the global financial crisis in the second half of 2008. The hotel

is now under renovation to upgrade its quality.

Industrial Operations

To complement its principal investment in property sector, the
Group holds a 58% interest in an operation of manufacturing PVC
pipes and fittings in Shanghai. Though a reduction in gross profit
margin, the operation accounted for approximately 3% of the gross
proceeds from operations of the Group and reported a profit of
approximately HK$6.84 million for the year ended 31st December,
2008 after taking account of a write back of an allowance for bad

and doubtful debts and an increase in turnover.

The Group has entered into an agreement to dispose of its entire
interest in an operation of manufacturing ready-mixed concrete in
Shanghai in 2008 and completion is expected in the first half of
2009.

Securities Trading

The Group has invested in various listed securities in Hong
Kong to diversify its business portfolio and maximize its return
to cash balance. Securities trading of the Group accounted for
approximately 3% of the gross proceeds from operations of
the Group for the year under review. A net loss in securities
investments held for trading of approximately HK$32.60 million
was however recorded after taking into account an unrealized loss
on changes in fair value of those investments owing to a downturn

in the global securities market in 2008.
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Investment Holding

In addition to its own property development projects, the Group
holds a 9.8% interest in the issued capital of Rivera (Holdings)
Limited (“RHL”), a listed company in Hong Kong, and a 13.5%
interest in the registered capital of an associated company of RHL
established in the Mainland China. Both companies are principally
engaged in property development and investment in Zhangjiang
Hi-Tech Park, Pudong, Shanghai. Dividends of approximately
HK$36.60 million were received in 2008, however, an impairment
loss on long-term securities investments of approximately
HK$32.22 million was recorded during the year under review as a

result of a decline in the stock markets in 2008.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Liquidity and Financing

The Group’s capital expenditure and investments for the year ended
31st December, 2008 were funded by cash on hand and income

from investing activities.

At the balance sheet date, the cash and cash equivalents of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$1,513.25 million. During
the year under review, the Group achieved a net cash inflow of
approximately HK$105.98 million from its investing activities.
After taking into account a net cash outflow of approximately
HK$241.38 million and HK$77.24 million used in its operating
and financing activities respectively, the Group recorded a net cash
outflow of approximately HK$212.64 million for the year under
review (2007: net cash inflow of HK$576.50 million). The net
cash outflow was mainly attributable to a payment in respect of

properties under development in Shanghai during the year.

The Group’s borrowings as at 31st December, 2008 amounted to
approximately HK$385.62 million (2007: HK$373.73 million),
equivalent to 4.91% (2007: 5.31%) of the equity attributable to
the shareholders of the Company at the same date. All of the
borrowings were bank loans under security and 47% of those
borrowings were subject to a fixed interest rate while the rest was
on a floating rate basis. Of those borrowings, 50% were due for
repayment within one year from the balance sheet date, 3% were
repayable more than one year but not exceeding two years from the
balance sheet date while the rest was due for repayment more than

two years but within five years from the balance sheet date.

B P B

BRAS 4L A B 2 ) 28 R I H A > A AL [ IR
Fe g NS AT BR 2 m) ()1 ) > — K&
EHAR) 2 O BT AT 9.8% R tE o DL K
B A )T AE o B0 K ST 2 — RIS A F 2
M EA A 13.50% MR - FMANFZ FE
SN Bt B R VL S R R A
U RAE TS o AREEIN B F I AFIL
BB L %9 36,600,000 % T > HE Y FFN
AR W o WORS (e B AR B A BRATR W 5
& 2 WA R4 32,220,000 # T ©

$oh 5 Il
L B 4 P i

AREEKBE - FTZNE+_HA=+—HIt
EEZERME AR ENFES EERAF
SR 4 RAETE U o

REERH > AEEZ B & RE S EEE
#1 £51,513,250,000 ¥ 76 7 [0 B AF 2 A
AEBBEGEH TG ZHEMATELY
£5105,980,000 %5 TG o £ 5F K& H 48 5 5
T BB T B T B T 2 B4 U A A
241,380,000 # JC & #177,240,000 ¥ JC 1% -
A% AR [ ] AR RE R AR B TR R A
212,640,000 ¥ 70 ( ~FZFLAF « BLE R A F
#i%9576,500,000 % 70) o B FEETTE
Bl AR Rk i 2 B R R ) 2 2
o

RoEENEF+A=Z+—H  RERZ
18 3 49 145 385,620,000 %5 7 (— F F L 4F
373,730,000 oG ) > M FE R F H 2 A A
AR R RE A ME 25 2 4.919% (B F L AE
5.31%) ° FTA 833 £ A K3 2 SRAT B
Hor 479% o [ A 5T HaR A7 B
FIHREHE o FEZZME P > 50% HR & E H
EFF— MR > 3% NG B B RF—4F
AR A W AR N R - BT RIZER A5 5 B RT
AR B T4 R A 22 o

Annual Report 2008 4F Ji4F it




Management Discussion and Analysis

eV ) i

At the balance sheet date, the Group’s capital commitments in
relation to expenditure on properties under development, which
were contracted but not provided for, amounted to approximately
HK$145.09 million (2007: HK$868.70 million). The Group
anticipates funding those commitments from its future operating
revenue, bank borrowings and other sources of finance where

appropriate.

As at 31st December, 2008, the Group recorded a current ratio of
2.52 times (2007: 1.75 times) and a gearing ratio (total liabilities to
equity attributable to the sharcholders of the Company) of 35.47%
(2007: 47.16%). The improvement in the current ratio was mainly
resulted from an addition of properties under development as
current assets during the year under review while the gearing ratio
was improved mainly because of recognition of pre-sale proceeds
of Tomson Riviera Garden, which had been classified as current
liabilities in the financial statements of the Group for 2007, upon

its completion in 2008.

Charge on Assets

As at 31st December, 2008, assets of the Group with an aggregate
carrying value of approximately HK$887.30 million (2007:
HK$1,442.84 million) were pledged to banks to secure bank loans
of the Group.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated
in Renminbi and the liabilities are well covered by the assets,
the management therefore expects that the change in value of
Renminbi will not have any adverse effect to the Group since
Renminbi has generally been perceived as having appreciation in
value relative to Hong Kong Dollars. On the other hand, all of the
other assets and liabilities of the Group are denominated in either
Hong Kong Dollars or United States Dollars; hence, the Group

does not anticipate any material foreign exchange exposure.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31st December, 2008, the Group had a contingent liability of
US$3 million in respect of a provision of a guarantee to indemnify
the management company of Hotel Inter-Continental Pudong
Shanghai a part of the fund paid for hotel renovation and system

upgrading. The Board is of the opinion that it would be unlikely
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for the Group to suffer any material financial loss as a result of
giving the aforesaid guarantee. Details of the contingent liabilities
are shown in Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements of

the Group for the year under review on page 133.

PROSPECTS

Global economic environment is unavoidably affected by financial
market meltdown in the second half of 2008 but the Board has
confidence in the sustainable economic growth in the Mainland
China. The Group will continue to devote resources in the property
development and investment sector in Shanghai. Tomson Riviera
Garden and Tomson Riviera will be two key sources of cash inflow
of the Group in 2009, however, pre-sale proceeds from Phase 2
of Tomson Riviera Garden will not make any contribution to the
results of the Group for the year 2009 as it may only be recognized
in 2011 after completion according to the applicable accounting
standards. On the other hand, the management will actively
explore other profitable investment opportunities to diversify the
business portfolio and to strengthen the financial position of the

Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31st December, 2008, the Group engaged around 900
employees in total in its various offices in Hong Kong, Shanghai
and Taiwan excluding those associates and jointly controlled
entities. The total emoluments paid to staff and directors of the
Group during the year under review amounted to approximately
HK$58.89 million. Remuneration and benefit packages are
generally structured with reference to market terms together
with individual responsibilities, performance and qualifications.
Discretionary bonus may be paid basing on individual contribution.
In addition, the Company has established a share option scheme
pursuant to which directors and employees of the Group are eligible
for being granted options to subscribe for shares in the capital of

the Company.

Taking this opportunity, the Board would like to express its
profound gratitude to the management and all the staff members
of the Group for their devotion and loyalty to the Group over the

years.

On behalf of the Board
Hsu Feng
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 7th April, 2009

MR EUT TR KM iE - SR B EZ
% #2133 B A HE [ (8] AT B 2 S B
Rk R M 532 -

Jé

BRI BRIF I ZT) T AT REZ
BT R EEFRARELC
o R R AT RS R A AL R o AR
B EBUCE TR b3 2 W) SE B R S B S
B o By i B A B R B — i 2 AN SR B R
TERNAE WA T BB ERARE - MY
B W e AE [ o — I 2 TR IR A AN B AR SR
B —FR SRR AAE TR > B 5
MR 2 Eat R > A B i i AR TE H
AR —F—— A IREEANR o 55— 5 >
7 L A A MR ) 0 At A R ] 2 B
o DU H 2 B AL 2 el ORI AR
5 B BB IR DL -

A&

W oEZEANEFT A=+ —H > AEER
Fis -~ LKA 2 gL E &
9004 B L(ANEIEH&E AR KEEMAEZ
BT o AFBAFERERN > AEBEZMFTFEL
o H# 2 4 AE R 40 2 58,890,000 H5 T o AR
£ 8 2 P 4 B AR R B — 2 2 T R DA
KA N B Z BT - RBUCERE#E E >
AR AN B 2 B Rk v] REE I BE B 4L - b
Hh s AR E RS TE I R RE L 5 S
A 2 R AR B A G T AN R
THERCRE > DARBEEA A RIEA B 2 By -

T S SR A LUK 1) A AR I B e A2 B
TR 2HERAREHE TR R E L
i o

EEHER
T He A F AR
o

i > “EAFIJUFENAEH

Annual Report 2008 4F Ji4F it




Management Discussion and Analysis

BB ik i Be o A

Major Investments in Shanghai

Rz R EREEH

Oriental Pear] Tower 1

ST W A% AR

Century Park
AL

Airport
27

Airport
2

Tomson Group Limited 5 FifE A A v



Management Discussion and Analysis

B LIk i Be o B

e o 0 © o0 o o6 o o

Tomson Riviera

i b

Tomson Riviera Garden

B 1 0 B A B

Tomson Golf Villas and Garden
B B o 1K 0 2 B A B

Xingguo Garden
BRI

Tomson Business Centre

T B 0K

Tomson Commercial Building

C1EE A PN

Tomson International Trade Building

&5 b 1 B B 5 K

Tomson Waigaoqiao Industrial Park

B AR B AE T2E  I

Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club
U B W R R

Hotel Inter-Continental Pudong Shanghai

¥ G B O B K

Annual Report 2008 4F Ji4F it




Corporate Governance Report
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The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
committed to maintaining good corporate governance standard and
procedures which emphasize a quality management, transparency

and accountability to all shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles and complied with all
the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year
ended 31st December, 2008, except that:

(a) Madam Hsu Feng takes up both the posts of Chairman of the
Board and Managing Director of the Company. While this
is a deviation from the Code, dual role leadership provides
the Company and its subsidiaries (altogether the “Group”)
with a strong and consistent leadership and allows for more
effective operation of the business. The Board is of the view
that there is an adequate balance of power. The Company’s
daily business management is shared amongst Madam Hsu
and other members of the executive committee of the Board.
Besides, all major decisions are made in consultation with
members of the Board and appropriate committees of the
Board;

(b) none of the existing independent non-executive Directors
of the Company are appointed for a specific term and the
Articles of Association of the Company do not prescribe to
have the Directors of the Company retired by rotation at least
once every three years as required in the Code. However,
one-third (or the number nearest thereto) of all the Directors
of the Company (including the independent non-executive
Directors) for the time being shall retire by rotation at the
Company’s each annual general meeting and shall be eligible
for re-election in accordance with the Articles of Association

of the Company; and
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(¢) the Chairman of the Board had occupied herself with
other commitments of the Group and was not available
to attend the annual general meeting of the Company for
2008 pursuant to the Code, however, Mr Tong Albert,
Vice-Chairman of the Board and executive Director of the
Company, was present at the meeting to answer questions on

the business of the Group.

THE BOARD

The Board is currently composed of seven members, including four
executive Directors, Madam Hsu Feng (Chairman and Managing
Director), Mr Tong Albert (Vice-Chairman), Mr Tong Chi Kar
Charles and Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen, and three independent non-
executive Directors, Madam Tung Wai Yee, Mr Cheung Siu Ping,
Oscar and Mr Lee Chan Fai.

Biographical details of the Directors and relevant relationships
among them together with their respective roles in the Board
and its committees are set out in the Profile of the Directors and

Officers on pages 27 to 29.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company
represent nearly a half of the Board and one of them has the
appropriate professional accounting qualifications as required by
the Listing Rules. The Company has received an annual written
confirmation from each of the independent non-executive Directors
of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers all of the independent non-executive Directors to be

independent.

The Board commits itself to acting in the best interests of the
Group and the shareholders. The principal functions of the Board
are to formulate strategy, to consider and approve the Group’s
major corporate matters, to monitor and control significant
operational and financial matters of the Group. The independent
non-executive Directors have contributed valuable independent

views and proposals for the Board’s deliberation and decisions.
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The Board meets regularly throughout each year as and when
required. Sufficient notices are given to all Directors at least 14
days before the regular Board meetings. The Company Secretary
assists the Chairman of the Board in setting the agenda for the
regular meetings and all Directors are consulted to include any
matters in the agenda. Agenda and accompanying board papers
are given to all Directors in a timely manner before the appointed
date of the meetings. Drafts and final versions of minutes of those
regular Board meetings are circulated to the Directors for comment
and record respectively within a reasonable time after each
meeting. During the year of 2008, four regular meetings were held
by the Board and the Vice-Chairman of the Board had an annual
interchange with the independent non-executive Directors of the

Company without the other executive Directors present.

The Board has established an executive committee, an audit
committee and a remuneration committee (collectively the
“Committees”) with clear written terms of reference to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs and to assist in sharing
the Board’s responsibilities. The Board has reserved for its decision
or consideration matters covering corporate strategy, annual
and interim results, changes of members of the Board and the
Committees, major acquisitions, disposals and capital transactions,
and other significant operational and financial matters. The
Committees have to report regularly to the Board on their
decisions and recommendations. The management is responsible
for implementing the strategies and plans adopted by the Board

and the Committees.

All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major changes
that may affect the Group’s business, including relevant rules and
regulations. The Board has agreed on a procedure to enable the
Directors to seek independent professional advice whenever deemed
necessary, at the Company’s expense, to assist them to discharge

their duties.
The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to

indemnify its Directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate

activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.
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Executive Committee

An executive committee (the “Executive Committee”) was
established by the Board with specific written terms of reference
in June 2005. The Executive Committee now comprises all the
executive Directors of the Company, namely Madam Hsu Feng, Mr
Tong Albert, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles and Mr Chuang Hsiao-
Chen, and Madam Hsu Feng is the chairman of the Executive
Committee. Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles was appointed a member
of the Executive Committee with effect from 8th October, 2008.
The Executive Committee may convene meetings as it considers
necessary for reviewing and approving, inter alia, any matters
concerning the day-to-day management of the business of the
Company and any matters to be delegated to it by the Board from

time to time.

Remuneration Committee

A remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) was
established by the Board with specific written terms of reference in
June 2005. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
are available on the Company’s website. The principal duties of the
Remuneration Committee are to make recommendations to the
Board on the Company’s policy and structure for remuneration
of its Directors and senior management and to determine specific
remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior
management of the Company while the remuneration of any
member of the Remuneration Committee shall be determined by
the Board. Madam Tung Wai Yee, Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar and
Mr Lee Chan Fai, being all independent non-executive Directors
of the Company, and Mr Tong Albert, an executive Director of
the Company, are members of the Remuneration Committee while
Madam Tung Wai Yee acts as the chairman of the Remuneration

Committee.

Four Remuneration Committee’s meetings were held during 2008
for considering remuneration packages for executive Directors
of the Company and annual review of the remuneration policy
and packages for all the Directors and senior management of the
Company. Details of the emoluments paid to the Directors of the
Company for the year ended 31st December, 2008 are set out in
Note 11 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 96 and

97.
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Audit Committee

An audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) has already been
set up by the Board with written terms of reference. The Audit
Committee is composed of all the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company, namely Mr Cheung Siu Ping,
Oscar, Madam Tung Wai Yee and Mr Lee Chan Fai. The Audit
Committee is chaired by Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar who possesses
appropriate professional accounting qualifications as required

under the Listing Rules.

Under its terms of reference, which have already been modified to
align with the recent amendments to the Code Provision C.3.3 of
the Code, the Audit Committee is required to monitor integrity
of the financial statements of the Company, to review significant
financial reporting judgements, and to oversee internal control and
risk management frameworks of the Group, and the relationship
with the Company’s auditor. The terms of reference of the Audit

Committee are available on the Company’s website.

During the year 2008, the Audit Committee held four meetings
for reviewing the interim and annual results as well as the financial
reporting matters of the Group, assessing internal control and risk
management system of the Group, and considering the engagement

of auditor of the Company (the “Auditor”).
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Attendance Records at Meetings

The attendance of the individual Directors at the regular meetings
of the Board and the meetings of the Remuneration Committee
and Audit Committee held during the year ended 31st December,

2008 is set out below:

£ R e ok

A EERERE _FENFE _H=1T—H
IRAEBE R B AT 2 IR R E Bk o DAL SR
ZEGMELZT B G ERZ W RIEH W
B

Number of meetings attended / held

ol Bz adiuH
Remuneration Audit
Board Committee Committee

#H HMZERE HERAA

=]

Executive Directors o

Madam Hsu Feng % ot 414 N/AAE N/AARH
(Chairman of the Board and Managing Director) (HH G F I HHAAEA)

Mr Tong Albert %R e 4/4 214 N/ARE
(Vice-Chairman of the Board) (EFGHEN)

Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles BTk 1/1 N/AR#E H N/AR#
(appointed on 8th October, 2008) (P EENGEAHHIEF(E)

Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen HEIRE S 4/4 N/ARH N/AANE

Independent Non-Executive Directors B e PuAT g

Madam Tung Wai Yee HERLT 414 4/4 414
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) (B2 5 & L)

Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar I E 414 414 414
(Chairman of the Audit Committee) (HFBRZEREGLH)

Mr Lee Chan Fai RS 414 4/4 414

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

According to the Articles of Association of the Company, new
Directors could be elected by the Company or appointed by the
Board. Any Director so appointed by the Board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting of the

Company and the retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.
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The Company did not establish a nomination commirttee
pursuant to recommended best practices of the Code and the
Board is responsible for reviewing its own structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience
of its members), and identifying, selecting and considering any
appointment of its own members and considering nomination of
those retiring members for re-election by the shareholders in the
general meetings. The Board is also responsible for assessing the

independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

Every newly appointed Director will be given a comprehensive
orientation package, including the latest information of the Group,
induction into his responsibilities and duties and other related

regulatory requirements.

During the year under review, a board meeting was held, with
an attendance of a majority of the Directors, namely Mr Chuang
Hsiao-Chen, Madam Tung Wai Yee, Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar
and Mr Lee Chan Fai, in the absence of Madam Hsu Feng and Mr
Tong Albert, to consider and approve the appointment of Mr Tong
Chi Kar Charles as an executive Director and a member of the

Executive Committee.

CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted its own code of practice regarding
securities transactions by the Directors and relevant employees
(the “Code of Practice”) on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). In compliance with the recent
amendments to the requirements of the Model Code, the Code of

Practice was amended accordingly.

Having made specific enquiry of all Directors of the Company,
each of whom has confirmed compliance with the required
standard set out in the Model Code and the Code of Practice

throughout the year.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for ensuring that a proper and effective
system of internal control is maintained within the Group in order
to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets.
The Company has adopted a code on internal control applicable
to the Group in terms of financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions since 2005. The code on
internal control is reviewed and modified regularly pursuant to

operational requirements of the Group.

The Audit Committee has been authorized by the Board to review
the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Group
regularly and a meeting was held in 2008 for that purpose. The
Board, through the review of the Audit Committee, is satisfied that
the Group has complied with all the applicable provisions of the
Group’s code on internal control throughout the year ended 31st
December, 2008 and considers that the Group’s internal control

system was CffCCtiVC and adequate.

Subsequent to the recent amendments to the Listing Rules, the
Board had considered the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting function, and their training programmes and budgets
at a regular meeting held in January 2009 and concluded that
the staffing of the accounting and financial reporting functions
of the Group was adequate and their training arrangements were

sufficient.

Directors’ and Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Financial Statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for each financial period. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31st December, 2008, the
Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied
them consistently; have made judgements and estimates that were
prudent and reasonable; and have prepared the financial statements

on a going concern basis.
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The responsibilities of the Auditor to the shareholders are to form
an independent opinion, based on the audit, on those financial
statements and their opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2008 is

set out in the report of the independent Auditor on pages 48 and
49.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided to the
Group by the Auditor for the year ended 31st December, 2008
amounted to approximately HK$2,738,000 and HK$31,300
respectively. The non-audit services provided during the year were

taxation services.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board maintains a continuing dialogue with the Company’s
shareholders through various channels including the Company’s
annual general meetings. The Vice-Chairman of the Board
together with a member of the Audit Committee and chairman of
the Remuneration Committee attended the 2008 annual general
meeting of the Company to answer questions regarding the

performance of the Group.

In order to further enhance communication with the shareholders
of the Company and enable the Company’s shareholders to have a
timely and updated information of the Group, the Company has
set up its own website at http://www.tomson.com.hk where the
corporate information, interim and annual reports, announcements,
circulars, business development and other information of the

Company are posted.
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CORPORATE CITIZENSHIP

The Group pledges itself to contribution to the well-being of
the societies. During the year under review, the Group has made
several charitable donations for, inter alia, earthquake relief,

communal welfare, education purpose and children sponsorship.

The Group has donated RMB5 million to victims of the
carthquake at Sichuan Province in the Mainland China to help
them overcome the disaster and rebuild their homes. A Special
Award for Earthquake Relief was presented to the Group by
Shanghai Municipal Civil Affairs Bureau.

The Company has re-enrolled the “Heart to Heart Project”
organized by The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups in 2008,
to sponsor service projects proposed by volunteer groups of those
schools enrolled under the project so as to engage youth volunteers

to serve the community for contribution to social development.

Apart from the above, the Group has arranged for a donation of
a total amount of HK$2.5 million to The Chinese University of
Hong Kong to establish non-local scholarships, namely “Tomson
Group Scholarships”, for students from the Mainland China since
2005.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Madam Hsu Feng, aged 58, has been a Director of the Company
and its subsidiaries since January 1990. She was appointed as
Managing Director of the Company in December 2001 and the
chairman of the executive committee of the Board of Directors of
the Company (the “Board”) in June 2005. She was also elected
as Chairman of the Board in December 2006. She has over 10
years’ experience in film production, and in property development
and investment as well as retail industry in Taiwan. She has been
engaged in the property development and leisure activities in the
Mainland China in recent years.

Madam Hsu is the mother of Mr Tong Albert, who is Vice-
Chairman of the Board and executive Director of the Company,
and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, who is executive Director of the
Company. Both of Madam Hsu and Mr Tong Albert are directors
of King China Holdings Limited (“King China”) and executive
directors of a listed company in Hong Kong, Rivera (Holdings)
Limited (“RHL”), both of which are substantial shareholders of the
Company. She is also the owner of King China and a substantial
shareholder of RHL.

Besides, pursuant to the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO”), Madam Hsu together with Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong
Chi Kar Charles are considered to be parties acting in concert
and are therefore interested and taken to be interested in a total of
638,415,960 shares in the capital of the Company (including share
options).

Mr Tong Albert, aged 26, has been appointed a Director of the
Company since December 2001 and a member of the executive
committee and remuneration committee of the Board since
June 2005. He was also elected as Vice-Chairman of the Board
in December 2006. He has joined the Group and taken up
directorships of the subsidiaries of the Company since March 2001.
He has participated in the Group’s business development, corporate
management, property trading and securities investment for years.

He is a son of Madam Hsu Feng, Chairman of the Board and
Managing Director of the Company, and the younger brother of
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, executive Director of the Company.
Both of Mr Tong Albert and Madam Hsu are directors of King
China and executive directors of RHL. He is also deemed to be a
substantial shareholder of RHL.

Besides, pursuant to the SFO, Mr Tong together with Madam Hsu
Feng and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles are interested and taken to
be interested in a total of 638,415,960 shares in the capital of the
Company (including share options).
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Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, aged 28, has been appointed an
executive Director of the Company and a member of the executive
committee of the Board since October 2008. He has joined the
Group since December 2000 and has participated in property
trading and business management of the Shanghai office of the
Group. He is the Executive Associate General Manager of the
Shanghai office of the Group and acts as a director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Company.

He is a son of Madam Hsu Feng, Chairman of the Board and
Managing Director of the Company, and the elder brother of Mr
Tong Albert, Vice-Chairman of the Board and executive Director
of the Company. He is deemed to be a substantial shareholder of
RHL.

Besides, pursuant to the SFO, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles together
with Madam Hsu and Mr Tong Albert are interested and taken to
be interested in a total of 638,415,960 shares in the capital of the
Company (including share options).

Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen, aged 61, has joined the Group since
May 1993 and has been appointed a Director of the Company
since April 1998 and a member of the executive committee of the
Board since June 2005. He now acts as a director of a number
of subsidiaries of the Company. He is a director and the general
manager of Tomson Golf (Shanghai) Limited, which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company and is engaged in the operation
of Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club and the development
of Tomson Golf Villas in Pudong, Shanghai. He has extensive
experience in sport and recreational activities and has been engaged
in management of the golf club and development of golf villas in
the Mainland China in recent years.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Madam Tung Wai Yee, aged 64, has been an independent non-
executive Director of the Company since February 1994. She has
acted as a member of the audit committee of the Board since April
1999 and was appointed as the chairman of the remuneration
committee of the Board in June 2005. She was an independent
non-executive director of RHL up to January 2003.
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Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar, aged 44, has been appointed an
independent non-executive Director of the Company and the
chairman of the audit committee of the Board since September
2004. He was also appointed a member of the remuneration
committee of the Board in June 2005. He is a fellow member of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is
practising as a certified public accountant in Hong Kong and is the
sole proprietor of Oscar S. P. Cheung & Co..

The annual director’s fee of Mr Cheung has been increased from
HK$93,600 to HK$99,600 with effect from 1st January, 2009,
which was approved by the Board, under the authorization of the
shareholders at the 2008 annual general meeting of the Company,
with reference to his responsibilities and prevailing market

conditions.

Mr Lee Chan Fai, aged 46, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company and a member of each of
the audit committee and remuneration committee of the Board
since December 2005. He is a member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Architects and is qualified as a Registered Architect in Hong
Kong and a First Class Registered Architect in the Mainland
China. Mr Lee has acted as a director of Marco Asia Limited and
J&P Architects Limited since 1990’ and has been appointed as a
director of JSP Architects Limited since 2008. He has extensive

experience in architectural design.

The annual director’s fee of Mr Lee has been increased from
HK$93,600 to HK$99,600 with effect from Ist January, 2009,
which was approved by the Board, under the authorization of the
shareholders at the 2008 annual general meeting of the Company,
with reference to his responsibilities and prevailing market

conditions.

OFFICERS

Ms Lee Yuen Han, aged 42, joined the Group in 1991 and was
appointed the Company Secretary of the Company in March 1998
and has acted as the Deputy General Manager of the Company
since August 2005.

Mr Kwok Sau King, aged 50, joined the Group in 1990. He was

appointed the Financial Controller of the Company in September
1999 and is the Qualified Accountant of the Company.
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The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is pleased to
present its Report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (altogether the
“Group”) for the year ended 31st December, 2008 and the report

of independent Auditor thereon.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group in the course of the year
were property development and investment, hospitality and leisure
activities, manufacturing of PVC pipes, securities trading and

investment holding.

During the year under review, the Company acted as an investment
holding company while the principal activities and other particulars
of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are listed out in Note

38 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 140 to 144.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the Group’s results and financial position for the
year ended 31st December, 2008 are set out on pages 50 to 146.
An analysis by business segments is set out in Note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements on pages 89 to 93 while no
geographical analysis is presented as the Group’s operations and

assets were principally situated in the Mainland China.

No interim dividend was paid during the year under review (2007:
Nil).

The Board recommends a payment of a final dividend of 5.5 HK
cents per share for the year ended 31st December, 2008 (2007: 5.5
HK cents per share) to sharcholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Friday, 5th June, 2009
(the “Record Date”). The shareholders will be given an option to
elect to receive shares of the Company credited as fully paid in lieu
of cash in respect of part or all of the final dividend (the “Scrip
Dividend Scheme”).
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The Scrip Dividend Scheme will be subject to (i) the approval
of the proposed final dividend at the annual general meeting of
the Company to be held on Friday, 5th June, 2009; and (ii) The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
granting listing of and permission to deal in the new shares to be
allotted thereunder. For the purpose of determining the number
of new shares to be allotted, the market value of new share will
be calculated as the average of the closing prices per share of the
Company traded on the Stock Exchange for the five consecutive
trading days up to and including the Record Date. A circular
giving full details of the Scrip Dividend Scheme together with a
form of election will be sent to the shareholders of the Company
in due course. Dividend warrants and/or share certificates for
the scrip dividend are expected to be despatched on or about
Wednesday, 15th July, 2009.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 3rd June, 2009 to Friday, 5th June, 2009, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares of the

Company will be effected.

In order to qualify for the 2008 final dividend, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Secretaries Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:00 p.m. on
Tuesday, 2nd June, 2009 for registration.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Of the gross proceeds from operations of the Group for the
year, less than 30% was contributed by the Group’s five largest

customers.

During the year, the Group’s five largest suppliers attributable
to 60.63% of the Group’s purchases with the largest supplier
accounting for 25.54% of the Group’s purchases. None of the
Directors of the Company, their associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5%
interest in the Company’s issued share capital) have any interest in

the Group’s five largest suppliers.
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DONATIONS

During the year ended 31st December, 2008, the Group donated
approximately HK$9,185,000 for charitable and other causes.

FIXED ASSETS

During the year ended 31st December, 2008, the Group added
fixed assets amounting to approximately HK$15,319,000 (2007:
HK$22,106,000) while disposed of and wrote off assets with an
aggregate net book value of approximately HK$7,167,000 (2007:
HK$231,000).

Movements in fixed assets of the Group during the year are shown
in Notes 16 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements on
pages 103 to 105.

A schedule of the principal properties held by the Group, either
under development or for sale or investment purposes, is set out on

pages 148 to 153.

BORROWINGS AND DEBENTURES

Details of bank loans of the Group as at 31st December, 2008 are
set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements on page
131.

No debentures of any class were issued by the Company or any of

its subsidiaries, or were in issue, at any time during the year.

Interest expenses of approximately HK$4,699,000 (2007:
HK$13,512,000) attributable to properties under development were
capitalised by the Group during the year.
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RESERVES

The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31st December,
2008 amounted to approximately HK$258,664,000 (2007:
HK$162,646,000).

The Board recommends that the retained earnings of the
Group as at 3lst December, 2008 amounting to approximately
HK$3,850,755,000 are to be carried forward. Other movements in
reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are shown
in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 127
to 130.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION
OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the year under review, the Company repurchased a total
of 6,150,000 shares of HK$0.50 each in its issued capital on the
Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration before expenses of

approximately HK$9.07 million as follows:

i i
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Number of shares Highest price Lowest price Aggregate

Month of repurchase in 2008 repurchased per share per share price paid
REZFNERIEZA G Sk IRt 2 i H A3 e dge 17 BB CAMRURAE
(HKS$) (HK$) (HK$°000)

(#r) (#r) (T#7)

January —H 758,000 2.95 2.45 2,035
July £ H 414,000 1.95 1.93 806
October 1 4,978,000 1.30 1.19 6,232
Total £ ¥% 6,150,000 9,073

The repurchases of the Company’s shares were made pursuant to
general mandates granted to the Board by the shareholders of the
Company at the 2007 and 2008 annual general meetings of the
Company to repurchase shares of HK$0.50 each in the capital of
the Company (the “Share(s)”) and all of the aforesaid repurchased

Shares have been duly cancelled.
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The repurchases were made as the Shares were trading at a
substantial discount to their underlying net asset value, so it would
enhance the Company’s net asset value per Share and earnings per
Share for the benefit of the Company and the shareholders as a

whole.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries have purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s

listed securities during the year.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review, other than the aforesaid repurchases
and cancellation of 6,150,000 Shares, the Company allotted and
issued an aggregate of 12,240,000 new Shares upon exercises of
share options by a Director and employees of the Company under

the share option scheme of the Company.
As at 31st December, 2008, 1,323,509,940 Shares were in issue.

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in Note 27

to the consolidated financial statements on pages 120 and 121.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and the

Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and financial position of the Group for

the preceding five financial years is set out on page 155.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company as at the date of this Report and

those who were in office during the year are:
Name of Directors
Executive Directors

Madam Hsu Feng (Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr Tong Albert (Vice-Chairman)
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles
(appointed on 8th October, 2008)
Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Madam Tung Wai Yee

Mr Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar
Mr Lee Chan Fai

W

A B2 H KA AAE B NAEAE 2 A

NGE T TV
WPk H
AT HE G

B MLt (e E H AR
B TR e A (a3 1)
Uik

(P =FF/AFEF H N HEZ(E)
HERESEAE

W I AT
L L

iRk
ST

AN TS 2 RN B 27 BH29H -

A profile of the Directors of the Company is shown on pages 27 to
29.

ARRFEERANNTAAFRERZMEZ
EORHHUT 55 96 ] 5 97 H A% & W B R I E

financial statements on pages 96 and 97. 11

Information relating to emoluments paid to the Company’s

Directors during the year is set out in Note 11 to the consolidated

Pursuant to Article 99 of the Articles of Association of the YL AN B 20N B AL 4% 25 AL AN A D) 99 1
MU KE » B E T3 e m —FF 4
TAEERR R HIAITES  WATHH
TEME AT 8 i 2 A A RO AF K& b e
T WIS 2 W) R e R 4R R g BB
o e B I A i AT o

Company, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, being an executive Director
appointed by the Board in October 2008, shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company
after his appointment and will therefore retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. Being eligible, he offers

himself for re-election.
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All Directors of the Company, including the non-executive
Directors, are subject to retirement by rotation at annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company. Article 116 of the Articles of
Association of the Company provides that at each annual general
meeting, one-third (or the number nearest to one-third) of the
Directors of the Company for the time being, who have been
longest in office since their last election, shall retire from office
and shall be eligible for re-election. In this connection, Mr Chuang
Hsiao-Chen and Mr Lee Chan Fai will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. Being

eligible, they offer themselves for re-election.

The re-election of the retiring Directors of the Company is
subject to the sharcholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company and details of those Directors
will be disclosed in a circular of the Company to be despatched
to the shareholders together with the notice of the annual general

meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors of the Company who are proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting have
an unexpired service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than

statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31st December, 2008, the interests and short positions of the
Directors of the Company in shares, debentures and underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”)), which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein (including
interests and short positions which they were taken to have under
Section 344 of the SFO) or which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the

“Listing Rules”), were as follows:
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(I) The Company:

Shares of HK$0.50 each

) AAH:

45 JBe i ff 0.50 ¥ T 2 B Ay

Number of Shares

By B H

Personal Family Corporate Other

Interests Interests Interests Interests

Name of Directors WLk # i N 2 KB HERR AL £ HAbHE2E
Madam Hsu Feng B Mt 96,888,750 Nil # 136,340,945 (A)& (B) 235,040,000 (C)
71,182,000 (D)
97,664,265 (E)
1,300,000 (F)
Mr Tong Albert % IR e 33,682,000 Nil Nil # (B) 589,733,960 (G)
15,000,000 (H)
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles ¥ T3 56E 9,500,000 Nil Nil # (B) 615,915,960 (G)
13,000,000 (1)
Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen AEIRE e Nil $ Nil 4 Nil $ 2,000,000 (/)

(IT) The Company’s associated corporations:

(1) China Boom Enterprises Limited

(D) ARA[ZHBE:E -
1) BELSEHMRAY

(“China Boom”) (TB¥#k])
Shares of US$1 each A5 WA 1 02 ey
Number of shares of China Boom
WREEZ B H

Personal Family Corporate Other

Interests Interests Interests Interests
Name of Director WALk il A B KB AL £ HAbhE 2R
Madam Hsu Feng (K) o Mt t (k) 716,800 Nil 4 563,200 Nil 4
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Tomson Entertainment Co. Limited

(2)

(“Tomson Entertainment”)

Shares of NTD10 each

(2) LiEBREB AR
(TSR )

5 B i 4EHT £ W 10 T 2 e B

Number of shares of Tomson Entertainment

Y R 2 By B H
Personal Family Corporate Other
Interests Interests Interests Interests
Name of Director WHLEA 6 A\ HE 23 % B HE 22 AL B JefbhE a2
Madam Hsu Feng (L) & Mkt () 1,350,000 Nil 4 1,125,000 Nil 4
Notes: MIFE -
(A) The 136,340,945 Shares were beneficially held by King China (A) 7% 136,340,945 B BE 4y By AR N Bl 2 F B o

(B)

Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company, in
which Madam Hsu Feng held the entire interest and hence Madam
Hsu was deemed to be interested in those Shares pursuant to the

SFO.

The following companies, being private companies incorporated in
Hong Kong and wholly-owned subsidiaries of Rivera (Holdings)
Limited (a listed company in Hong Kong) (“RHL”), beneficially
held an aggregate of 159,500,465 Shares on 31st December, 2008:

(B)

SREESE A PR A RV E SR A > AR
B A w2 AR L > WORIRCGE 7% &1
R > AR 2o L5 B 2 A B 2

i o

ATERENFEFHZ=Z+—H > FHAHE
(359 5 i T s 52 AR SL 2 AN ) > Sl oy —
FiNEW LTz A" — N EEARA
A (TN J) 1 2 G B g 2 |1) B 45 4 & 3t
159,500,465 B ety -

Number of
Shares held
Name of companies A4 Pt ey 2 B H
Forty Enterprises Company Limited [GE R 2> 7] 13,081,788
Shine Trip Limited T JE A7 R 7 146,418,677
159,500,465

Madam Hsu Feng and Mr Tong Albert were directors of RHL of
which Madam Hsu was a substantial shareholder. Mr Tong Albert
and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, sons of Madam Hsu, were considered
to be persons acting in concert with Madam Hsu pursuant to the
SFO and were deemed to be substantial shareholders of RHL.

Pt 2 L B TR Se A 2 1 Y HE o
e By VAR 2 B OR o ARG I K2
Bl > L L2 RTH TREEREGT
i TR R e — AT B RO AR
Nz EBEROR -
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(®)

(D)

(E)

(F)

(®)

(H)

Madam Hsu Feng has entered into agreements and deeds with her
sons, Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, to sell to each
of them 117,520,000 Shares, in an aggregate of 235,040,000 Shares,
subject to a security in favour of Madam Hsu for their performance
of the duties under the aforesaid agreements and therefore Madam

Hsu had a security interest in those Shares pursuant to the SFO.

Subject to the agreements and deeds as mentioned above in Note
(C), Madam Hsu Feng together with Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong
Chi Kar Charles were considered to be persons acting in concert
pursuant to the SFO. In this connection, Madam Hsu Feng was
taken to be interested in a total of 71,182,000 Shares held by
Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, amongst which,

28,000,000 Shares are issuable upon exercises of share options.

Madam Hsu Feng was deemed to be interested in 97,664,265 Shares,
which were beneficially held by E-Shares Investments Limited, in
her capacity as the executrix of the estate of the late Mr Tong Cun
Lin.

Madam Hsu Feng has been granted an option under the share
option scheme of the Company which entitles her to subscribe for
1,300,000 Shares at a subscription price of HK$3.644 per Share
during a period of 8 years ending on 12th November, 2015.

Subject to the agreements and deeds as mentioned above in Note
(C), Mr Tong Albert together with Madam Hsu Feng and Mr Tong
Chi Kar Charles were considered to be persons acting in concert

pursuant to the SFO.

In this connection, Mr Tong Albert was not only interested in the
117,520,000 Shares transferred from Madam Hsu, but taken to be
interested in a total of 472,213,960 Shares held by Madam Hsu and
Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, amongst which, 14,300,000 Shares are

issuable upon exercises of share options.

Moreover, Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles was not only interested in the
117,520,000 Shares transferred from Madam Hsu, but taken to be
interested in a total of 498,395,960 Shares held by Madam Hsu and
Mr Tong Albert, amongst which, 16,300,000 Shares are issuable

upon exercises of share options.

Mr Tong Albert has been granted options under the share
option scheme of the Company which entitle him to subscribe
for 2,000,000 Shares at a subscription price of HK$2.155 per
Share during a period of 5 years ending on 23rd July, 2011 and
13,000,000 Shares at a subscription price of HK$3.644 per Share
during a period of 8 years ending on 12th November, 2015.
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(I)  Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles has been granted an option under the
share option scheme of the Company which entitles him to subscribe
for 13,000,000 Shares at a subscription price of HK$3.644 per
Share during a period of 8 years ending on 12th November, 2015.

(J)  Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen has been granted an option under the share
option scheme of the Company which entitles him to subscribe for
2,000,000 Shares at a subscription price of HK$2.155 per Share
during a period of 5 years ending on 23rd July, 2011.

(K)  Madam Hsu Feng held a personal interest of 716,800 shares (being
56%) in the capital of China Boom while the Company held the
balance of interest of 563,200 shares (being 44%) in the capital
of China Boom through its wholly-owned subsidiary. Madam Hsu
was deemed to control the exercise of more than one-third of voting
power at general meetings of the Company, hence, she was also

taken to be interested in those shares held by the Company.

(L) Madam Hsu Feng held a personal interest of 1,350,000 shares (being
54%) in the capital of Tomson Entertainment while the Company
held an interest of 1,125,000 shares (being 45%) in the capital
of Tomson Entertainment through its wholly-owned subsidiary.
Madam Hsu was deemed to control the exercise of more than one-
third of voting power at general meetings of the Company, hence,
she was also taken to be interested in those shares held by the

Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the Company and
their associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
debentures and underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as at 31st December, 2008, which were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein (including interests or short positions
which they were taken to have under Section 344 of the SFO) or
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on
29th May, 2002. Subject to earlier termination by the Company
in general meeting or by the Board, the Scheme shall be valid and
effective till 28th May, 2012. After the expiry of such valid period,
no further options will be offered or granted but in all other
respects the provisions of the Scheme shall remain in full force and

effect.

) U FREAER T AN A RS &
T Z MR Rt AEREZE
FE—TAE+FT—H+ 0 B AEZ WM
N 4% B B B 03 3.644 W6 oG 2 wR I E FR
13,000,000 By ©
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F——%tA+=HILAMEEZY
i) A0 i B e A3 2,155 W6 TG 2 il i A R I
2,000,000 B A& o

(K)  FRbE 2 =8 AR 716,800 A & HE B4y (B
56%) Z MR > AN A A H A I
F A R T 2 563,200 % B #HE B4 (RD 449%)
2R o TR e WA £ T A AR A R IREOR
KL=z D b2 ERE Sk Ik
B %55 AR A Al R 2 IR 4

(L) FRAE L 0 A REA 1,350,000 A% 25 e 44 A
1y (B 54%) 2 fE25 > AN TSR A2 E
W I8 A R R 1,125,000 B35 B 15 4 A4y (BRI
45%) 2 ERG o TR LR T HE R AR 2 F)
R KRG L =02 — D b2 RERE > Wik
IR B A 7% 55 th A N Al R A 2 I e

5 o

Br ESCRr e &4 > =TT NFE+ A
=t—H > ARFKEERPEFENBHEANL
ABEBE 77 A > ) AT AT AR g 0 B 2 By ~
HHE SR I BB o B A R IR 2 S B
W 11 55 352 Mk 2 WL R A 5% Wk 91 i 2 1)
O A (AR AR R I W R R 1)) 5 344
AR A8 45 WA 2 B A I M i IR ) B
PRCE TR R ) 2 K7 R 7 o ) R g 52 P
R 2 SR -

Yk SR it )

AR BT AR A R
W A (T 1) o 2 0
WSO b A L SR O R A I
AT R BT % AT
SR AH IR« R A ORI 1R &
7B 40 B SR B Mo 2 e
A T T3 2 AT -

Annual Report 2008 4F Ji4F




Report of the Directors

o

Apart from the Scheme, at no time during the year nor at the end
of the year ended 31st December, 2008 was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate.
Major terms of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to
selected persons for their contribution to the Group or any entity in

which the Group holds any equity interest (the “Invested Entity”).
The participants of the Scheme include:

(i) any employee or proposed employee (whether full time or
part time) of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity, including any executive director of any member of the

Group or any Invested Entity; or

(ii) any non-executive director (including independent non-
executive director) of any member of the Group or any

Invested Entity; or

(iii) any adviser, consultant, customer and supplier of goods or
services to any member of the Group or any Invested Entity

who have contributed or will contribute to the Group; or

(iv) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member

of the Group or any Invested Entity.

As at the date of this Report, the maximum number of Shares
available for issue under options granted or to be granted under
the Scheme is 65,234,911, representing approximately 4.93% of the

Company’s existing issued share capital.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted and to be granted to each participant or
grantee (including exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the

Shares in issue at the date of grant (the “Individual Limit”). If any
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further grant of options to a participant or grantee would result
in the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted in the 12 month-period up to and
including the date of such further grant in excess of the Individual
Limit, such further grant must be subject to sharcholders’ approval
in general meeting with such participant or grantee and his or her

associates abstaining from voting.

An option may be exercised at any time during a period as the
Board may determine which shall not be more than 10 years

commencing from the date of grant of the option.

Save as determined by the Board and provided in the offer of the
relevant options, there is no minimum period for which an option

must be held before it can be exercised under the Scheme.

The acceptance of an offer of granting an option must be made
within 28 days from the date on which such offer is made with
a non-refundable payment of HK$1 from the grantee to the

Company by way of a consideration for the grant thereof.

The subscription price per Share in respect of any option granted
under the Scheme shall be such price as the Board in its absolute
discretion shall determine, save that such price will not be less than

the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of

the option, which must be a business day;

(if)  the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the 5 business
days immediately preceding the date of offer of the option;

and

(iii) the nominal value of the Shares on the date of offer.
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Movements during the year T A BE VA Nk B i 2 58 )

During the year ended 31st December, 2008, no options were wEE _EX )/ F+__H=+—HIFLFE
granted under the Scheme. The carrying rights to subscribe for N R A R RE AR % A o AR
Shares together with details of movements in the options under the W B TE T 2 R s BE R e i P e B )
Scheme are shown as follows: RIS

Number of Shares subject to the options

LR T 2 I8t
Transfer
from Transfer
Exercise other to other Cancelled/
price Balance ~ Granted  category  category  Exercised Lapsed  Balance
Date of per Exercise as at during during during during during as at
Name of grantees grant Share period 1.1.2008  theyear  theyear  theyear  the year the year 31.12.2008
7 20084 RN AR i 20084
RS LHLH  RMEER HR W OREER REER 2A3LH
RBALR BilHm Pt | by 2] ZEih Bl BN BN fife ks kR P23
(HKS)
()
Category 1: Directors
SR
Madam Hsu Feng 13.11.2007 3.644 13.11.2007 — 1,300,000 — — — — — 1,300,000
fr et 12.11.2015
Mr Tong Albert 6.10.2005 1.810 6.10.2005 — 11,000,000 — — — 11,000,000(2) — —
BT 5.10.2008
24.7.2006 2.155 24.7.2006 — 2,000,000 — — — — — 2,000,000
23.7.2011
13.11.2007 3.644 13.11.2007 — 13,000,000 — — — — — 13,000,000
12.11.2015
Mr Tong Chi Kar 13.11.2007 3.644 13.11.2007 — — — 13,000,000 — — — 13,000,000
Charles (b) 12.11.2015
BT ELE®)
Mr Chuang Hsiao-Chen 24.7.2006 2.155 24.7.2006 — 2,000,000 — — — — — 2,000,000
BEMRE L 23.7.2011
Total for Directors
HHEZ A 29,300,000 — 13,000,000 — 11,000,000 — 31,300,000
Category 2: Employees
SR R
Employees 24.7.2006 2.155 24.7.2006 — 9,300,000 — — —  1,240,000(c) — 8,060,000
(3] 23.7.2011
13.11.2007 3.644 13.11.2007 — 13,000,000 — — 13,000,000 — — —
12.11.2015
Total for Employees
fE 82 4 22,300,000 — — 13,000,000 1,240,000 — 8,060,000
Total for all categories
Jir s 500 A 51,600,000 — 13,000,000 13,000,000 12,240,000 — 39,360,000
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Notes:

(a)  The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before
the dates on which the option was exercised was HK$2.577.

(b)  Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles was appointed as an executive Director of
the Company on 8th October, 2008.

(¢)  The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before
the date on which the options were exercised was HK$2.734.

Save as disclosed above, no other options under the Scheme were
outstanding at the beginning or at the end of the year nor were
granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

Madam Hsu Feng, Chairman of the Board and Managing Director
of the Company, and Mr Tong Albert, Vice-Chairman of the Board
and executive Director of the Company, are directors of RHL.
Madam Hsu is a substantial shareholder of RHL while Mr Tong
Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles, executive Director of the
Company, are also deemed to be substantial shareholders of RHL
pursuant to the SFO.

RHL is engaged in property development and investment
exclusively in Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Pudong, Shanghai
through its subsidiaries and associated company, while property
development and investment in Shanghai, in particular Pudong, is
one of the principal business of the Group, so the business of RHL
in the property sector (the “Excluded Business”) may potentially
compete with the Group’s business.

In this connection, Madam Hsu, Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong
Chi Kar Charles are considered to have interests in a business
which may compete or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group, other than that business
where the Directors have been appointed/were appointed as
directors to represent the interests of the Company and/or the
Group, pursuant to the Listing Rules. Nevertheless, RHL is a listed
company in Hong Kong and the Excluded Business is managed
by its independent management and administration. Besides, the
Board is independent of the board of directors of RHL and the
independent non-executive Directors of the Company will assist
in monitoring the operation of the Group, the Group is therefore
capable of carrying on its business independently of, and at an
arm’s length from, the Excluded Business.

Wit -

(a)  FA BRI R AT O 2 W 2 R
YeifE £ 2.577 # T o

(b) BT EAER FT/FETANHEZRAT
RANRI ZHATHE S o

(o) FAEAER LW REEAT (0 1 2 Ry 2 b
R E B 2.734 W OC -

B b SO 3 8 5 b > TR AS AR T B B B R A
I > 5 aZ w8 R 0 0 0 R AT 6 2 B > HL
JAZAAE BE R AT AT IR (] - AR L Al A 5% 5T )
Eft - BATM - O Rks i 2 R sk 2z Wi
HE o

AT A b 2 A

/NGRS EE & ok 5 E SLECR e
Ay m) H R R E R SROCRAT 2 TR G
P R 2 FE S o AR )1 2 2
W AR SRS 75 B B A 1) 65 1 ) Se A
AN A PATE G T 5 A TR B 1 2
TR -

DV 725 2t FC A Jag > ) B T 2 ) B — 3R
VR R T R [ [ A o S M R R R
BOE o ARG B — TR R R B
(JEHAET ) 2 Y288 e R B - iz
75 M7 SE 5 ([ R AP 2675 1) BnT e S A SR 1 2
SET5 M T A BT o

Pt > RIECETRAD > TRt~ B TR
R T 3 e E BRI CE AT B R AT
R DR A LN 7 B/ BOA SR B f 2 B
B > WA 2 B B AT RE SRS I 2 B
B R L OB T 2 S P A B o AR
i JUAA 2 — RAEE W T 2 A F] > MRSk
SE5 LB S B B AT BUERE T BE o B
H o AR AR RS 2 R AR
O3 R 2 H8 ST BUAT T T o B B A A AR 2
B PRI S B R A 8 5L R BR AP S >
B2 A A f KL HAS B 365
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SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31st
December, 2008.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts for the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of any business of the Company were
entered into or subsisted during the year ended 31st December,
2008.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group has always emphasized the importance of a highly-
effective staff management and incentive structure. Remuneration
and benefit packages are generally structured by reference to
market terms, individual responsibilities and performance. The
emoluments of the executive Directors of the Company are decided
by the remuneration committee of the Board or the full Board
(as the case may be) and the fee of the Directors is fixed by the
Board under the authorization of the shareholders of the Company.
In addition, the Company has adopted a share option scheme
pursuant to which the directors and employees of the Group are
eligible for being granted options to subscribe for Shares as a long-

term incentive.

PENSION SCHEMES

The Company participates in a pension scheme, which was
registered under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (the “MPF Ordinance”), for all its employees in Hong
Kong. The scheme is a defined contribution scheme effective from
December 2000 and is funded by contributions from employer
and employees according to the provisions of the MPF Ordinance.
Should there be the employer’s voluntary contributions to the
scheme, forfeited contributions in this nature can be applied to
reduce the amount of future voluntary contributions payable by the

employer.
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On the other hand, the employees of the Group in the Mainland
China are members of respective state-managed defined
contribution retirement benefits schemes operated by the local
government. The employers and the employees are obliged to make
contributions at a certain percentage of the payroll under rules of

the schemes.

During the year under review, the total amount contributed by the
Group to the said schemes and charged to the consolidated income
statement amounted to approximately HK$3,946,000 (2007:
HK$3,315,000) and no contributions were forfeited.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS

As at 31st December, 2008, the following shareholders (other
than the Directors of the Company) were interested, directly or
indirectly, in 5% or more of the total issued share capital and
underlying shares of the Company and those interests were required

to be recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336
of the SFO:

Name of substantial shareholders

FEBR A A

T3 7 AR BRI A 2 B Y M
3l 3t 7 88 o 2 I 2 A B AR E OB AR AR
At 2 B8 o RSB 2 B - R
LR B BAT o & 2 T [ o AR it

EY
Koo

i (] B AE B A o AN A b R 2
PR K FLA SR A I 3R 2 R IH MR A F
3,946,000 % 70 (— & F £ 4 : 3,315,000 #
J6) > FL M B R I e kK -

F OB A Z B 4 B R AT

R EEZNFEFF_H=Z1+—H FHIBRE
(AN A FE SRR AN ) B 42 o B 45 e A AR A ]
AR BT IO KA B B 2 5% B L E
MESS - T % 55 B £ 208 IRGE 25 B B 1R
5336 W 2 BLE # Bk A H T A2 2 B R it
A

Number of Shares held
(proportion to the total issued

share capital of the Company)
iy 47 By i H
(A 2 ] 2 CBATIRARZ 2 1)

Rivera (Holdings) Limited (“RHL”) NI E A TRAE (TR (2)

King China Holdings Limited %% B A FR/A 7 (4)

E-Shares Investments Limited (4)

Notes:

(a) Amongst those shares disclosed, 146,418,677 Shares were
beneficially held by Shine Trip Limited, which was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Superwell Development Limited in which RHL
held the entire interest. Therefore, Shine Trip Limited, Superwell
Development Limited and RHL were interested or were taken to be

interested in those Shares pursuant to the SFO.

Details of the interest taken to be held by RHL under the SFO
are set out in Note (B) to the above paragraph headed “Directors’

Interests and Short Positions in Securities” in this Report.

159,500,465 (12.05%)
136,340,945 (10.30%)
97,664,265 (7.38%)

() AR AR 146,418,677 BB AR th
Hii AT R A RV EC SR 5 A o iR AT PR W) 2
BEEIRAT PR T 2 A MR AR > i 1A £
AgH 2 2L - B RIEGE 7 X
i) - EnREARAT - A EEREARA T
B VAT AT Bt 2 B AT o 5 B A 2 M i o

A7 B AR SR CRE 5 B B R 1) A A R AT Y

RERR A RENT > O A O 3 A AT AR RE [
2SR SR | W Z IR B) A
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(b)  King China Holdings Limited and E-Shares Investments Limited
were beneficially and wholly owned by Madam Hsu Feng as her
personal interest and in her capacity as the executrix of the estate of
the late Mr Tong Cun Lin respectively. By virtue of the SFO, their
interests in the Shares therefore constituted part of the total interests
of Madam Hsu, Mr Tong Albert and Mr Tong Chi Kar Charles
in the capital of the Company as disclosed in the above paragraph
headed “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Securities” in

this Report.

Save for the above interests, the Directors of the Company are not
aware of any person (other than the Directors of the Company)
who had, directly or indirectly, interests or short positions in the
total issued share capital and the underlying shares of the Company
and those interests or short positions were required to be recorded
in the register kept under Section 336 of the SFO as at 31st
December, 2008.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this Report,
the Company maintains a sufficient public float as prescribed by

the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
have been audited by Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who were

the Auditor of the Company for the past three financial years.
They will retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming annual

general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
Tong Albert

Vice-Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 7th April, 2009
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Report of Independent Auditor
8 7 A% B i o8 3k

Deloitte.
=Z)

TO THE MEMBERS OF
TOMSON GROUP LIMITED

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tomson
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 50 to 146, which
comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31st December, 2008,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of recognised income and expense and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as
to whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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HAE
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Report of Independent Auditor
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st
December, 2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 7th April, 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement

B MR

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZFENEFT+H=4+—HILFEF

2008 2007
ZREBN\E CERE LA
Notes HK$’°000 HKS$°000
Mt it T# Fir
Gross proceeds from operations KEA N 25 AE 8 2,386,932 785,270
Revenue A 8 2,315,982 684,288
Cost of sales BYEE R (870,253) (154,964)
Gross profit EH 1,445,729 529,324
Net (loss) gain in investments held for FERE (BH) U TR
trading (32,599) 6,796
Other income HAb U A 9 111,394 170,521
Selling expenses sHEEH (262,953) (138,679)
Administrative expenses AT (124,130) (170,940)
Other expenses HAh 2 10 (4,612) (11,136)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale a it E R R 2 W E R
investments 29 (32,215) —
Gain on fair value changes of B ZEN - EHEE)
investment properties p A 2 i A 17,535 3,358,055
Release from reserve on acquisition upon G Y= AL
revaluation of investment properties HE ) B A 29 — (100,570)
Finance costs il 5 2% 12 (22,242) (19,491)
1,095,907 3,623,880
Share of results of associates JEIR IS AT 2 2645 (1,547) 1,239
Share of results of jointly controlled FEAL B2 S
entities 11,008 20,939
Profit before taxation % 8 iy 65 | 11 1,105,368 3,646,058
Taxation i 13 (484,369) (1,060,842)
Profit for the year A i ) 620,999 2,585,216
Attributable to: FEAL T
Shareholders of the Company VNG 451,986 2,588,314
Minority interests DR R RE 4 169,013 (3,098)
620,999 2,585,216
Earnings per share (HK cents) BERBEZA] CGAEALD 15
— Basic — HAR 34.12 196.46
— Diluted — AR 34.10 195.46
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

B AR

At 31st December, 2008 A —EE/NFE+_H=+—H

2008 2007
“RENE —EFLAF
Notes HKS$°000 HK$°000
Wit THT T
Non-Current Assets R TG
Fixed assets It 7
— Investment properties — REWE 16 6,112,800 5,754,180
— Property, plant and equipment — W W At 17 386,121 382,271
Lease premium for land + i B 2 18 82,080 502,057
Properties under development BRIk 19 — 34,732
Intangible asset L EE 20 — 4,612
Goodwill [k 21 33,288 33,288
Deferred tax assets A% FIE Y T 31 873 2,027
Interests in associates TRER A N E 2 FE2S 22 34,897 34,759
Interests in jointly controlled entities IEEAEZER 23 199,414 182,889
Available-for-sale investments AR AR 24 97,860 151,807
6,947,333 7,082,622
Current Assets L %
Lease premium for land + HhFH 2 18 6,411 21,979
Properties under development BEEAY 19 1,128,726 491,342
Properties held for sale GiL/ES 1,052,353 959,319
Trade and other receivables and JRE AT 8 5 i s~ H At JE AT B
prepayments YN RE e 26(a) 254,377 230,170
Investments held for trading HERE 25 24,606 78,413
Inventories ety 26(b) 23,372 18,980
Tax recoverable JEE B K 28,250 17
Cash and bank balances IR 4 K SRAT &5 15 26(d) 1,513,254 1,647,321
4,031,349 3,447,541
Current Liabilities A I
Trade and other payables and TEASHEE 5 B ik~ HoAth B A5 R 2%
accruals FTEEE H 26(c) 604,101 733,146
Receipts in advance TR K IE 40,951 869,024
Tax payables JEAS i 1 763,606 353,531
Current portion of long-term bank RIISRITERZ
borrowings RIVHAES 17y 30 192,809 10,678
1,601,467 1,966,379
Net Current Assets i Bl A 2,429,882 1,481,162
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities 88 i W in B fafs 9,377,215 8,563,784
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

E AR

At 31st December, 2008 A —FF NHF+_H =+—H

2008 2007
SBE LA
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k=3 T#xL T
Capital and Reserves AN B il Al
Share capital A 27 661,755 658,710
Reserves TG 29 7,191,851 6,383,594
Equity attributable to shareholders AN % B EA
of the Company Tt 7,853,606 7,042,304
Minority interests VBB AR i 29 339,306 166,636
Total Equity HORE 2% 8,192,912 7,208,940
Non-Current Liabilities Feur B £ 48
Long-term bank borrowings RIRATHE K 30 192,809 363,054
Deferred tax liabilities 0 S Fod T A i 31 991,494 991,790
1,184,303 1,354,844
9,377,215 8,563,784

The consolidated financial statements were approved and HGAMBMEDR EENEN AL HEE

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 7th April, 2009. = HE B A HRE T2 o
Hsu Feng Tong Albert
M LT
Chairman Vice-Chairman
EY e
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Consolidated Statement of Recognised Income and Expense

i WO R SR

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZFENEFT+H=4+—HILFEF

2008 2007
“EENE “EELE
HK$’000 HK$°000
TF#ExL Fioo
Increase in translation reserve MR AR 2 BN 436,769 288,677
Share of reserves of associates and jointly AL 8 ) BB A S
controlled entities 12,999 12,256
(Loss) gain on changes in fair value of A E BRE AT E S B R E A
available-for-sale investments (F54H) Wt (53,947) 39,118
Net income recognised directly in equity H MRS 2 PRI 395,821 340,051
Profit for the year 4 18 Ui 620,999 2,585,216
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AT B 2 W 1R
investments 32,215 —
Release from reserve on acquisition upon P 1y 3 Ak PR 1 S £ A
revaluation of investment properties — 100,570
Release from reserve on acquisition upon B 1 ) 2 R A ot
sales of properties held for sale 841 2,224
Release from investment reserve on disposal 85 R {H B 35 5 R 5 45 5 fath i
of available-for-sale investments — (3,9406)
Total recognised income for the year FEEC MR Z LA 1,049,876 3,024,115
Attributable to: JEALTNT
Shareholders of the Company ANE TR 870,581 3,015,710
Minority interests DB RORE #5 179,295 8,405
1,049,876 3,024,115
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

R Bl BB R

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 #k %2 —%

FNETZAZT—HILFEE

2008 2007
RN\ CEELAF
HKS$’°000 HK3$°000
T T#TT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEH
Profit before taxation I%% o 1 345 ) 1,105,368 3,646,058
Adjustments for: KDL 3
Share of results of associates JREALG Bk 5 N ) 2 S 4R 1,547 (1,239)
Share of results of jointly controlled entities JEAL &2 2 24 (11,008) (20,939)
Release from reserve on acquisition upon sales 8 & 4 SE IRFEE 5 0k B it s
of properties held for sale 841 2,224
Release from reserve on acquisition upon P& Wy 2 A IR 1 A g
revaluation of investment properties — 100,570
Interest on bank loans SRATEFOR)E, 22,242 19,491
Share option expenses AR 2 — 28,321
Depreciation of property, plant and EN N R
equipment 24,971 31,602
Amortisation of lease premium for land - b FH 5 2 6,413 6,496
Impairment loss on available-for-sale At E VR 2 I E 1R
investments 32,215 —
Amortisation of broadcasting right R A R 6 — 1,642
Impairment loss on broadcasting right T S FESU(E s 18 4,612 —
(Written back) allowance for bad and SRR ([958 34
doubtful debts (5,724) 9,494
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and EWE S B S f - AR
equipment and lease premium on land, net B2 W > CATERIEE &
of written off ZH (23,404) (78)
Gain on fair value changes of investment BOE W) 30 T (B 5 Bl Ry 2 A 2 i
properties i (17,535) (3,358,055)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale A AT B R IR SR
investments — (90,631)
Recycling of gain from equity on disposal of  [K/85 H ] {it H 65 8 ¥ 11 [ R 4 el
available-for-sale investments H 2 i 4 — (3,9406)
Interest income FLE A (25,219) (24,158)
Dividends from available-for-sale investments AJ L EFE 7 I Bl A (36,601) (32,765)
Operating cash inflows before movements in 5 ## & £ S8 B {2 £& B &M A
working capital 1,078,718 314,087
Decrease in properties held for sale SR/ES %Y 805,588 78,685
Increase in trade and other receivables and JREW B S B 3~ HA R Az B 3k A%
prepayments FE A =T B (8,464) (48,003)
Decrease (increase) in investments held for ERERD 38m)
trading 53,807 (45,622)
Increase in inventories TEE (3,212) (3,050)
(Decrease) increase in trade and other JREAH B2 5 M 3k ~ LA B AT B R B
payables and accruals TESEZ A (P B (160,762) 352,273
(Decrease) increase in receipts in advance TEUCGHIA () #m (882,379) 824,338
Addition in properties under development B rh ) 2E B (966,168) (790,769)
Cash (used in) generated from operations WEERS (TH) EEZEH 4 (82,872) 681,939
Taxes paid ELAT R 3K (131,568) (45,3306)
Interests paid EATFLE (26,941) (33,197)
NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED RERE W) EAEZ B E&TE
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (241,381) 603,406
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

BB eRER

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 #{ % —%

FMNETZAZ+H—H I E

2008 2007
e 29\ 2 e = 2 wte2
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x T#T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES X B
Interest received 2 A& 25,196 24,104
Dividend from a jointly controlled entity HEMERE 3,294 —
Dividends from available-for-sale investments R {ft &= 3% 2 Ji Elg A 36,601 32,765
Proceeds on disposal of available-for-sale A AT R 2 A Sk IH
investments — 208,485
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and EWE - B S S A
equipment and lease premium on land 2 g E0E 53,772 309
Purchases of available-for-sale investments B AT B = (1,328)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment % B4)2E ~ i 5 S 5% Mg (14,028) (15,486)
Purchases of intangible asset i A& — (6,254)
Addition in investment properties WEREYE (1,291) (6,620)
Capital injection in setting up associates TR & AT N ) — (30,191)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits E R ERAT A7 R D — 6,958
Repayment from (advance to) jointly R (BNT) 8EEZHIE
controlled entities 2,440 (2,440)
Repayment from an associate - UNCIPa T = 4,048
NET CASH GENERATED FROM B By e 2 B4
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 105,984 214,350
FINANCING ACTIVITIES HERES B)
Dividend paid e E (72,760) —
Repayment of bank borrowings ERSRAT K (11,342) (224,240)
Repurchase of shares [e] i FE A5y (9,101) (148)
Payment for reduction of registered share AL BBl A e o 2 w08
capital to a minority sharcholder of a B HRAS R
subsidiary (6,625) —
Proceeds from exercising of share options AT I B 2 JT A5 T 22,582 —
Repayment to jointly controlled entities BATEBEEZHIE — (16,872)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING R ) 9 ) 2 B
ACTIVITIES (77,246) (241,260)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH  Bl& KRB &S fBH (W) ¥
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ¥ (212,643) 576,496
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT W—H—HZBE KRB
1ST JANUARY H 1,647,321 1,007,115
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE B s SR 5 2
RATE CHANGES 78,576 63,710
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RTHA=Z1THZBLE R3S
31ST DECEMBER, FMHHH
represented by cash and bank balances BIIR 4 M SRAT 4515 1,513,254 1,647,321
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

s 1 S 5 e B e

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZFENEFT+H=4+—HILFEF

1.

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate

information of the annual report.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the year were property development and
investment, hospitality and leisure activities, manufacturing

of PVC pipes, securities trading and investment holding.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments and interpretations (“new HKFRSs”) issued by
the HKICPA which are or have become effective.

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7 Reclassification of Financial Assets

(Amendments)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury

Share Transactions

1.

—AER

Ao T By — R B2 R L 2
NRARAF > HBA #8622
Sy AR A (BT )) Bl o A%
R 2 G S S R SR 2 M
b B R F R

Ay w] B R o F (A S ) A
AAEBE N BT I ) SR R S B
B ORE RIEE R REBE &
FFHELBEE -

R 5 i o0 2l TR B

A5 B BB B T 4% IR o | R AT A
B WM 2 e 8 o 5 i o Y T ) i
PO > & JU 5 i 2 R A T 52 i Gl
Zr b TAR D B 8 2 w1 BT KR
R -

M D07 T 2 5
15 8 )

RAAESE > ALEEC M LT B &
& wh B2 & AR A I 1 B E AR 2 BT
AR R ([ A s B Bl i e Al ) o

(FEgHEA) SHERE L EHE
5539 98 R (Fr itk
B WA )3 7 5%
(3T 4)

Fis (BT R (FBEE RS A
HRBZae) - Ho9t — EE R
AR 1198 JEAE AR 2 5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 1 5 e A B e

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 3.
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

HK{FRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

JE B ) M SR e v
SR e ok YR B ) )

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

HKAS 19 — The Limit on a
Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum

Funding Requirements and their

Bl (B R IR B
HIZBZAY) —
AR 1298

Fis (FBMBERE  (FEGTHEADS 19
HIRBZAY) — 9 — FEfEREE
AR 14 ZIRH - BB

Interaction

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect
on how the results and financial position for the current or
prior accounting periods have been prepared and presented.

Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.

The Group has not early applied the following new and

revised standards, amendments or interpretations that have

REHMEZE

PR 0 A s S B At Ve 3 A o
] B0t 15 8 w0 ) 2 S8 A I B s 5K
Z i B R 5 J5 330 A A N K R
B o I BEEAE AT A

A 45 T 7 41 2 LR P AT 4 L o
AR 2 2R K R AE B HE AN - BT

been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs
(Amendments)
HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 & 1

(Amendments)

HKAS 39
(Amendment)

HKFRS 1 & HKAS
27 (Amendments)

HKERS 2
(Amendment)
HKEFRS 3 (Revised)

1
Improvements to HKFRSs
. . . 2
Presentation of Financial Statements
. 2
Borrowing Costs

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements’

Puttable Financial Instruments
and Obligations Arising on

Liquidation®
Eligible Hedged Items’

Cost of an Investment in a
Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled

. . P
Entity or Associate

Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations

5 5 5 3
Business Combinations
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

HKERS 7
(Amendment)
HKERS 8

HK(IFRIC)-Int
9 & HKAS 39

(Amendments)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17

HK(IFRIC)-Int 18

Improving Disclosures about
. . 2
Financial Instruments

Operating Segments’

Embedded Derivatives’

4

Customer Loyalty Programmes

Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate’

Hedges of a Net Investment in a

Foreign Operation’

Distribution of Non-cash Assets to

3
Owners

6
Transfers of Assets from Customers

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,

3. M

zpEl

J ¥
S5

(RS H s AL
E75(BTA)
(s B R &AL
%89k

7 s 0 8 B i
HABZAS) -
BRI o B R(F ik
EFHUER)E 39 9%
(fE5T4)

it (I PR T i e
HIABZES) -
AR 130

it (I PR T i e
HIABZEE) -
AR 15 9%

it (I PR T i e
HIABZEE) -
AR 1698

it (I PR T i e
HIABZEE) -
AR 17

it (I PR T i e
HIABZEE) -
AR 1898

BRI WCH B
HE ) )

Fh e BB
igZ
AR

RAARTETA

AR
AR
i’

1R B & B R T B
BN’

EFHEEYS

' AR =% — A — H SR

2009 except the amendments to HKFRSS, effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January,
2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist July,
2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist July,
2008

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist
October, 2008

Effective for transfers on or after 1st July, 2009

Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30th June,
2009

i 2 AF BE I ] > MR e S iR o
RIS s SR 2 AERT A Rl it —FF
B A — BB PR B 46 2 4F BE IR
AR =% — A — H SR
i 2 4 B 1 ]

BN —EFFILFECH — 8
i 2 4 B 1 ]

AR —FENEE A — H SR B
i 2 4 B ]

B & F A H — B 8RR B
i 2 4 B 1 ]

BN —EFILFELH — 8 RAE
i 2 W

BN —EFF AN H = A SR
RH 2 AT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

3.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the
Group’s accounting for business combination for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the Group’s
annual reporting period beginning on or after Ist January,
2010. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting
treatment for changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary. The Directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these new and revised standards, amendments
or interpretations will have no material impact on the results

and the financial position of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost convention, except for investment
properties and financial instruments, which are measured
at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set out

below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from

its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of

disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with those used by other members of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 1 5 e A B e

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All significant inter-group transactions, balances, income and

expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

On acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary, the
excess/shortfall of the consideration paid over/below the fair
values of the underlying assets and liabilities attributable to
the additional interests in a subsidiary acquired is recognised
as goodwill or discount on acquisition. Excess of fair values
over the carrying amounts of the underlying assets and
liabilities attributable to the additional interests is debited
to Reserve on acquisition. On subsequent disposal of a
subsidiary or revaluation or disposal of the underling assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary, the attributable Reserve on
acquisition is included in the determination of the amount of

profit or loss on disposal or gain or loss on revaluation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein. Minority interests in the net assets consist of the
amount of those interests at the date of the original business
combination and the minority’s share of changes in equity
since the date of the combination. Losses applicable to the
minority in excess of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s
equity are allocated against the interests of the Group except
to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation and

is able to make an additional investment to cover the losses.
Business combinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at
the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of
assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly
attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
that meet the conditions for recognition under HKFRS 3
“Business Combinations” are recognised at their fair values at

the acquisition date.

4,

T 5HEOR )
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and
initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the
cost of the business combination, the excess is recognised

immediately in the consolidated income statement.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is
initially measured at the minority’s proportion of the net
fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities

recognised.
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and
operations of another entity for which the agreement date is
before Ist January, 2005 represents the excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the relevant acquiree at

the date of acquisition.
From 1st January, 2005 onward, the Group will carry

goodwill at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is

presented separately in the consolidated balance sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating unit
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that financial year. When the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on
the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in
the consolidated income statement. An impairment loss for

goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-generating unic,
the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in

the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
Interests in associates

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes
in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate, less any
identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
An additional share of losses is provided for and a liability
is recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payment on behalf

of that associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 WE-EE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Interests in associates (Continued)

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement. When a
group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits
and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest

in the relevant associate.
Interests in jointly controlled entities

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled
entities are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, investments in jointly controlled entities are
carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted
for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net
assets of the jointly controlled entities, less any identified
impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses of a jointly
controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly
controlled entity, the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. An additional share of losses is provided
for and a liability is recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement. When a
group entity transacts with a jointly controlled entity of the
Group, profits or losses are eliminated to the extent of the

Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entity.
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B 1 5 e A B e

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the

consolidated income statement.
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the
three categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace are recognised and derecognised on a trade date

basis.
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees on points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life

of the financial asset or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for

debt instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represent
investments held for trading. The Group classified such
financial assets as held for trading investments as they has
been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the

near future.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised
directly in the consolidated income statement in the period
in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in the
consolidated income statement includes any dividend or

interest earned on the financial assets.
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
bank balances, amounts due from associates and jointly
controlled entities) are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified

impairment losses.

For trade and other receivables, assets that are assessed not
to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include that
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, significant
financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
borrower being probable to enter bankruptcy or financial re-
organisation, servable changes in national or local economic

conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

Tomson Group Limited 35 i M# B A 6]

T GHEOR )

T H )
W% A ()
A T A 1888 2 B 5 B 7

& AFEF A B 2 M8 EE |18
FEEE o AL E AN E
A Z B EENBAFERE -

RPIRHERRR Z J AR A > HnF
ErF AR 2 W8 & Ty 1%~ F(E R
RN T/AS Bk /) o NN N 3
T F 5 R 3R P AR o R AR AL R
il 5 2 1 Ml 1 6L A B 5 O B R
ZAEAT IS A B -

Lk M %

%5 2% HE R ) (646 M 1k 52 57
e H A RE R - SRAT R
B B i 3 K S D T
A2 IR R e L
61 3 BI85 1 S0 o 0 vk e
et R L > B B M 4
1 B 5 UL 6 LA R > AT
{67 B BT 5 45 B =

AL e Wi B 5 MR R B L At R i R K
Fo CEFEABEMENREZ EEE
T AR 2 45 0 2 A AT (R FTAG o JE
W B AR AL 5 2 B ML I (B U T AL A AR
8 BB E KRS Bk > AT A S5 B
T HOR I R S~ K A R A
AL BAS B~ A RO TT RE M AT
PABS AL - DA B 4 o B [ A R DL
o B B4 K USRS B < AL -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the loans and receivables are
reduced by the impairment loss directly with the exception
of trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in the consolidated income statement. When a trade and
other receivables are considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to the

consolidated income statement.

An impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement when there is objective evidence that the
loans and receivables are impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate. Impairment losses are reversed
in subsequent periods when an increase in the recoverable
amount can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction
that the carrying amount of the loans and receivables at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.
Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are

cither designated or not classified as financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss and loans and receivables.

4. BEEFHBOR o

T H )
WA 5 (4
K Mok ()

801 s 4R B L B R S R WU K
R T (L4196 - M B S B DR A R L At
R SR S R A JF IR T 98 988 184
HR AR H AT o 458 A MR A0 2 B T e A
TR S FIE R TR o B WCE 5 R
AR B At AR R A A AN AT i [l
RF o CHLI A 8% A R 1 Sl o AR
[|] 2 il 2 W8 19 BRIH > R A SR & A
FRA -

BB R BN RO R AR
B BAE R - T R AR & A 2R R
016 s 1R > 91 A 0 AR T (T B R AR B
SR 2 BUE (DU B % < BLA B
FIRFTH) 2R - HREEBILEE
T i [ 4 R 48 o B 2 e R I (R 4% P B
A AR BRI B (R R 1R A B
A5 H00 ] 98 T o e % TR M Wi R Y
8 180 BBl (B 2 2 SR THT B AS 75 8 ) oK il
R (B IR 2 B AR

1T {4 H B 0 5

[a] {3 b B s B | R R TR IHE
FOIE AR RE T m] ik o 4 B 5 L BOK R
KR AR AR 2 2 B F B
LA Be [ B B RE WSR3k )

Annual Report 2008 4F JE4F




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recognised in equity, until the
financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be impaired,
at which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity is removed from equity and recognised

in the consolidated income statement.

A significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
an available-for-sale equity investment below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment. Any
impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised in the consolidated income statement. Impairment
losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not reverse
in the consolidated income statement in subsequent periods.
For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event occurring

after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at each balance sheet date

subsequent to initial recognition.

An impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired. The amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying amount of the asset
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment losses will not reverse in
subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value subsequent to

impairment loss is recognised in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of

a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are

recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities including trade and other
payables and bank borrowings are subsequently measured at

amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
Equity instruments

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instrument is
recognised and deducted directly in share capital for par value
and in retained earnings for total amount paid in excess of
par value. The same amount recognised in share capital will
be transferred from retained earnings to capital redemption
reserves. No gain or loss is recognised in income statement
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s

own equity instruments.
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments through the expected life of the financial

liability or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in the

consolidated income statement.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in the consolidated income

statement.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill and financial assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its assets (other than goodwill and financial
assets) to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable
amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an

expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/

or for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at their fair values using the fair value model. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
property are included in the consolidated income statement

for the period in which they arise.

Transfer from investment property to property, plant and
equipment will be made when there is a change in use as
evidenced by commencement of owner occupation. The fair
value of that item will be transferred as the cost of property,
plant and equipment subject to appropriate depreciation.
For property interest held under operating lease previously
classified as an investment property and accounted for as if
it were a finance lease under the fair value model, the Group
shall continue to account for the lease as a finance lease, even
if subsequent event changes the nature of the property interest

so that it is no longer classified as investment property.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits is expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the consolidated income statement in the year in which the

item is derecognised.

4,

T GHEOR )

BEYE

BB W) A TR BRI & J B A
WEZ W -

TRV ERBIRE - 35 &) 4% A (B
R B HEAG 2T ) 5 o R i RR
& > BUEW TR 2P E A A
FZ N FERHE o FEBEY AN FH
5 ) IR A 2 Wi e gl 1R R A L AR
MM Rz AR E AR

W ENEEY R RS E AN
hF - BB W) 3E R = Y3 - R R
B YW EZ N VEGESEEY
3 WS BB 2 AR RO B AR wHR
Pl - AT AR EY R
A e 8 8 LR A ) S HE 2 40 1 04 4
EHE RN EEAFH - AEH
A AL S B ERE M > B
{5 40 S i 2 A B A BB AR A O it 4 )
1M AP U BEE W2 -

BB W) ST AR BUK A A T B
T AN BEARE th B mp 4 BROR A€ 25 37 M) 2
BEAF T LRS- AP T LR EE
& > B 2 ARATIR g (R4 & E 6 B
AHF AR E AR §1E
%8 H AP T AR R Z 4F B A RE AR
aAERE -

Annual Report 2008 4F JE4F




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including leasehold land
and buildings held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes other
than construction work-in-progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses, if any.

Construction work-in-progress is stated at cost less any
identified impairment loss. When the construction is
completed and the asset is available for use, the related cost
is transferred to appropriate category of property, plant and

equipment and depreciated in accordance with the following

policy.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of the assets
other than construction work-in-progress less their estimated
residual value over their estimated useful lives by equal

annual instalments at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land
Buildings

Over the term of the relevant lease
2% to 4%

4% to 13%

18% to 40%

Plant and equipment
Furniture, fixtures
and equipment and

motor vehicles

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item) is included in the
consolidated income statement in the year in which the item

is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Properties held for sale/properties under
development (current asset)

Properties held for sale/properties under development
(current asset) are stated at the lower of cost and estimated
net realisable value. Properties under development which are
intended for sale in the ordinary course of business upon

completion are classified as current assets.
Properties under development (non-current asset)

Properties under development for purpose not yet determined
for sale in the ordinary course of business or to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation are carried in the consolidated
financial statements at cost less any identified impairment
loss. Cost of properties under development includes, where
appropriate, interest capitalised. No depreciation has been
provided for properties under development. Properties under
development are transferred to properties held for sale/
properties under development (current assets) at carrying
value when the purpose is determined for sale in the ordinary

course of business.

For self-constructed investment properties, transfer from
properties under development (non-current asset) will be
made upon completion of construction or development. Any
difference between the fair value of the properties at that
date and the previous carrying amount is recognised in the

consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of
such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
carned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted

from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the consolidated

income statement in the year in which they are incurred.
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of

business, net of discount.

When properties are developed for sale, income is recognised
only when the sale agreement is unconditional or when
the relevant building occupation permit is issued by the
relevant government authorities, whichever is the later and
when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
properties are transferred to purchasers. Payments received
from purchasers prior to this stage are recorded as receipts in

advance under current liabilities.

Interest income from a financial asset excluding financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying

amount.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEFT+ - H=Z+—HILFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been
transferred and neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold has been retained by the Group
but subject to the conditions that the flow of economic
benefits associated with the transaction to the Group is
probable and the amount of revenue and related costs
incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be

measured reliably.

Revenue from provision of services is recognised when the

services are rendered.

Revenue from sales of investments held for trading is

recognised when the sales contract has become unconditional.

Property management fee income is recognised on an
appropriate basis over the relevant period in which the

services are rendered.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a

straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the

Group’s rights to receive payment have been established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEFT+ - H=Z+—HILFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded
in the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in the consolidated income statement in the
period in which they arise, except for exchange differences
arising on a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s
net investment in a foreign operation, in which case,
such exchange differences are recognised in equity in the
consolidated financial statements. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried
at fair value are included in the consolidated income
statement of the period except for differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised directly in equity, in which
cases, the exchange differences are also recognised directly in

equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised as a separate component of equity (foreign
currencies translation reserve). Such exchange differences are
recognised in the consolidated income statement in the period
in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Tomson Group Limited 35 i M# B A 6]

4,

T GHEOR )

Ab i

T A A 4 R B 2 BB R IR > DA
% H 2 ThRe B W LUS 2 B R (A1)
AT 2B 5y 51858 by W 2 7 ) BE %
5 AAR B 2 e B (B % A A 2
B FERWERE Z B sk - R&
HEH > MSNESIE 2 & W B &
AP 2B MR o AT EA
MR I LLANI &5 2 F B WIH B A
(B8 76 52 8 H 22 98 ) HE R4 BE - LA Ab
BRI AR 2 W IHE A E
WG -

PRl 466 0 % R IE T 7 A 2 B
22 FE R A ) 2 R S R R T e
B M A 4 I Ui AP S Y T BUE
— Ry ) B W TE B BT EE 2R Y M St 2 A
BRAN o 157 R DU > A% BE 5 25 B
TE 55 5 A 5 I 3% 0 M 2 AR o PR BT
WG E AR 2 JF B W IH B
A 2 BEE 5 2 B A ACE AR M R
e BT 0 O B W IH A Rl i K s
18 T R AR PR R R ) T AR 2 22 BR
G s TRUEAEILT o BE S22 RN B A
it RS, o

MG MBERERINM S > AELEHEE
AR 2B EE R ABTIEREE
HZBHERRE R AER L 2 &
W (R o) > T e A B Bl S I 4%
% AF B -3 ME ARG > BR IR R %
fH] 2 HEE 3 KW 95 58 B B b > R I A L
N AR A IER 5 2 H P 2 8
MES B o AR Z BESEZEHH (AN ) TG
il R AR TP 22 B ST L3 (A1 S ek
i) o %5 ME SLZE B B A 3B
WA N 2 A M R AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 1 5 A B e

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEFT+ - H=Z+—HILFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation

Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated income statement because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years, and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in jointly controlled entities, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available

to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEFT+ - H=Z+—HILFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
assets is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the
consolidated income statement, except when it relates to
items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the

deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.
Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any identified impairment loss. Amortisation is charged
to the consolidated income statement using a method that
reasonably relates the net carrying amount of film rights to

the net revenue expected to be realised.
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.

Share-based payment transactions

At the grant date, the Group recognises the fair value of
directors’ and employees’ share options that are immediately
vested as an expense in the consolidated income statement. A
corresponding increase is recognised in a share option reserve
within equity. If a director or an employee chooses to exercise
options, the related share option reserve is transferred to share
capital and share premium, with reference to the exercise
price. If the options lapse unexercised the related share option

reserve is transferred directly to retained earnings.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EFZEZNEF - H=+—HILFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.
The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over

the term of the relevant lease.
The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable
as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised
as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a

straight-line basis.
Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
building are considered separately for the purpose of lease
classification, unless the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, in which
case, the entire lease is generally treated as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment. To the extent
the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
leasehold interests in land are accounted for as operating
leases except for those that are classified and accounted for as

investment properties under the fair value model.
Retirement benefit cost
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes

are charged as expenses when employees have rendered service

entitling them to the contributions.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EFZEZNEF - H=+—HILFE

5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 4, the Directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results

may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.

The key sources of estimation uncertainty that can
significantly affect the amounts recognised in the financial

information in the next financial year are disclosed below:
Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value
(Note 21).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to sharcholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in Note 30 and equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, reserves and retained earnings as
disclosed in Notes 27 and 29 respectively.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EFZEZNEF - H=+—HILFE

6.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically by considering the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. When necessary, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs

as well as the issue of new debt or the repayment of existing

debt.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

6.
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W R
(a) Z&@THZEMN

2008 2007
“REN\E “EERLA
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#x Filor
Financial assets 9%
Fair value through profit or loss BN EFN A B 8 2 F
investments held for trading R 24,606 78,413
Loans and receivables (including cash R R E R IR R (G B 4
and cash equivalents) KIREEEEH) 1,616,750 1,717,539
Available-for-sale investments nl At E 97,860 151,807
Financial liabilities 10 £ 4
Amortised cost PG Bl AS 958,076 1,057,824

(b) Financial risks management objectives
and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, investments held for
trading, trade and other receivables, amounts due from
associates and jointly controlled entities, bank balances,
trade and other payables and bank borrowings.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
the respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EFZEZNEF - H=+—HILFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risks management objectives
and POliCieS (Continued)

Market risks

(@)

(ii)

Currency risk

Certain cash and bank balances of the Group are
denominated in United States Dollars (“USD”)
which is a foreign currency other than functional
currency of the group entities (see Note 26(d)).
The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency

exposure should the need arises.
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate bank borrowings
and also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to bank deposits and variable-rate
bank borrowings (see Note 30 for details of these
borrowings). It is the Group’s policy to keep
its borrowings at variable-rate of interest so as
to minimise the fair value interest rate risk and
the fixed rate bank borrowings will be matured
within one year as at the balance sheet date. The
Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need

arises.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates risk on
financial assets and liabilities are detailed in the
liquidity risk management section of this note.
The Group cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of the market
deposit rate and the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) official lending rate arising from the
Group’s RMB borrowings.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEFT+ - H=Z+—HILFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risks management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for bank balances and variable-rate bank
borrowings. The analysis is prepared on the
balance at balance sheet date. A 50 basis point
increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment

of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended
31st December, 2008 would increase/decrease
by HK$6,204,000 (2007: increase/decrease by
HK$7,001,000). This is mainly attributable to
the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its bank

deposits.

Furthermore, if interest rates had been 50 basis
points higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s post-tax profit for the
year ended 31st December, 2008 would decrease/
increase by HK$837,000 (2007: decrease/increase
by HK$862,000). This is mainly attributable
to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its

variable-rate bank borrowings.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEFT+ - H=Z+—HILFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Consinued) 7. ZEWTH @
(b) Financial risks management objectives (b) %5 M B 4% B H B B i o

and policies (Continued) (%)
Market risks (Continued) Wi 35 BB ()
(iii) Equity price risk (iii) SR 4% AL B

The Group’s equity instruments (classified as
investments held for trading and available-for-
sale investments) expose the Group to equity
price risks. Management intends to manage
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of

investments with different risk profiles.
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price
risks at the balance sheet date for the Group’s
equity instruments excluding available-for-sale
investments measured at cost less any identified

impairment losses.

For sensitivity analysis purpose, the sensitivity
rate is increased to 10% in the current year as a
result of the volatile financial market. If the prices
of the respective equity instruments had been
10% (2007: 5%) higher/lower:

e post-tax profit for the year ended 31st
December, 2008 would increase/decrease
by HK$2,054,000 (2007: increase/decrease
approximately by HK$3,528,000) as a result
of the changes in fair value of investments held

for trading; and

Tomson Group Limited 35 i M# B A 6]

A 4R R B A W R (0
A ERE RN E
BOE ) T ZH AR Z BBEA B A% Ja
B o A LI HER A2 A AT — (R
W B AR R A 2 g A
AR Al A T S -

R M

NI Z AU M TR R AR
B F R A5 H 2 A i
(A AL 35 12 JAS AT o] 2 ik
I BAE e 18 w8 2 AR
BB ) 2 A B A Ja B S B
HET B E -

RBURE ST S > AR
2 TR L R ] 4 il T 8
TE M BN 10% o i A B R
R IZEE T B
10% (= & E L4 1 5%) >
-

s BE_EZNE+T A
= tT—HIEFEZHRB
Bl A EEEREA
7 5 B ni % 8
42,054,000% JL(— &
FTLFE WK
3,528,000 #70) 5 K&



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 1 5 A B e

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEFT+ - H=Z+—HILFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. T H»
(b) Yo %5 e B 4% P H B % B oK

(b) Financial risks management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Market risks (Continued)

(iii) Equity price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

* profit would increase/decrease by HK$4,832,000
(2007: investment reserve increase/decrease
approximately by HK$5,114,000) for the Group as a
result of the changes in fair value of listed available-

for-sale investments.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis
is not representative of the Group’s equity risk as
it only reflects the impact of equity price changes
to equity securities held at the year end but not

the exposure during the year.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
the event of counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations as at 31st December, 2008 in relation to
each class of recognised financial assets in the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
balance sheet. In order to minimise the credit risk,
the management will monitor the payment status of
customers and perform necessary procedures to ensure

that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.

At balance sheet date, the Group also provides a
guarantee to a jointly controlled entity, the credit risk

on the guarantee is minimal as disclosed in Note 32.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEFT+ - H=Z+—HILFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. T H»
(b) Yo %5 e B 4% P H B % B oK

(b) Financial risks management objectives

and policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group will
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover any
overdue debts. The Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual receivable at each balance
sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
recognised for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the Directors of the Company consider that the Group’s

exposure to bad debts is minimal.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with good reputation. And, the

Group has no significant concentration of credit risk.

Furthermore, trade receivables consist of a large number

of customers spread across diverse industries.
Liquidity Risks

The Group is exposed to insignificant liquidity risk as
it has sufficient funds to meet its financial obligations

when they fall due.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents generated from operations which are deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and to mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in cash flows. The Group will consider to raise bank

borrowings when it necessary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B T 5 A B e

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EFZEZNEF - H=+—HILFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risks management objectives
and policies (Continued)

Liquidity Risks (Continued)
Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash

flows.

7. ST H @

(b) o %5 b g 4% BE H B B i oR
(%)

L) < M B ()
1L ) 5 <5 U 7 AL B 7

N ARFESIA R B I AT A B R
B2 T aR2MEI - RS
ARG A SR 7 T RE B R HR
BAMARRRE R WHAEER
P BB < O R A AT o SR AL
MERAEZBERE o

Total
Weighted undiscounted Total
average effective  Lessthan 3 months 6 months cash carrying
Interestrate 3 months  to 6 months tolyear  over I year flows amount
TS =M =iA AiA 3tk i
HhH% W EnEA g —EYE O RAE Wi
HKS 000 HEKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS 000 HKS$'000 HKS$ 000
T Tir Ti#r T T Ti#r
As at 31st December, 2008 ZERNEFZRE-R
Non-derivative financial FRE BB A
liabilities
Trade and other payables FEMHE S R (RS 66,912 21,246 484,300 = 572,458 572,458
Bank borrowings Rivfes
— fired rate — 8 5.90% 2,677 2677 184,144 = 189,498 181,467
— variable rate — 88 6.87% 3,133 14,474 5917 220,627 24151 204,151
72,722 38,397 674,361 20,627 1,006,107 958,076
Asat 31st December, 2007 “FFLAEFHZF-H
Non-derivative financial e
liabilities
Trade and other payables TRt 5 e BRI 148,560 053 534,879 = (84,092 (84,092
Bank borrowings Rivfes
— fixed rate — &R 5.90% 2,520 2,520 5,040 178,409 188,489 170,849
— variable rate — B8 6.60% 3,659 14,337 0,048 205,541 250,485 202,883
154,739 17,510 546,867 403,950 1,123,060 1,057,824
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B T 5 A B e

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EFZEZNEF - H=+—HILFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. T H

(c) Fair value (c) AP

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities WHHS & B S A BB 2 A T

are determined as follows: AR e

o the fair value of financial assets with standard ° LA A AR R B AR S A T
terms and conditions and traded on active liquid BrEmEtEms L2
markets are determined with reference to quoted B B e 2 A FH T3 2% it
market prices; and WG ERE EEE 5 R

o the fair value of other financial assets and ° HAb A% & Mg a2
financial liabilities are determined in accordance ORI AR SR T BB 4 0 =
with generally accepted pricing models based on I3 AT 2 — WA RR I E fE AR K
discounted cash flow analysis or using price from PR T AT B A BT
observable current market transactions. B 5 2 B R E -

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of HHER S WA AL S

financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at WA e 2 WA B I T B AR

amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements 2 BT (B B L O P {E AR ©

approximate their fair values.

8. GROSS PROCEEDS FROM 8. MBI ERH -~ WARE
OPERATIONS, REVENUE AND %5
BUSINESS SEGMENTS

Gross proceeds from operations and revenue 825 W A A B BN
Revenue represents the aggregate of revenue under the WCAHE BT 25 T A S0

following headings:

(i) Property investment () PEsE

—  represents revenue from property management and — IEYEE A RS IRA

rental income

(ii) Property development and trading (i) WEBEELNE
— fepresents grOSS revenue rCCCiVCd and rCCCiVable — *E*%%ﬁﬁ%z EA q&&)@q&ﬁ@
from sales of properties k25
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B T 5 A B e

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EFZEZNEF - H=+—HILFE

8. GROSS PROCEEDS FROM 8. BEBWLTHH - BAKE

OPERATIONS, REVENUE AND
BUSINESS SEGMENTS (Continued)

Gross proceeds from operations and revenue
(Continued)

(iii) Industrial operations

— represents the gross revenue from sale of

manufactured PVC pipes
(iv) Leisure

—  represents the income from golf club operations

and its related services

Gross proceeds from operations include the gross proceeds
received and receivable from investments held for trading
under the business of securities trading, in addition to the

above aggregated revenue.

Gross proceeds from operations for the year ended 3lst

December, 2008 consist of the followings:

50 J )

¥l ek W YN

(iii) TE¥H

—  IRHERTREZBEIRA
&

CORRGILE 2

—  IRECE R RIRE R
R AR S Wi A

BR DL B U A BB AN > KL ik AR
BEEFREXEGEPHESFEREN
32 Bl R BRI R -

BEZZNFE+ _HA=+—HIL%F
JE 2 8880 in AR AL N A 45 TE

2008 2007

e 2 JITS ZERELAE

HK$’°000 HK$°000

T# Fitoo

Revenue from sale of goods and properties SHEE T B R EZ IR 2,155,101 461,058

Revenue from rendering of services PR 2 A 79,545 158,433
Revenue from property rental and ES RV S UN

management fee 81,336 64,797

Total revenue BN 2,315,982 684,288

Gross proceeds from sale of securities H B % R 2 M R 70,950 100,982

Gross proceeds from operations bt d &Y ] 2,386,932 785,270
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B T 5 A B e

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EFZEZNEF - H=+—HILFE

8. GROSS PROCEEDS FROM 8. MBI MM - WA BE
OPERATIONS, REVENUE AND g AE
BUSINESS SEGMENTS (Continued)
Business segments TP ]
The Group’s primary format for reporting segment AREBMUEB T EEEROSFERZ
information is business segment. FEFK -
2008 e £ 2,%2
Property
Property Development  Industrial Securities
Investment  and Trading ~ Operations Leisure Trading  Unallocated ~ Elimination Total
HEL

WREE  RME TRRE WARE  EERN RPN L it
HKS000  HKS000  HKSUO0  HKS000  HKS©000  HKSOO0  HKS000  HKS000

T T Tt T Tl Tt T Tk

GROSS PROCEEDS BRUBNE

FROM OPERATIONS 81,336 2,091,432 63,609 79,545 70,950 — — 2,386,932
REVENUE KA
External sales e 8133 2,091,432 63,669 79,545 — - — 231598
Inter-segment sales iz e 15,173 = 79 = — = (15,252) —
96,509 2,091,432 03,748 79,545 — — (15252) 2,315,982
Inter-segment sales are iz $E AR TE
charged at prevailing ithe
market prices.
RESULTS 3
Segment resulis MEER 54380 1,064,167 1,086 (50%)  (BL79) - — 1,081,862
Other income A 3,253 10,088 5,756 299 — 89,307 — 111,394
Unallocated corporate AT HEEER
expenses (75,107)
Finance costs HEER (22,242)
1,095,907
Share of results of associates  MEIGTEA fl £ 4 - - - 553 — (2,100) — (1547)
Shate of results of joindly ~ [EIGAE S £
controlled entities — (39) — 11,047 — — — 11,008
Profit before taxation Bt 1,105,368
Taxation BR (484,369)
Profit for the year R 620999
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B T 5 A B e

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EFZEZNEF - H=+—HILFE

8. GROSS PROCEEDS FROM

OPERATIONS, REVENUE AND
BUSINESS SEGMENTS (Continued)

8. R A - WA R

50 J )

Business segments (Continued) Y o)
2008 —EENF
Property
Property Development  Industrial Securities
Investment  and Trading  Operations Leisure Trading ~ Unallocated Total
ML
ES 4 ReE TRRE WRRE B AP it
HKS$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS$000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000
T T Tt Tt Tl Tt Tk
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 35 L
Assets ik
Segment assets MEEE 618983 2350569 81998 410711 26,568 — 9,059,679
[nterests in associates [N NVA ) — — — 5,184 — 29,713 34,897
Interests in jointly controlled RABGE KR
entities — 30,432 = 168,982 - — 199,414
Unallocated corporate assets S e 3 1,684,692
Consolidated total assets AR 10,978,682
Liabilities ff
Segment liabilicies HEAR 49,509 280,693 5,305 174743 63 - 610,313
Current portion of long term bank BT {7 A
borrowings 11,342 181,467 — — — — 192,809
Long-term bank borrowings R 192,809 — — — — — 192,809
Unallocated corporate liabiliies ARt EA [ 1,789,839
Consolidated total liabilities GAMAL 2,785,770
OTHER INFORMATION ¥R
Capital additions to property, VEN T}
plant and equipment NE 2,544 3,611 1,122 1,697 - 5,054 14,028
Capital additions to investment ~~ FEHEEERE
properties 1,291 — — — — — 1,291
Depreciation of property, plant and 41 i Rt it &
equipment 1,811 1,964 3,854 15,971 — 1,371 24971
Amortisation of lease premium 1 {1 2 B
for land — — 093 5,711 — 9 6,413
(Written back) allowance for IR (e ¢
bad and doubtful debts (416) (5) (5,415) 112 — — (5,724)
Net gain (loss) on disposal of HEME - RE Rakls
property, plant and equipment R HHHEEH 2 Itk
and lease premium on land, net (B4 40 EAIBRA
of witen off HEH 2438 (275) 5 (1) - (663) 23404
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B T 5 A B e

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EFZEZNEF - H=+—HILFE

8. GROSS PROCEEDS FROM 8. BEBWLTHH - BAKE

OPERATIONS, REVENUE AND
BUSINESS SEGMENTS (Continued)

50 J )

Business segments (Continued) YEBYH )
2007 “RELF
Property
Property Development  Industrial Securities
Investment  and Trading ~ Operations Leisure Trading  Unallocated  Elimination Total
ES I
S REE LREE O WARE  ERHE RPN it it
HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
T T T Titr T T Titr Tt
GROSS PROCEEDS BRKEAH
FROM OPERATIONS 04,797 407,866 53,192 158,433 100,982 — — 785,270
REVENUE KA
External sales HopgE 64,797 407,866 53,192 158,433 — — = (84,288
Inter-segment sales a7 e 6,506 = 25 = = — (6,531) =
71,303 407,866 53,217 158,433 — — (6,531) (84,288
Inter-segment sales are W B ER BT
charged at prevailing ith o
market prices.
RESULTS £
Segment results MEEK 385467 BLSY (4944 39,069 6,001 . — 3557300
Other income JA 3397 16,835 A1 7461 () 142,608 - I
Unallocated corporate AFHBEER X
expenses (84,460)
Finance costs HEEH (19,491)
3,623,880
Share of results of associates  JE[RI &M Fl 7 5 = = — (1,172) — 2,411 = 1,239
Share of results of joinely  JEf A A7 5
controlled entities — 3 — 20,907 — — — 20,939
Profit before taxation WALl 3,646,058
Taxation BA (1,060,842)
Profit for the year ERE A 2,585,216
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B T 5 A B e

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EFZEZNEF - H=+—HILFE

8. GROSS PROCEEDS FROM 8. HEEWARANM - WA B
OPERATIONS, REVENUE AND BB
BUSINESS SEGMENTS (Continued)
Business segments (Continued) Y o)
2007 —FF L
Property
Property Development  Industrial Securities
Investment ~ and Trading  Operations Leisure Trading ~ Unallocated Total
HEL

UES REE TRRE OWARE BB APAN it
HKS000  HKSOO0  HKSOOO  HKSUOO  HKSOO0  HKSUO0  HKS000

Tk Tt T T Tt T Tkt

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ~ %pBA K

Assets (3
Segment assets NERE 5804365 2,089,549 77143 360,784 79,676 — 8411
Interests in associates I F-NbA ) = — — 4,604 — 30,095 34,759
Interests in jointly controlled REBEEER

entities — 31,127 — 151,762 — — 182,889
Unallocated corporate assets APABEELE 1,900,998
Consolidated total assets AR 10,530,163
Liabilities ik
Segment liabilicies AR 9356 143,50 3,288 257,907 - — 155413
Current portion of long- term bank  FHF {2 A

borrowings 10,678 — — — — — 10,678
Long-term bank borrowings EogmEs 192,205 170,849 — - - - 363,054
Unallocated corporate lisbilities A FSd#AE 1,393,352
Consolidated total liabilities nAmERE 3,321,223
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B T 5 A B e

8. GROSS PROCEEDS FROM

OPERATIONS, REVENUE AND
BUSINESS SEGMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EFZEZNEF - H=+—HILFE

8. R A - WA R

50 J )

Business segments (Continued) Y o)
2007 —FF L4
Property
Property Development  Industrial Securities
Investment  and Trading  Operations Leisure Trading  Unallocated Total
L
ES 3 Raf TRRE WARE O BERW ATAMN it
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Tt Tt T Tt Tt Tt Tt
OTHER INFORMATION EEn
Capital additions to property, VEN I
plant and equipment RE 10,129 1,194 1,473 981 - 1,709 15,486
Capital additions to propercies ~ BERYEEERE
under development - 437,737 - - - - 437,737
Capital additions to investment ~ FEHERE
properties 6,620 — — — — — 6,620
Depreciation of property, EN EVE Ui
plant equipment 10,441 1,206 3,490 15,484 — 921 31,602
Amortisation of lease premium T E% 5
for land - — 052 5,293 — 549 6,496
Bad debts written off and SR SRR A
allowance for bad and doubtful
debes 177 3,510 5,807 — = = 9,494
Net gain (loss) on disposal of HEWE - R Rtz
property, plant and equipment, U ( B#) §4 €
net of written off Bl 08 — (26) 37 — (1) 78
Geographical segments Y e N g ]

The Group’s operations and assets are substantially situated

in mainland China. Accordingly, no geographical analysis of

information is presented.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B T 5 A B e

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EFZEZNEF - H=+—HILFE

9. OTHER INCOME 9. JAbWA
2008 2007
—RENE 2 w2
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#x T
Other income included: AU A LFE -
Interest income FlE kA 25,219 24,158
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and &Y ~ g5 Kkt K+
equipment and lease premium on land, E#E A2 38 - o
net of written off B fi e 4 %E 23,404 78
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale B AT e B s 2 R
investments — 90,631
Recycling of gain from equity on disposal [R5 H ] it & 45 & i 5 #E 4
of available-for-sale investments R 2 I — 3,946
Net exchange gain [ 53,0 4 1 4H 14,988 11,622
Weritten back of allowance for bad and [ 43 R S MR AR A 2 B R i [
doubtful debts and bad debts recovery 5,724 —
Dividends from available-for-sale Al ROE 2 IR IR
investments 36,601 32,765
Income from distribution of broadcasting #5417 HEHEZ UL A
right — 1,970
10. OTHER EXPENSES 10. Jofb %%
2008 2007
“RENE o2 S S
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#x T
Bad debts written off and allowance SRR B K SRR IR
for bad and doubtful debts — 9,494
Amortisation of broadcasting right A% R £ — 1,642
Impairment loss on broadcasting right i B I (E B 4R 4,612 —
4,612 11,136
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B T 5 A B e

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EFZEZNEF - H=+—HILFE

11. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 11. BB i e A1
2008 2007
ZEREBN\E CERELA
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T T#T
Profit before taxation has been A B J6s A1) 2L 0 BR

arrived at after charging:

Staff costs ISR N 54,946 63,822
Share options expenses i P ¢ — 28,321
Provident fund scheme contributions INFE AR K 3,946 3,315
Total staff costs (Note) B8 T NAS (B 2E) 58,892 95,458
Auditors’ remuneration 1% BRI 4= 2,738 2,731
Depreciation of property, W~ Wm KT

plant and equipment 24,971 31,602
Amortisation of lease premium for land + b FH B R

(included in administrative expenses) (FFEAATECE ) 6,413 6,496
Minimum lease payment under KT 2 K FH 4

operating leases 6,471 2,658
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses  filso /4 2t J 2 77 B A 854,723 141,845
and after crediting: WEFA -
Gross rental income from investment ELS-LUE YA VO i)

properties 69,907 53,238
Less: direct operating expenses from W FNEARERAZRE

investment properties that generated Y22 BiEEE
rental income during the year
(12,552) (6,628)

Net rental income from investment BoE ) 2L U A B R

properties 57,355 46,610
Dividends from investments held for RrERE 2 BEIRA (FFAFE

trading (included in net (loss) gain in BREZ () I F )

investments held for trading) 1,371 1,598
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B T 05 A B e

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZEZNEF+ - H=+—HILFEF

11. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

Note:

The total staff costs included emoluments paid to Directors as

Wit :

11. BB Wi % A )

BMETHACEN TEFZMEWT ¢

follows:
Salaries, Employer’s
allowances Discretionary  contribution ~ Share options
and other bonus to pension expenses Total
Name of Director fuya Fees benefits (Note) scheme (Note) ~ emoluments
Hid M WiE  BRBK O WBERR
WweE  RIbEA (it it (Hit) 4 4880
HK000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000
T T T T T T
2008 “ERN\E
Executive directors Wi
Madam Hsu Feng % Wit — 9,094 — 12 — 9,106
Mr. Tong Albert b R AGibiea — 1,799 — 12 — 1,811
Mr. Tong Chi Kar Charles GTEEE — 235 — 3 — 238
Mr. Chuang Hsiao-Chen KA = 1,471 = = = 1,471
Independent non-executive directors B AT
Madam Tung Wai Yee HEETL 144 — — — — 144
Mr. Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar (Y S 94 — — — — 94
Mr. Lee Chan Fai By 94 — — — — 94
332 12,599 — 27 — 12,958
2007 "R
Executive directors Wi
Madam Hsu Feng & Mzt — 8,548 — 12 1,349 9,909
Mr. Tong Albert b R Aribea = 1,274 7,500 12 13,486 22,272
Mr. Chuang Hsiao-Chen TR RS — 1,313 1,380 = = 2,693
Independent non-executive directors RS i
Madam Tung Wai Yee HEELL 144 — — — — 144
Mr. Cheung Siu Ping, Oscar (Y S 84 — — — — 84
M. Lee Chan Fai g 84 = = = = 84
312 11,135 8,880 24 14,835 35,186
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B T 05 A B e

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZEZNEF+ - H=+—HILFEF

11. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Coninued) 11. BRBL % A )

Note: Mzt -

—  Share option expenses represented fair value of share options — R RCRE R T 2 A R A I R A
that enabled the holders to subscribe for shares of the TEREA N B84 58 1 A8 2 w) B 3 1) B st
Company under the share option scheme at the date of grant RE (AN 2 15 47 6 R % 8 H 92T
charged to the consolidated income statement during the year {8 > A BH i IRE 22 R 2 91 A 556 A1
disregarding whether the options have been exercised or not. KN o

—  Discretionary bonus is determined by reference to the — T 8% 4 R 4R A R 3E S 0 SR BT
individual performance of Directors and approved by the E o A eTFhFMERE G HE
remuneration committee/the Board of Directors. JaHtA o

No Directors waived any emoluments for both years. A T A 4E B P A S 5 AT e T

é o

For the year ended 31st December, 2008, three (2007: BEZZNE+_H=+—HIL%#

three) of the five highest paid individuals of the Group were BE A 4R [ B s T 2 A N e

Directors. The aggregate emoluments of the remaining two A CZEELE D =) BES

(2007: two) highest paid individuals were as follows: HER R (. FFLAF © W) =

[N S Lo E L (T
2008 2007
ZEENA “EETLE
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#7x T#T
Basic salaries, housing allowances, other AR BRER - HAlE
allowances and benefits in kind 1 K B W) R %5 2,834 17,025
Provident fund scheme contributions INFEEFTEIHEER 12 12
2,846 17,037
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B T 5 A B e

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EFZEZNEF - H=+—HILFE

11. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Coninued) 11. BRBL % A )

The number of these individuals whose emoluments fell A PG I3 E NN &)
within the following band is as follows: B
Emoluments 4 Number of staff
BT A%
2008 2007

ZEENA —ETLEF

Not exceeding HK$1,000,000 N 1,000,000 # 7T 1 —
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 # I % 2,000,000 # 7T 1 —
HK$3,500,000 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,000 ¥ 7C 2 4,000,000 % 75 — 1
HK$13,000,000 - HK$13,500,000 13,000,000 # 7T % 13,500,000 % 7T — 1
2 2
12. FINANCE COSTS 12. B
2008 2007
ZEENA “EFERLE
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#7x T#T
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable N TLAE N R BUE IR 2 SRAT &
within five years A AE 26,941 33,003
Less: interest capitalised (Note 19) I EAAL RS (Bt 19) (4,699) (13,512)
22,242 19,491
Borrowing cost capitalised during the year arose from specific A AE FE B AE B AL 2 A6 B R TR B R
borrowings. TEMEE o
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B T 5 A B e

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EFZEZNEF - H=+—HILFE

13. TAXATION 13. B
2008 2007
e 29\ 2 “ETLHF
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#7x F#TT
The charge comprises: S LS
PRC (other than Hong Kong) Enterprise AL HE T HRA R KEE
Income Tax calculated at tax rates W A Rl AR I 2 BLAT Rl %
prevailing in the respective jurisdictions A2 P CREREEE) A
where the relevant individual group ESJELY)
companies operate 142,228 28,703
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) o 5] - b 3 E 349,555 124,798
Hong Kong Profits Tax FWE A — 13
(Overprovision) underprovision AR B GREBEA M) BHAL
in prior years
— PRC (other than Hong Kong) — R (AN SR 2
Enterprise Income Tax 5 Fi (2,000) 114
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — HHEFEE 21 —
489,804 153,628
Increase in opening deferred tax balances & #EF TE HAH) 45 i (R 48 I Bl 2R
resulting from an increase in the T 2 Ha
applicable tax rate — 52,724
Deferred tax (credit) charge (Noze 31) PR SE B A (H840) 32 H
(Htit31) (5,435) 854,490
Total tax charges for the year A JIE i TE BE S 4A 5 484,369 1,060,842
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B T 5 A B e

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EFZEZNEF - H=+—HILFE

13. TAXATION (Continued)

On 26th June, 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed the Revenue Bill 2008 and reduced corporate profits
tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5% effective from the year of
assessment 2008/2009. No provision for Hong Kong Profits
Tax has been made for 2008 as the Group’s profit neither
arose in, nor was derived from Hong Kong (2007: Hong
Kong Profits Tax was calculated at 17.5% of the assessable
profit for the year). Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is

calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

The domestic income tax rate is the income tax rate of the
jurisdiction where the major operations of the Group are
based. The major subsidiaries have their operations located
in Pudong New Area, Shanghai, the PRC, and are subject to
a tax rate of 18% (2007: 15%). On 16th March, 2007, the
PRC promulgated the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income
Tax (the “New Law”) by Order No. 63 of the President of the
PRC. On 6th December, 2007, the State Council of the PRC
issued Implementation Regulations of the New Law. The
New Law and Implementation Regulations changed the tax
rate from 15% to 25% with effect from Ist January, 2008.
There will be a transition period for enterprises that currently
receive preferential tax treatments granted by relevant tax
authorities. Enterprises that are subject to a PRC income
tax rate lower than 25% may continue to enjoy the lower
PRC income tax rate and gradually transfer to the new PRC
income tax rate within five years after the effective date of
the New Law.

According to the New Law which was effective on 1st
January, 2008, the income tax rate is 18% with effect from
Ist January, 2008 and will be gradually increased to 25% in
5 years.

13. BLEH )

WZEENENAZFTANH Fils
SR B F U IR R ]
E) W FFN S EBRIEBLE
JE 2 A 2R 5 BB 17.5% W 2
16.5% o B3 i~ A< 42 18 2 s A 3 9 7 A
REE A A HOE MR T \AE
EREBFEBEE CETLE &
A5 B AR 95 5% 47 B 2 B B U )
17.5% l30) o A o fth ] 0 48 [ 2 A= 2
ol T B 42 A B D 9 [ 2 AT B R AT
B o

BT8R A B3 Bl R e A S ) R
W5 BT i 1) ) I M s ) B R AR T
BB > W) 2 ZEWE LA P B B R
Bl s H TR B R 2 18% (—FF
LA 15%) c RZEFLFE=ZH TN
H o o DA 3 4 56 63 R A
B A AT BEY (T BE D -
TEELET HNH > A BB B
i 87 B0 12 B e A ) o S BV B B
MAGEBL R —FEZN\NFE—H Bt
B 15% 70 B 2 25% o B3 = 4 A0 B Bl
W5 B2 L Bl 4 B 2 A A
o AR 25% 2 B T 45 Bl 2R SR
ZARZE > W] R A S K R B T AR A
o B BOE AN E LAERN > B
AR U T B TR BLR o

MAER ZFENE—H — HABZH
B> B FE/NE—H—-HBZH
1SR R L5 18% » Wi A% i 1 4F 1R & 45 1Y
JHZE 25% o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EFZEZNEF - H=+—HILFE

13. TAXATION (Continued) 13. ﬁﬁ (#5)

A B S H B & 5 R S R 2 BRI ik A

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

taxation per the consolidated income statement as follows: ZHIEWT -
2008 2007
—RENE o2 S
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#x T
Profit before taxation (excluding share B0 i ) CAS .65 B A W
of results of associates and jointly AR REEMEZEE)
controlled entities) 1,095,907 3,623,880
Tax at the domestic income tax rate A M PSR 2R 189% (&2
of 18% (2007: 15%) £ 15%) IR ZBUA 197,263 543,582
Effect of different tax rate in different S TR] ) A IR 2 AN [] A 2R i 28
jurisdiction = 2
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised oA fife WA T s 1B 2 B s 2 5,898 —
Tax effect of expenses that are not i 7 B R i ) IREAS T AR
deductible in determining taxable profit BH 37 2 Bl 5 280 16,220 48,715
Tax effect of income that is not assessable 7 5 B sHA4 s Al 57 B ZELAE S B
in determining taxable profit e A 2 o 5 22 (18,144) (24,601)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not By DAFE R e 58 2 Bl JE s 18
recognised — (8,953)
(Overprovision) underprovision of income  #& A 4F & fir 15 Bi GRE AR 135
taxes in prior years A2 (1,979) 114
PRC LAT o [ - M (B 286,635 106,079
Increase in opening deferred tax resulting %% fE B TE HA4) 4% i (R 788 ) B 2R
from an increase in applicable tax rate ATz B — 52,724
Effect of excess of applicable tax rate JFEE P 108 S v Y 7 P 5 3 o 2 D
for deferred tax over current tax rate AR RS (W 0B FERRBL
on (deductible) taxable temporary Y RFEE R 2
differences (1,524) 343,180
Tax expense for the year AF R TE B <7 484,369 1,060,842

Details of deferred taxation are set out in Note 31.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZEZNEF+ - H=+—HILFEF

14.

15.

DIVIDEND

The Directors recommend a payment of final dividend of 5.5
HK cents per share for the year ended 31st December, 2008
(2007: 5.5 HK cents) which is subject to approval by the

shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

In June 2008, a dividend of 5.5 HK cents per share
amounting to approximately HK$72,760,000 in aggregate
was paid to shareholders as the final dividend for 2007.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the Company is

based on the following data:

14.

15.

JBe &

HFRERRMEE _2ENE+ A
=T —HIEFEZ KBRS ERS.5 #
(= FFLE - 5.5WAl) - HEHEMFR
FROR E JiE B O AR K Bt uE > ]
EE -

“EREEEZ RN EEB S5 BAL

&340 72,760,000 ¥ TE B —EF /4R
35 A R T R«

(32 v

A ) 20 P P R A B A B
WARB A TIRIELU T BB A

2008 2007
SRR\ “EFFuE
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#T T#T
Earnings A
Profit for the year attributable to O IR AR B M K A P v
shareholders of the Company for the TR B 2 AR 7 B R AL 4
purposes of basic earnings per share and & Vi Al
diluted earnings per share 451,986 2,588,314
Number of shares JBe 6y ¥ H
Weighted average number of ordinary F B R AR 8 A 2 3 R
shares for the purposes of basic earnings REST- 24 5
per share 1,324,612,120 1,317,470,088
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares %4 i 2 Y& 75 4 i 52
— exercise of share options — F o B A 852,909 6,763,896
Weighted average number of ordinary LA A AR ) 2 A
shares for the purposes of diluted JINAET-24 81
earnings per share 1,325,465,029  1,324,233,984
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZEZNEF+ - H=+—HILFEF

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. B &EPE

The Group

ARG

HKS$°000

Fr

AT VALUATION A A

At 1st January, 2007 R =EELE—H—H 1,108,930
Additions AN 6,620
Transfer from property under development il 9t R rp ) 2 942,541
Transfer from lease premium for land A+ A S 2 T 286,954
Transfer to property, plant and equipment AW ~ B Kot (60,000)
Gain on fair value changes NV B R i A 2 IR S 3,358,055
Exchange adjustments [FEE 53, ) & 111,080
At 31st December, 2007 W oEELEH=+—H 5,754,180
Additions AN 1,291
Gain on fair value changes N T-{B 5k B B s AR 22 i A 17,535
Exchange adjustments [ b2, i 4 339,794
At 31st December, 2008 R oZENEF A=+ —H 6,112,800

The Group’s investment properties are held outside Hong NEEE R E Y E N T LANEE > RS
Kong and are rented out under operating leases. FHE A -

Tomson Group Limited ¥} i M#5 B A 6]
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EFZEZNEF - H=+—HILFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at
31st December, 2008 have been arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out on that date by a professional
independent valuer not connected with the Group. The
valuation was arrived at by reference to market evidence of
transaction prices for similar properties and the net income
derived from existing tenancies with due allowance for
reversionary income potential of the properties. As a result of
the valuation, a gain on fair value changes of approximately
HK$17,535,000 (2007: HK$3,358,055,000) was credited to
the consolidated income statement for the year ended 3lst
December, 2008.

The Group’s property interests held under operating leases to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted

for as investment properties.

The carrying amount of investment properties held outside

Hong Kong shown above comprises:

16. BEWE =)

RoEZENEFT H=Z+—H &%
ERUES<E7/E VNS S EWLE %= 1R
AT 7 1 28 S S S A (B R AT A (E 1Y
HEEAR - fE2FREWENT S
B E K EE A A A B E A
1B 2% 18 AT LA T R B 2 FH A R
BEBIEH o fh{EMRE - AP EEH) 2 Ik
it 9 55 17,535,000 % 76 (= FE L4
3,358,055,000 % 70 ) EFFA R E —FE
NEFT ZA=+—HILFEEFEZ54F
RN -

AEEELEHEATE > DB &
BV A B (R 9 ) 2R 2 T 4R
FEBEAFHE > WA RIIEREE
7

DL EAE 7 UM A S E Y 3 2 iR
T EHAE

2008 2007
RN\ ZRERELA
HKS$’°000 HK$°000
T-# Fr

Held under: LA A FEA
Long lease =LA 5,025,500 4,622,000
Medium-term lease T HATH A 1,087,300 1,132,180
6,112,800 5,754,180
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EFZEZNEF - H=+—HILFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 17. W3 ~ BB Bt
EQUIPMENT
Furniture,
fixtures and
Leasehold Construction equipment
land and Plant and work-in- and motor
buildings equipment progress vehicles Total
At HEL KEM
3 S 15T TR BRI ikl
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
THET THET T T T
THE GROUP AL
At cost A
At Ist January, 2007 REFFLE-N
—H 403,345 61,909 123 100,674 566,051
Additions NE 10,433 121 758 4,174 15,486
Transferred from investment 1 B % &4 2
properties 60,000 — — — 60,000
Reclassification R D — 833 (833) — —
Disposals e = — — (556) (556)
Written off s — — (58) (1,329) (1,387)
Exchange adjustments HE 5, 8 %6 31,421 4,561 10 6,590 42,582
At 31st December, 2007 REZELES
=3 505,199 67,424 — 109,553 682,176
Additions NE 1,833 653 — 11,542 14,028
Disposals ik (5,530) — — (12,388) (17,918)
Written off iG] = — — (634) (634)
Exchange adjustments T e, 7 29,107 4,191 — 6,029 39,327
At 31st December, 2008 NEEENFEF
H=+—H 530,609 72,268 — 114,102 716,979
Accumulated depreciation Bl
At Ist January, 2007 RZFFELE—H
—H 122,714 51,198 — 78,299 252,211
Provided for the year SER B 25,251 1,312 — 5,039 31,602
Eliminated on disposals AR — = — (473) (473)
Written off s - — — (1,239) (1,239)
Exchange adjustments HE 50, 8 % 9,024 3,771 — 5,009 17,804
At 31st December, 2007 REZELET
=3 156,989 56,281 — 86,635 299,905
Provided for the year R 17,346 1,103 — 6,522 24,971
Eliminated on disposals B (443) — — (10,372) (10,815)
Written off — = — (570) (570)
Exchange adjustments HE 5, 8 4% 9,142 3,497 — 4,728 17,367
At 31st December, 2008 N oEENFEF
A=1T—H 183,034 60,881 — 86,943 330,858
Carrying values W i
At 31st December, 2008 REZZNE+Z
A=+—H 347,575 11,387 — 27,159 386,121
At 31st December, 2007 R ERELELT
A=+—H 348,210 11,143 — 22,918 382,271
The Group’s leasehold land is situated outside Hong Kong 7 4R [ 2 T B b A A s DAAE

under medium-term lease. el Y EFATE = S
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

18. LEASE PREMIUM FOR LAND 18. LB AL &N
The Group’s lease premium for land comprises: AR 2t A A
2008 2007
ZRENAE CEELAF
HKS$’°000 HK$°000
T#x Tt
Leasehold land in Hong Kong: TR UAHA R 2 L -
Medium lease FRHAFE A 392 23,602
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong: FEUSUHARA 2 L
Long lease RHIFRA) 88,099 500,434
88,491 524,036
Analysed for reporting purposes as: B4 H A Ay
Current assets it B 6,411 21,979
Non-current assets RS E 82,080 502,057
88,491 524,036
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

19. PROPERTIES UNDER 19. # P SE
DEVELOPMENT
The Group
4R 1
2008 2007
ZRE)N\E —FEFLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#x T#T
At 1st January, at cost —H—H > AR 526,074 1,278,346
Additions NE 966,168 790,769
Amortisation of lease premium capitalised & ANl = HiFH B 2 FH 4 6
for land — 10,317
Interest capitalised EAAL R B 4,699 13,512
Transferred from lease premium for land et EEH 282,599 —
Transferred to properties held for sale WAGEY X (678,740) (710,486)
Transferred to investment properties AR EY) = (942,541)
Exchange adjustments BEE 50, 8 4% 27,926 86,157
At 31st December, at cost Wt HA=+—H : &l 1,128,726 526,074
Analysed for reporting purposes as: Rt 6 5
Current assets ) & E 1,128,726 491,342
Non-current assets I it B = 34,732
1,128,726 526,074
Property under development under current assets of mMEEEANNBRSYEN
approximately HK$1,106,588,000 (2007: HK$491,342,000) 1,106,588,000 % JT(— F & L 4 :
are expected to realise after twelve months from the balance 491,342,000 ¥ 7C) THEHAS iR 45 A H 4%
sheet date. + 8 H R

Tomson Group Limited 35 i M# B A 6]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 1 5 e A B e

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

20. INTANGIBLE ASSET 20. I ¥
Broadcasting
The Group right
AR g
HK$’000
T#TT
Cost BA
At Ist January, 2007 B oEELHFE—H—H —
Additions VNN 6,254
At 31st December, 2007 and 31st December, 2008 MNoEEELE++—H=+—H K
W_FENE+_H=1+—H 6,254
Amortisation and impairment i 8 B WA
At Ist January, 2007 W _EELFE—~H—H —
Provided for the year AE B 1,642
At 31st December, 2007 MWo_EELE+_H=1+—H 1,642
Impairment E 4,612
At 31st December, 2008 B _EENFE—H=1+—H 6,254
Carrying value W 1 i
At 31st December, 2008 W _EENFE—H=1+—H —
At 31st December, 2007 MWoEELE+_H=1+—H 4,612

The Directors, having considered the market conditions,

expected the future cash inflows arising from the intangible

asset is negligible, the unamortised balance of the intangible
asset which was HK$4,612,000 would not be recoverable

and the full amount was recognised as an impairment loss

in the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31st

December, 2008.

HHREEZEETURZ > HEIEEEER
FEA 2 KRR BLE T A MG > 1T G
B2 AR HESH A5 65 4,612,000 ¥ JC A A B
elml > 2O REE FFNE T
H=1t—HILFEZEGFEE D
YR AEL i i
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

21. GOODWILL 21. B8
The Group
4R 1
HK$°000
F#TT
Cost and carrying value ISR e S i 4L
At 1st January, 2007, RE-EFZLF—A—H
31st December, 2007 “EFEEFETH =+ —H
and 31st December, 2008 K= EE)NFE+_H=+—H 33,288
Goodwill is allocated to the cash generating unit (“CGU”) P T 2 — A & B A B RS B
of a wholly owned subsidiary which is engaged in property FEAE BT > RZ AN EAE T R R K B
development and trading activities. CE S
During the year ended 31st December, 2008, management of EBE_FEZNFE+_H=+—HIE
the Group determined that there was no impairment of the FEAEBERERMRABGE
CGU containing goodwill. A B A PR E o
The recoverable amount of the CGU was determined by B 45 E A LAY T i [m] < B R B 2
management’s past experience, based on the present value Yt FE A8 B 7 - ARG B Y
of the estimated gross profit from selling of properties to be EWENEFBABERSE - 5
developed, taking into the consideration of the prevailing A4 A
market price.
22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 22. R IBB A ) Z HE
The Group
AL
2008 2007
ZRE)NE —FFLF
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#7x T#T
Cost of unlisted investments in associates B s 7l 2 IE BT RCE AR 41,809 41,809
Share of post-acquisition losses and other JFRE Ao S i 452 I 15 % A bt 44
reserves, net of dividend received B 4115 B Y A% B (17,235) (17,444)
24,574 24,365
Amounts due from associates i /N G 10,323 10,394
34,897 34,759
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s

22, R B ARl Z bR )

A AR T W e N WD BB ORI 2

associates is set out below: T
2008 2007
ZRBN\E ZEELE
HKS$’000 HK3$°000
T#x T
Total assets (A 194,824 186,868
Total liabilities FS=Eit (157,661) (151,117)
Net assets FEE 37,163 35,751
Group’s share of associates’ net assets AL B AL B S N B 2 A 24,574 24,365
Year ended Year ended
2008 2007
BE BE
ZRBBN\E ZERFEALAE
IRAEEE R4
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#x Fir
Revenue A 30,987 146,858
Loss for the year A 4R (2,047) (2,599)
Group’s share of associates’ (loss) profit for 745 B 4 E AL B2 N | 2
the year (JE548) %5 A (1,547) 1,239
The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest free Wt

and have no fixed repayment terms.

In the opinion of the Directors, the amounts due from

associates will not be repayable within twelve months of the

balance sheet date and accordingly, the amounts have been

classified as non-current assets.

K

o

VARG OLE: /1T LI - W& 3
-

St
&

EHRS o BB R AT E B R
AP WA R EE - F > %
HIACHIEFR B E E -

Annual Report 2008 4F JE4F



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 1 5 e A B e

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The Group has discontinued to recognise its share of loss
of an associate. The amounts of unrecognised share of loss
of the associate extracted from the relevant management
accounts of the associate, both for the year and cumulatively,

are as follows:

D404,

TR % A i) Z B )

A AR E A% 1 e AR LT AG Y — R
KA Z MG o LUR By R AR 4R 0 Al R
Wz E A F 2R X R ERN &
o JhT Bk B B m A B E LR
H :

2008 2007
—2RAE  —ELA
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#x Tt
Unrecognised share of loss of an associate RAELE N HERR AL — F WS
for the year [ 2 18 — 1,984
Accumulated unrecognised share of loss of RIERIEN — R & AT 2 &
an associate i 6,341 6,341

Details of principal associates at 31st December, 2008 are
included in Note 38.

23. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES

23.

FEBEARN _FFNEFT A
=+ B ZwEE R E 38 -

R BB R

The Group
4R 1
2008 2007
ZRENE —EELF
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#7x T#T
Cost of unlisted investments in jointly NEERFEZF EHRERA
controlled entities 158,307 158,307
Share of post-acquisition profits and other Ak e i 1% Vi ) S HLAh ft 45
reserves, net of dividend received B 115 2 Y B B 40,594 21,629
198,901 179,936
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities & %5 1i 3 K K 513 2,953
199,414 182,889
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

23. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY 23. IR BEEZHERR )

CONTROLLED ENTITIES (Continued)

AR AR B 7 A 3 2 W i 1) B S R

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s

interests in jointly controlled entities is set out below: =R
2008 2007
TRENAE ZERFEALAE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T#x T T
Current assets A 94,146 72,633
Non-current assets JE B E = 127,864 133,039
Current liabilities Wi B & (22,852) (25,526)
Non-current liabilities I B R (257) (210)
Year ended Year ended
2008 2007
BE H,E
BB\ —ERLF
IRARE 1EAFRE
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T#x T T
Income A 108,169 114,701
Expenses S (97,161) (93,762)
The amount due from a jointly controlled entity is unsecured, B A R T AR A E R A
interest free and has no fixed repayment terms. ] R HE R o

In the opinion of the Directors, the amount due from a EHIL > S8 ERKBHENS
A+ = ﬁlﬁ ﬁq{:‘g o Rt > 3

GIAE IR B B

jointly controlled entity will not be repayable within twelve
months of the balance sheet date and accordingly, the amount

have been classified as non-current assets.

Details of principal jointly controlled entity at 31st
December, 2008 are included in Note 38.

FTEEBCENR -FFNFELT A
=+ B ZFEE R 38 -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

INVESTMENTS

Available-for-sale investments as at 31st December, 2008

24, W[t LB B

MNZEENE+H=+—H > A/t
HEREA

comprise:
The Group
AL

2008 2007
ZRZNAE ZEELAF
HKS$’°000 HK3$°000
T#x Fior

Listed investments: LTE
— equity securities listed in Hong Kong — REE LT AR TE S 48,323 102,270
Unlisted equity investments JEETHHE : 49,022 49,022
Club debenture g 515 515
97,860 151,807

As at the balance sheet date, all available-for-sale investments
were stated at fair value, except for those unlisted equity
investments and club debenture, the fair value of which
cannot be measured reliably. Fair value of listed equity
investments have been determined by reference to quoted
market prices. An impairment loss of HK$32,215,000 (2007:
Nil) was recognised for the year ended 31st December, 2008.

The unlisted investments represent investments in private
entities incorporated in the PRC. They are measured at cost
less impairment at each balance sheet date because the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the
Directors of the Company are of the opinion that their values

cannot be measured reliably.

Tomson Group Limited 35 i M# B A 6]
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

25. INVESTMENTS HELD FOR 25. R BE
TRADING

RE_FFNEF A=+ —HRER

Investments held for trading as at 31st December, 2008

include: R :
The Group
AL
2008 2007
ZRZNAE ZEELAF
HKS$’°000 HK$000
T#x Fior
Listed securities: bR
— equity securities listed in Hong Kong — REE LT AR TE S 24,606 58,981
— equity securities listed in Taiwan — REE ET 2 BRATE S — 19,432
24,606 78,413
The fair values of the above investments held for trading are P ERHFEREZ N THEINZERHRK
determined based on the quoted market prices available on 5 Bt BT ik 2 T B (B 1T 7 -
the relevant exchanges.
3 o
26.NET CURRENT ASSETS 26. VB E AT

(a) Trade and other receivables and (a) MEWCE B WAk ~ 30 HE Uk
prepayments Wk B TELAT K JH

The general credit terms of the Group given to trade REEGTHESEF 2 —Bf5
customers are within 60 days. A longer credit period B0 RA - AEMBFHT
may be granted to customers with long business ARMEFRRZEFBRRZE
relationship. The Group seeks to maintain strict control B o A B2 o 3 a B R A O RE
over its outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk. g R R AR ot B R - USRS

b -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

26. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continued) 26.

(a) Trade and other receivables and
prepayments (Continued)

Included in trade and other receivables and prepayments
are trade receivables, net of impairment losses, of
HK$75,235,000 (2007: HK$46,320,000) and their

aged analysis as at the balance sheet date is as follows:

i T )

(a) MRS ek ~ JU il M
Wik B AT sk O (42)

T U B Bk~ Al R o R K
B FEAS O N 0456 e Ui B ) R K
75,235,000 75 7T (48 411 b5 ek (L Je5 18 )
(ZFZ L 46,320,000 70) >
HR4EA B Z REE AT

The Group
A S

2008 2007
“RENE —“EFFLE
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#7x T
0 — 3 months 3 =1 A 60,883 38,816
4 — 6 months ey (DS 4,706 104
7 — 12 months &=+ A 9,646 6,794
over 1 year —4EPL — 606
75,235 46,320

The Group has made impairment for trade receivables
over one year because historical experience is such
that receivables that are past due beyond one year are
generally not recoverable. Included in the Group’s trade
receivable balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$47,506,000 (2007: HK$22,365,000)
which are past due but not provided for impairment
loss. These receivables relate to a number of independent
customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances. The average age of these receivables
is 180 days (2007: 180 days).
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AEBME K —F U L2 BUE SRR
PE W - i IR 2 408 i 458 i B s o 1
—AE DL b2 R R O R i (] o
AL 2 REWE 5 R A R T m
A i L S A I M s 4R B A 2 U
iR > HHARME G 3£ 47,506,000 # 7T
(ZFFLA 22,365,000 00) © M55
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

26. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continued)

(a) Trade and other receivables and
prepayments (Continued)

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not

26. Uit 1y A AL )

(a) MRS ek ~ JU il M
Wik B AT sk O (42)

A S5 R A B 2 R WA 0 R K

impaired: ZHREA TR
The Group
A 4R 1

2008 2007
ZEENE —ETEHF
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x T#T
61 — 90 days 61 £ 90K 47,000 17,988
91 — 180 days 91 £ 180 K 54 79
181 — 365 days 181 £ 365K 452 3,692
Over 1 year —4EDL E — 606
Total &=t 47,506 22,365

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts on trade

JE W B B B R 2 R R 1R A 2

receivables: ) :
The Group
ALM
2008 2007
— 2 2% —ETEHF
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x TH#IT
Balance at beginning of the year SRR 45 i 11,665 5,454
Impairment losses recognised on trade  H ML 7 B it 52
receivables ZWAEEH 113 5,727
Reversal of impairment losses on AR A ] 5 5 43 [
recovery of debts RN, R (5,992) —
Exchange adjustments BEE ¢, i & 735 484
Balance at end of the year A A ak 6,521 11,665
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

26. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continued)

(a) Trade and other receivables and
prepayments (Continued)

Other receivables with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$2,787,000 (2007: HK$2,494,000) are individually
impaired as the amount is unlikely to be recovered from

the relevant debtors.

Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts

26. Uit 1y A AL )

(a) MRS ek ~ JU il M
Wik B AT sk O (42)

S A AR T 481 4% 2,787,000 #5 UG (—
TR LAE ¢ 2,494,000 #70) 2 HAth
JFEE S SR K T e B A B A RO
W lET s e AR I RAE o

S R 2 S5 8 M 2 5

on other receivables: g -
The Group
A1
2008 2007
—RENE TERFLE
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#7x Ti#oC
Balance at beginning of the year SEXT) 45 i 2,494 2,106
Impairment losses recognised on other R Al 8 AR K R Bk
receivables (HiE1E 145 226
Recovery of impairment loss £ 1] i AE s 18 (7) =
Exchange adjustments FE 52, ) % 155 162
Balance at end of the year FRAE R
2,787 2,494

During the year, the Group has directly written
off certain irrecoverable other receivables to the
consolidated income statement of approximately
HK$17,000 (2007: HK$3,541,000) as result of
compromised settlement with the relevant debtors. The

Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

26. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continued) 26. i B ¥ A T )

(b) Inventories (b) R
Details of inventories are as follows: HEEFEWT -
The Group
AL

2008 2007
ZRZNAE ZEELAF
HKS$’°000 HK3$°000
T#x Fior
Raw materials JERL 5,266 5,275
Work-in-progress 1E 5 1,152 506
Finished goods R 8,054 6,405
Packaging materials and accessories A1 AR K e A 8,900 6,794
23,372 18,980

(c) Trade and other payables and accruals

(c) MEAT RS Mook ~ JU b M A%
Miesk B T 3 ¢

TEJEAT & 5 Wk~ At R AT 3K
B TE A 2 0L E AT B 5 IR AR
218,137,000 7o (—FE L 4 :
259,858,000 J6) > H it &5 H H

Included in trade and other payables and accruals
are trade payables of HK$218,137,000 (2007:
HK$259,858,000) and their aged analysis as at the

balance sheet date is as follows:

Z RIS AT R
The Group
AL
2008 2007
RN BB
HKS$’°000 HK$°000
T#x Fit T
0 — 3 months E =l H 183,479 228,633
4 — 6 months e (D2 529 10
7 — 12 months &=+ -MAH 33 4,863
over 1 year —EPl 34,096 26,352
218,137 259,858
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

26. NET CURRENT ASSETS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Trade and other payables and accruals
(Continued)

The average credit period on purchases is 90 days. The
Group has financial risk management policies in place

to ensure that all payables within the credit timeframe.

Cash and bank balances

The amounts comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits at market interest rates
ranging from 0.001 % to 8.63% per annum (2007:
0.72% to 6.1% per annum) with an original maturity of

three months or less.

Included in cash and bank balances are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the

functional currency of the entities to which they relate:

26. Uit 1y A AL )

(c)

(d)

REAS BB Wk ~ I il B A
Wk B F B £t 4)

MR ZFHFEEMA 0K « A4k
VL ) S A Ja gt A B IR SR LA i
PRI A B AT BRS04 5 30 T A8

i
Bl 4G B AT 55 0%

CREAEAELBEA 2B E KR
AR A =k AR B A A R A R AT AF
o Hol 5 AR R AT 0.001%
£8.63% (—FE L4 « 4 H %
0.72% £ 6.1%) °

TEB & RRITHERA - AR EM
ZIRER MG Z WS

The Group
%M
2008 2007
SRENE EELE
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#7T FET
USD B> 211,513 219,635
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. JBEAR
Number of shares Amount
Bty ¥ H 2%
2008 2007 2008 2007
ZER)\HE ZRELE ZEBNE "R
HK$’000 HK$°000
T#x T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each &M {H0.50 ¥ 7T.2
5 i
Authorised HE
— Balance as at Ist January and — R —=HA—HEkt=
31st December H=1+—Hz &% 1,500,000,000 1,500,000,000 750,000 750,000
Issued and fully paid BB LEHLE
— Balance as at Ist January ——H—HZ&H%  1,317,419,940  1317,471,940 658,710 658,736
— Exercise of share options — T R 12,240,000 — 6,120 —
— Shares repurchased and cancelled — EL[2 % K ok 85 i { (6,150,000) (52,000) (3,075) (26)
— Balance as at 31st December — M ZH=+—H
pa i 1,323,509,940 1,317,419,940 661,755 658,710
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

27. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 27.

During 2008, the Company repurchased a total of
6,150,000 (2007: 52,000) of its own shares on the Stock
Exchange at a price of HK$1.19 to HK$2.95 per share, for
a total consideration, before expenses, of approximately
HK$9,073,000 (2007: HK$148,000). The repurchased shares
were cancelled and an amount equivalent to the nominal
value of these shares of HK$3,075,000 (2007: HK$26,000)
was transferred from share capital to the capital redemption
reserve. The consideration paid on the repurchased shares was
charged against the retained earnings.

WA 4)

TR NAE > RN DA 1.19
JG £ 2.95 i 0 I 18 4% A Bk 22 i B ] 3
6,150,000 & (= F F £ 4F : 52,000 1% )
AN d Ry > BAERFE RS 5
9,073,000 #5 76 (— & & 5 4F : 148,000
WEI0) o BER AR B TSN SR E
LU BT (E 2 3,075,000 W G (- EE
L4 1 26,000 #5 TT) 1 FKIE B AL A Bl
A G A NE 8] o 5 o B A I [m] B 2 AR
{8 BIAE P B s A0 R o

Number of
ordinary Price per share Aggregate
shares of )% e 1 consideration
Date of purchase A BB HK$0.50 each Highest Lowest paid
o508 82
HEB R EH 54 7407 A AR
HK$ HK$ HK$°000
BT BT THT
January 2008 ZEZENEFE—H 758,000 2.95 2.45 2,035
July 2008 “EENELH 414,000 1.95 1.93 806
October 2008 “ZENEHA 4,978,000 130 1.19 6,232
6,150,000 9,073

28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 28.

TRANSACTIONS

A share option scheme was adopted by the Company
pursuant to a resolution passed on 29th May, 2002 (the
“Scheme”). The Scheme was set up for the primary purpose
to provide incentives or rewards to selected persons for their
contribution to the Group or any entity in which the Group
holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity”). Subject to
carlier termination by the Company in general meeting or by
the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”), the
Scheme shall be valid and effective till 28th May, 2012. After
the expiry of such valid period, no further options will be
offered or granted but in all other respects the provisions of
the Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 28. JEHES AT R 5 )

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Under the Scheme, the Board may grant options to (i) any
employee or proposed employee (whether full time or part
time) of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity,
including any executive director of any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity; or (ii) any non-executive
director (including independent non-executive director) of
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; or (iii)
any adviser, consultant, customer and supplier of goods or
services to any member of the Group or any Invested Entity
who have contributed or will contribute to the Group; or (iv)
any sharecholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member

of the Group or any Invested Entity.

The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect
of which options may be granted under the Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 108,474,911 shares, being 10% of the
total number of shares of the Company in issue as at the date
of adoption of the Scheme, unless shareholders’ approval of
the Company has been obtained. The total number of shares
of the Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted and to be granted to each participant or
grantee (including exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of grant (the
“Individual Limit”). Any further grant of options in excess
of the Individual Limit must be subject to shareholders’
approval in general meeting with such participant and his or

her associates abstaining from voting.

R4 J b it ) B R AT LR A
A5 AR ¢ () A S AR TR B
A AT A By BB A 2 AT T R B SO
R B CA i 2 Bk B GR) - B 15 A< 46 )
EAT AR B 2 7 BT ] BT 8 E AR 2 AT
TATE S 5 B (i) AR EETR B 2
R AT A B B0 A 2 AT AT JE B AT
H(EFEBLERATER) 5 B0 1T
] 5 3 217 355 A 42 A o R 2
N~ R B K A B BT T R B
2% T BT AT BT 45 B A R 14 B ) B
B 2 e 5 B Giv) AR BT A A
) AT o iy 856 M 2 AT T R > 3R
A A AT AT A B 2 ) A AT T B8 A
WEEATAEATRE I AL IR A -

R I A8 A 28\ R 22 dik oE > AR BRI
JRE 51 8] W] B2 2 R RE T 85 AT 2
Ay w) B B R AR AR BOAS T R
108,474,911 B > BI A% 24 & 74 £7
JERERH B R 2 B8 R s
10% ° B4 2 BE UK T & E 2
B R AR @A R
TEIZ BRI 2 T IRORE (B 46 E AT &
W RAT 838 ) T DAAT {6 R 1T B AT Bt g
T2 AN F e LB A5 i
W FRE R 5 H 2 AR N ) EL BT R A B H
Z 1% ([ME R ERR D) o fif[m) 28 AT
52t 8 R A - R 2 W R > R ZH AR
JBE AR B R B e > T A B2 B
HREBB ALY EES L ERE
E o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 28. JEHES AT R 5 )

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The acceptance of an offer of granting an option must be
made within 28 days from the date on which such offer is
made with a non-refundable payment of HK$1 from the
grantee to the Company by way of consideration for the grant
thereof. An option may be exercised at any time during a
period as the Board may determine which shall not be more
than 10 years commencing from the date of grant of option.
Save as determined by the Board and provided in the offer of
the relevant options, there is no minimum period for which
an option must be held before it can be exercised under the
Scheme. The subscription price per share of the Company in
respect of any option granted under the Scheme shall be such
price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine,
save that such price will not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of the option,
which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of
the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets on the five business days immediately preceding the
date of offer of the option; and (iii) the nominal value of the

shares on the date of offer.

Under the Scheme, 43,240,000 shares of the Company were
issued upon exercise of share options in 2003, 2005 and
2008. Therefore, the maximum number of shares available
for issue under the Scheme is 65,234,911, representing
approximately 4.93% of the Company’s existing issued share

capital at balance sheet date.

There was no share option granted during the year ended 31st
December, 2008.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEFT+ - H=Z+—HILFE

28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 28.

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Details of share options granted during the years ended 31st

December, 2007 were as follows:

JBHE A 22 By )

BE-FZZTLET_HA=+—HIL%
BERR th 2 WIS A T

Fair value of share

Exercise price option at grant
Date of grant Exercise period per share date per unit
U B A
34 REHEH
R 1 A7 B4 Z AV
BT BT
13th November, 2007
—FFEE+—AT=H
— Directors 13/11/07 — 12/11/15 3.644 1.0374
—#E
— Employee 13/11/07 — 12/11/15 3.644 1.0374
—ER

In accordance with the terms of the share-based arrangement,
options issued during the financial year ended 31st December,

2007 vested on the date of grant.

The fair value of the share options at grant dates were priced
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model (“The Model”).
Where relevant, the expected life used in the model has been
adjusted based on management’s best estimate for the effects
of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations. Expected volatility is based on the historical
share price volatility. The historical volatility of the Company
was extracted from Bloomberg based on 260 trading days

with an annualisation factor of 260.

R L P2 e MBE_FF
tHEF A=+ — H I BB BT
Z VR Bt HRT -

AR E S G BRSSP (E - R AR
71 i &F W0 3 B e A B (R R
KD FTE « MBA > sz Hat i
JH AR S AR 48 A B SR T A
S AT ORI B AT 5 R R R 2
FERE AL AR 0 o BT IR R T B R
JRE St M {8 99 W 5 S o AR D A R
PR AR A AL AR SE 260 188 3 H 1
EORFAN A 4F 2 B RO 260 FHE
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 # % —FF /N\FE -+ =+—

28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Inputs into The Model

H k4R

28. JBCHE S A 22 B can)

A % B Z ¥R

Granted on
13th November, 2007

Directors and Employee

REZZFLE T A=A

P R B
Grant date share price (HK$) % H RS (#soT) 3.64
Exercise price (HK$) FrEAE (o) 3.644
Expected volatility T R 2 40.89%
Expected option life i F3E A TR A 3.17 years £
Expected dividend yield HFHR R 1.37%
Risk-free interest rate A o [ | 2R 2.6%

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s

share options held by Directors and employees during the

TRWEARNFAEE LR B AEAFE
A O B E A B -

year.

Outstanding Outstanding

at 1st Exercised at 31st

January 2008 during 2008 December 2008

RN R RNE

—H—H ZZRFNE FH=ET—H

Date of grant B B r AR Ry B AT

6th October, 2005 “ERTRAEFTHNH

— Directors — HH 11,000,000 (11,000,000) —
24th July, 2006 TERENFELHA M H

— Directors — EH 4,000,000 — 4,000,000

— Employees — REA 9,300,000 (1,240,000) 8,060,000
13th November, 2007 —EZELE+—HA+=H

— Directors — FH 14,300,000 — 14,300,000

— Employee/Director (Note) — RE () 13,000,000 = 13,000,000

51,600,000 (12,240,000) 39,360,000

Exercisable at the end

of the year ] A AT
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEFT+ - H=Z+—HILFE

28. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 28. JBEHE AT R 5 )

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

In respect of the share options exercised during the year,
the weighted average share price at the dates of exercise
were HK$2.577 and HK$2.734 for Director and employees

respectively.

Note: The employee was appointed as director of the Company in
October 2008.

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s

share options held by Directors and employees during prior

B RERNITEZ BEREN S - &5
KA B iR A7 H 8 22 T #E 7 24 A 4y
A A 2.577 W TC I 2.734 W TC ©

Mt iR BN SRR NE + A ERAL
A AR ES

TR EA N A EE KRB AR
BEFRA W WS ) -

year.

Outstanding Outstanding
at Ist Granted at 31st
January 2007 during 2007  December 2007
R EE LA N EE LA
—H—H “EZEREF +—H=+—H
Date of grant i H WA T B W AA T
6th October, 2005 “EERAFE+THISH
— Directors — FEH 11,000,000 — 11,000,000
24th July, 2006 TERETNFELH M H
— Directors — FEH 4,000,000 — 4,000,000
— Employees —EE 9,300,000 — 9,300,000
13th November, 2007 —EEELE++—H+=H
— Directors — EwH — 14,300,000 14,300,000
— Employee — BB — 13,000,000 13,000,000
24,300,000 27,300,000 51,600,000
Exercisable at the end
of the year ] A R AT 51,600,000

The Group recognised the total expense of HK$28,321,000

for the year ended 31st December, 2007 in relation to share

REEZZFTEF T HA=+—HI
HERE > B AR AN R 2 TR
options granted by the Company. PR A8 B S 4% 28,321,000 #5 T ©
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

29. RESERVES AND MINORITY

INTERESTS

29. fifi fii B A B b hE Ak

Foreign
Capital  currencies
Share Special  redemption  translation
premium reserves reserve reserves
wh o
Bepriefe  RRIGGE OB GG
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Fi#T FiBT FiBT Fifr
THE GROUP ARG
Balance at st January, 2007 REEFLFE—A—H 2 &% 1,940,007 296,276 10,957 239,677
Increase in translation reserve SR BN — — — 277,174
Share of reserves of associates and jointly JEMG AT R A B i
controlled entities — — — —
Gain on changes in fair value of it i B B N T (S B IR e A
available-for-sale investments 2t — — — —
Net income recognised directly in equity HERRMER 2 FIA — — — 277,174
Profit (loss) for the year A (18 — — - -
Release upon revaluation of investment properties 145 4] 26 H {4 iy = — — —
Release upon sales of properties held for sale TN B ) 2 e — — — —
Release from investment reserve on disposal A ] it R R
of available-for-sale investments s — — — _
Total recognised income for the year SN R 2 B — — — 277,174
Share options expenses T P HE 2 = = = =
Repurchase of shares [ i P A7 — — 26 —
Transferred from retained earnings to reserves (i B Vi M 2 ek Af — — — _
Balance at 31st December, 2007 NEEZELEF A=+ —H 2 & 1,940,007 296,276 10,983 516,851
Increase in translation reserve SR 2 B = = = 426,487
Share of reserves of associates and jointly MBS A B LA B S
controlled entities — — _ _
Loss on changes in fair value of available-for-sale T ikt #5 B/ - (A8 8h b e 4
investments 2 — — _ _
Net income recognised directly in equity BRI ESR Z B IA — — — 426,487
Profit for the year AR — — — —
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments At E R 2 B E e — = = —
Release upon sales of properties held for sale At B o B O S R — - - —
Total recognised income for the year T E RERR 2 A — — — 426,487
Repurchase of shares [1] AR PB4 = = 3,075 =
Exercise of share options Tt 6 s e 16,462 = — =
Transfer upon exercise of share options TN [ B 55 i 4,312 = = _—
Transferred from retained earnings to reserves L B s o 2 ot A = = = =
Payment for reduction of registered capital R ol A A o R 2 ] 20
to a minority shareholder of a subsidiary AT = = = =
Dividend paid for 2007 R’ - ZTLERE — — — —
Balance at 31st December, 2008 WEZEEF+ A =4 —H 2465 1,960,781 296,276 14,058 943,338
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

29. RESERVES AND MINORITY 29. fifi fii Ko 2 BB BE 2% 40)
INTERESTS (Continued)

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

AR R R AT N MEAY
Share of
reserves
of associates
& jointly  Enterprises Share Statutory
controlled  expansion  Investment option surplus  Reserve on Retained Minority
entities reserve reserve reserve reserve  acquisition earnings Total interests Total
WA 2
RARGE &% Ji i iy »Y
X WRGEE B Bl BB BORGHE RN it Bt wit

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TibTT FHET T T Tl FHET FH#T T Tl T

13,917 44,865 (13,440) 11,506 31,091 (165,440) 930,269 3,339,685 158,231 3,497,916
— — — — — — — 277,174 11,503 288,677
12,256 = = — — — — 12,256 — 12,256
— = 39,118 = = = = 39,118 = 39,118
12,256 = 39,118 = = = = 328,548 11,503 340,051
— — — — — — 2588314 2,588,314 (3,098) 2,585,216

= = = = = 100,570 — 100,570 — 100,570

— — — — — 2,224 — 2,224 — 2,224

= = (3,946) = = = = (3,946) = (3,946)
12,256 = 35,172 = = 102,794 2,588,314 3,015,710 8,405 3,024,115
— — — 28,321 — — — 28,321 — 28,321

- _ _ _ _ — (148) (122) — (122)

— — — — 37,440 — (37,440) — — —
26,173 44,865 21,732 39,827 68,531 (62,646) 3,480,995 6,383,594 166,636 6,550,230
— — — — — — — 426,487 10,282 436,769
12,999 — = = = = — 12,999 = 12,999
— — (53,947) — — — — (53,947) — (53,947)
12,999 = (53,947) = = = — 385,539 10,282 395,821
— — — — — — 451,986 451,986 169,013 620,999

— — 32,215 — — — — 32,215 — 32,215

_ _ _ — — 841 — 841 — 841
12,999 = (21,732) — — 841 451,986 870,581 179,295 1,049,876
— — — — — — (9,101) (6,026) — (6,026)

— — — — — — — 16,462 — 16,462

— — — (4,312) — — — — — —
365 — — — — — (365) — — —
— — — — — — — — (6,625) (6,625)

— — — — — — (72,760) (72,760) = (72,760)
39,537 44,865 — 35,515 68,531 (61,805) 3,850,755 7,191,851 339,306 7,531,157
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

29. RESERVES AND MINORITY 29. fifi fii Ko 2 BB BE 2% 40)

INTERESTS (Continued)

Capital Share
Share  redemption option  Contributed Retained
premium reserve reserve surplus earnings Total
%k IR
Bebrenl el G MARE  RERN At
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
T#T T T#T T T T#T
THE COMPANY AR
Balance at Ist January, 2007 NETLAE
—H—HZ &t 1,940,007 10,957 11,506 327,645 197866 2,487,981
Loss for the year 1R = — — — (35,072) (35,072)
Share options expenses M = — 28,321 — = 28,321
Repurchase of shares ] B8 e 17 — 26 — — (148) (122)
Balance at st January, 2008 W EEEN\E
—f—HZ &% 1,940,007 10,983 39,827 327,645 162,646 2,481,108
Profit for the year AR Y A = = — — 177,879 177,879
Repurchase of shares [ A7 — 3,075 — — (9,101) (6,026)
Exercise of Share options il G 16,462 = — = = 16,462
Transfer upon exercise of TR O A A
share options 4312 = (4,312) = = =
Dividend paid for 2007 i € S - - - - (72,760) (72,760)
Balance at 31st December, 2008  RZ=ZZENE+H
=t—HZE&H 1,960,781 14,058 35,515 327,645 258,664 2,596,663

The special reserves of the Group arose from the difference

between the aggregate amount of the then share capital

and share premium account of Tomson Investment Limited

(“TIL”), the former holding company of the Group, and the

nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued pursuant to

a scheme of arrangement in 1989.

The enterprises expansion reserve is an appropriation from

retained earnings in relation to tax concession granted by the

relevant government authorities. This reserve is distributable

only for the future development or expansion of that company

where concession is granted.

Tomson Group Limited 35 i M# B A 6]

AR T 2 Aol R A A T ST T 2
e 2~ m G BB A R R (T B
B ) I A B S i R A R B AR
O AR — JUN VAR AR 3% — JE Tih sl w381
AT 2 H{HZ 2290 -

A 36 8% Rl A ) i A BR BT B A T
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1 IR AT A A A 1 R 2 4wl H
REFREIRE A -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

29. RESERVES AND MINORITY 29. fifi fii Ko 2 BB BE 2% 40)

INTERESTS (Continued)

The statutory surplus reserve is an appropriation from
retained earnings by the PRC subsidiaries of the Group. In
accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group are required to allocate 10% of
their profit after tax to the statutory surplus reserve (“SSR”)
until such reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital of
that subsidiary. The SSR may be converted to increase share
capital subject to certain restrictions set out in the Company
Law of the PRC.

Share of reserve of associates and jointly controlled entities
mainly represents share of foreign currencies translation
reserves, investment reserve of associates and jointly

controlled entities.

Capital redemption reserve arose from repurchase of shares.
The amounts represent the nominal amount of the shares

repurchased.

Reserve on acquisition arose on partial acquisition of interest
in subsidiary, being the excess of the fair value of the Group’s
share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of the subsidiary at the date of acquisition over
the share of their carrying value of the underlying assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary. When the identifiable assets are
revalued or disposed of, the relevant amount of the reserve
on acquisition will be released to the consolidated income

statement.

Of the retained earnings of HK$3,850,755,000 (2007:
HK$3,480,995,000), retained profits of HK$61,336,000
(2007: HK$50,328,000) are attributable to jointly controlled
entities and accumulated losses of HK$2,227,000 (2007:
HK$680,000) are attributable to associates.

5 L B Al e A 4 LAY R I Y RS
FAE FR B v P B 4 A OH o ARARC
NBRIETNE 2~ 7k - A5 B i A
J& > w1 28 23 TS R B A% ik A Y 10% 2 3%
E AL R o B R e e BE B
W I 2> 1 09 5 AR B9 50% o ¥ 2 AL
Rl A TR DU R R R - M
JE 1 IR A B 9 2 N R SR B 4 ]
) I R L R o

FEAG T 2 W BB B A S il £
5 AL W8 A W RN 5 8 A 3 2 A S
Bl R BB A -

AR A [ ol A R T R0 o %
2oy W T O 5 B S

T BT A Y JB 2 ) 2 i R o W
ik 48 2 7 2R T el S A B TS Wi H A
o Bf Ja 23 ) 2wl i A AR MK
SRR 2 1 (L R T B A % MY 4 W
AR B P B B R T (L o T kA
¥ T R B kB o A R R £
B AL S FIE LT -

AR B s ) 3,850,755,000 #5 G (— &
L4 ¢ 3,480,995,000%5 76 ) H o R
i 7 61,336,000 #5 70 ( —F F L A4F
50,328,000 #5 J0) 5 BEAL A& % > T
21 2,227,000 # 0 (—FE LA
680,000 ¥ 7T ) £ EAG B4 /A ) o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

30. LONG-TERM BANK BORROWINGS 30.

RT3

The Group
A 4R
2008 2007
ZEENE —EFFEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x T#T
Bank loans, secured SRITE R A K 385,618 373,732
Less: Amount repayable within one year I AR B A R — 4R RZH
included in current liabilities &5 ) 2K IE (192,809) (10,678)
192,809 363,054
Carrying amount repayable: JRME IR 2 MR TE A -
Within one year —AEA 192,809 10,678
More than one year, but not exceeding — A RA AEAS R A AT
two years 11,342 181,527
More than two years but not more than AR LA FAEAS 28 AR
five years 181,467 181,527
385,618 373,732

The bank loans were secured by assets of the Group as
disclosed in Note 36(a) and (b).

Included in bank loans were fixed rate borrowings of
HK$181,467,000 (2007: HK$170,849,000) which carried
interest rates at 5.9% per annum (2007: 5.9% per annum)
and floating-rate borrowings of HK$204,151,000 (2007:
HK$202,883,000) which carried interest rates ranging from
6.14% to 7.74% per annum (2007: 5.427% to 6.93% per

annum).

Tomson Group Limited 35 i M# B A 6]

A E] VR SR AT B AR HE A 2 A
5¥36(2) M (b) 4% o

AT B K B E R R K
181,467,000% Jo(— & & £ 4E:
170,849,000 % 70) > EFIF 15 5.9% (—
FELF - FH25.9%) K7 EF &
B 3K 204,151,000 % o0 ( — T F L 4F ¢
202,883,000 ¥ 70) > AEFIR AT 6.14%
27.74% (—FFLE  FHE5.427%
%6.93%) °
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

31. DEFERRED TAXATION 31. JEHEBLH
Accelerated Exchange
Tax Revaluation  difference Deferred Tax
depreciation of properties  recognition expenses losses Others Total
i B ERER
RERE  WEER MR BERY  BUEER Hity st
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$7000 HK$000 HK$000
T#r Tk T Tk Tk Tk T#r
The Group AEH
Balance as at 1st “RELE-A—H
January, 2007 258 (17,823) (47,970) (25,083) 731 8,953 2,108 (79,084)
(Charge) credit to income TAZRAE B2 (H1)
statement for the year Bl (4,143) (839,333) (1,231) (1,230) (15,581) 7,028 (854,490)
Effect of change in tax rate B ARG Bz B4 (11,882) (31981)  (16,722) 487 5,969 1,405 (52,724)
Exchange adjustments (i3 (1,468) (829) (1,851) 12 659 12 (3,465)
Balance as at 31st REFFLETZR
December, 2007 =t—Hz&R (35,316) (920,113) (44,887) — — 10,553 (989,763)
(Charge) credit to income A BRI B ()
statement for the year bieq ] (2,667) (4,384) — — 14,967 (2,481) 5,435
Exchange adjustments (i3 (2,440) (1,199) (2,790) — — 136 (6,293)
Balance as at 31st RZFFNETZR
December, 2008 =t—HzER (40,423) (925,696) (47,677) — 14,967 8,208 (990,621)

For the purpose of balance sheet presentation, certain deferred
tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the

analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting

MBI EERMENS > & TIEER
HEERABC TN - TR 25
T B ik R 1 AR SE B TE A5 R 0

purposes:
2008 2007
ZRBN\E ZERFEALA
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T T T
Deferred tax assets P SER JE B A 873 2,027
Deferred tax liabilities % AE A TE B A (991,494) (991,790)
(990,621) (989,763)

Annual Report 2008 4F JE4F




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 1 5 e A B e

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

31.

32.

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At the balance sheet date, the Group had unused tax losses of
HK$571.8 million (2007: HK$442.1 million) available for
offset against future profits. In 2008, a deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of HK$59.87 million of such losses
while no deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
the HK$442.1 million in 2007 due to the unpredictability of

future profit streams.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In 2000, Shanghai Jinjiang Tomson Hotel Co., Ltd. (the
“Hotel Company”), a company in which the Group has a
50% interest, entered into a management agreement for 20
years (the “Management Period”) with Inter-Continental
Hotels Corporation (the “Management Company”). The
Management Company agreed to pay not exceeding US$6
million to the Hotel Company for hotel renovation and
system upgrading (the “Renovation Fund”). During the
Management Period, the Management Company will receive
a certain amount of management fee based on income and

profit of the Hotel Company.

The Group is a guarantor to indemnify the Management
Company up to 50% of the Renovation Fund paid, but not
exceeding US$3 million if the management agreement is
terminated by the Hotel Company within the Management
Period. At the balance sheet date, the Renovation Fund paid
by the Management Company amounted to US$6 million
(2007: US$6 million). As the Management Company is
a world-class hotel management group and the operating
results of the Hotel Company has improved, the Directors
are of the opinion that the Hotel Company would be
unlikely to terminate the management agreement within the
Management Period. Accordingly, it would be unlikely for
the Group to suffer any material financial loss as a result of

giving the indemnity.

Tomson Group Limited 35 i M# B A 6]

31.

32.

B WL B (40)

PAF - M= N Y TR (iR S i
| 2 % ) B0 IE s 15 4% 571,800,000 #
JC( = FE LA 1 442,100,000 JC) o
WEENE > KEECHZEEIR
H1 1159,870,000 #5 JT ffE 58 4 %€ B TH &
FE o T HT R SR A T A1 2 VR e DA TE )
Wl A A N A sk R R b AF 2 AR A B
JH 5 15 442,100,000 %5 T it 58 /4 1 %€ Bl
THEE o

gk £ 1

R RERAE > AEBEEA 50% M 4
Z s ) b i ST B O s A PR A F
(Y 5 2> & 1) B B3 )5 & 38 A A
(& A A ) 5T 50— JE B 20 48 (T4
HIAM ) 2 F e HBHEA AR
T T B R K R A T A 1 0 A
AR £ 0 6,000,000 35 T ([ H#H #r &
FA D) o R EAM > R A R
JE 2N ) 2 W B i AR Wi B T A R
)Eﬁ o

AREBHEHAR ZHEHEN > g H
ol A 7 B D O B O S R A% E
I A £ [ 5 o 0 B 2N ) A R B
2 52 50% > {H R H 4 3,000,000 %
JC o FAEEHE H o A F A 22 BE
# %5 6,000,000 3 JG (. F F £ 4F ¢
6,000,000 £ 70) B A E I E LA —1H
1B % A4 G i A BRAE > 1 LV E A )
IREEROENSE > ERRHWIE
N A AR K AT R A A B R A 4% 1 A
fih ke o WO > AR B BN K ORI RE AR
S PR 75 17 5% AT ] B K A S s 4 o
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

33. COMMITMENTS

33. 7RI

At the balance sheet date, the Group had the following NEEEH » ANEEZ EEEAR K HAb
material capital and other commitments: AREMT
2008 2007
BB\ —ERLF
HKS$’000 HK$000
T#x T T
Capital commitments B AN TR
Commirments in relation to expenditure B R 2 S RIS
on properties under development:
Contracted but not provided for EHEEESHT 145,089 868,700
Other commitments I Aib 7R I
Operating lease arrangements A8 45 FH A 2 BE
(i) The Group as lessee G) AEFERRAA
At the balance sheet date, the Group RESEH > AR W]
had outstanding commitments SHAR &) - A4 H
under non-cancellable operating ZH T B AE 0 A R
leases which fall due: ZRYE
— within one year — —HR 6,549 1,893
— in the second to fifth year — B EREHAE(E
inclusive & H M) 15,186 1,779
— over five years — AR E 4,627 4,792
26,362 8,464
Operating lease payments represent rentals and annual fees R A% FH 4 2 T8 TG 45 7S 42 [ it HL 2 T ol
for use of land payable by the Group for certain of its office INEWE R WA 2 4 AR+
properties and land. The significant operating leases for Hofh FHREFR 4 o WA ¥ EEL S
rental of properties are negotiated for an average term of three FHA TP BB = 4F o 4F 41 3
years. The operating leases for annual fees for use of land are i FH W FH 4 2 4% 45 FH & /5 880 T 4R 1)
based on lease terms of the land which are over five years. + AR -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

33. COMMITMENTS (Continued) 33.

(ii) The Group as lessor

The properties held have committed tenants from the

majority of two years up to the maximum of nine years.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted

with tenants for the following future minimum lease

TRIE (41)
(i) ZANEEAESBALA

B R 3 2 R AN 2 KGR AL R
ZRWME > BRE/HIE -

JRESEH > AR A 42 1 SR AL
Pl & #1 > AR ANZRR T 4EH

payments which fall due: WA Z RSN -
2008 2007
e 2\ 2 —EFFLF
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#7x T
— within one year — —4ER 52,595 27,220

— in the second to fifth year inclusive — — 2/ " 4F 25 AF (L5 E

Ewi4F) 41,158 13,523
— over five years — R E 12,729 =
106,482 40,743

34. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 34.

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund
(“MPE”) Scheme established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group,
in funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under
the rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer and the employees
are obliged to make contributions at the specified rate under

the scheme.

The contributions arising from the MPF Scheme charged to
the consolidated income statement represent contributions
paid and payable to the fund by the Group at rates specified

in the rules of the scheme.

Tomson Group Limited 35 i M# B A 6]

S8 P At

AL E R —FFF A A R
VOB < w1 M6 191 ) 2 B — JE B R P 2
(e ) sl - |z
EEEAEHCEEDHFEA > AL
Re W — WL fE e ANEH - IR
AR EAA - B g B A R
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

34. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
(Continued)

35.

The employees in the PRC are members of respective state-

managed defined contribution retirement benefits schemes

operated by the local government. The employer and the

employees are obliged to make contributions at a certain

percentage of the payroll under rules of the schemes. The

only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement

benefit schemes is to make the specified contributions.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had the following transactions

with related parties:

(a)

In 2005, the Company had entered into an agreement
covering the period from Ist September, 2005 upto
31st August, 2008, with Rivera (Holdings) Limited
(“RHL”), a substantial shareholder of the Company.
Pursuant to the agreement, the Company agreed to
provide administrative services and office premises to
RHL and its subsidiaries, in return, RHL is required to
share an attributable portion of the administrative cost
of the Company, for a monthly fee of HK$150,000. The
agreement was superseded by a new agreement dated
on 30th June, 2008 with revised administrative cost
of HK$230,000 per month for the period from 30th
June, 2008 to 31st July, 2011. During the year ended
31st December, 2008, the administrative cost of the
Company shared by RHL amounted to HK$2,283,000
(2007: HK$1,800,000). As at 31st December, 2008 and
31st December, 2007, no outstanding balance was owed

by RHL.

The above transaction constitutes a continuing
connected transaction but is exempted from disclosure
and approval requirements under the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities of main board of the Stock

Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

34, WA )

I I B G 45 IR e I R A 2
Z A LA 2 3 OB IR AR A R # 2
B oo ARyEFHEIBIA - B E KB B A
RALEH & 24 T A AR 4k .
7 4 1 36 7 2R PR A R R ) 2 A ST
A ETBIAEER o

35. B AR Y

FER . REEEEREENEAHUT R

5

(a)

W ZERRAF A ] BLA ]
2 E BN 4 A R A A
(TR 1) #7503 =TT A4 L
A—HE2 L NFNA=+—
HZFEEH  BEREE A0
A [F] & 4R A AT BUIR B &R T
RIOLREDSE=N iy TN R DL R
JH A 48 A 0N A FB 0 A AT B
> # H 150,000% JC ° #% [ &
HFHAMA _FEZNFEANA=T
H 2 # [\ &2 i i 17 B
& #T £ 4 A 230,000 # 7G> 4F
Wh _FEZNESA=ZTHE
T——ELA=+—H1 - BE
CEENEF A=+ —HIEE
B N3 AN R 2 A7 B
48 %E 552,283,000 T (- EE L
4F 11,800,000 6 ) ° A F N
FE+ZA=Z+—HRFELF
+ A =+—H > Il 4 KA}
AN R RAB R A B o

VA b 32 5 W R R BRI 1 3E ) > M
TERS S0 BT W AT EARCGE S Tl
AU (CETRLRID) 22 45 5 S Atk
ZHUE -
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b)

The sale and purchase agreements and the fitting out
agreements dated Ist March, 2008 (the “Agreements”)
were entered into between Shanghai Tomson Pudong
Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., an indirect 70%
owned subsidiary of the Company (“Tomson Pudong
Real Estate”) and Mr. Chuang Hsiao-Chen and Mr.
Hsu Bin (altogether the “Purchasers”). On the date
of the Agreements, Mr. Chuang Hsiao-Chen was an
executive director of the Company and a director of
Tomson Pudong Real Estate, Mr. Hsu Bin being general
manager of Tomson Pudong Real Estate and Shanghai
office of the Group, is a brother and uncle of Madam
Hsu Feng and Mr. Albert Tong respectively. Pursuant
to the Agreements, Tomson Pudong Real Estate agreed
to sell the properties of units No. 142 and 143 of
Tomson Riviera Garden, situated at Lane 2255, Luo
Shan Road, Pudong New Area, Shanghai, the PRC to

the Purchasers.

The terms of the Agreements were on normal
commercial terms. The total purchase price of
RMB17,335,800 (equivalent to approximately
HK$18,990,000) under the transaction was determined
by reference to the open market value as at 1st March,

2008 and was valued by an independent valuer.

The Purchasers were connected persons to the Company
and the transaction constituted a connected transaction

for the Company under the Listing Rules.

Tomson Group Limited 35 i M# B A 6]

35. AN L5 )

(b)

AN FVHEAT 70% 2 [ 12 B & 2 )
3 T R b B AR A R A
A (35 B R i ) B AN &
ok RARM oA (BRI E O ) R
CEENEZH—HFU(EE
EICAE VIR BN AL
FIOLH ) R E A A AT
2T S RS B R L E
HE o MmW L BGEHRE
i 7 R AR 4 [ i R R 2 MR AR
o Mo Al A AR A 2 e K&
B FIRIEAEZ B - RIER® -
Vo BT R 5 b ] A ) O
(vl R R
#2255 7 2 %5 B E A6 [ 142 K
143 G507 o

Wh sk 2 R BT & — i E Ak
He XGHRHEZBIEER/ AN
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18,990,000 # 7T ) J3 48 2 2% 8 3L
A RIS —FENE=H— B
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

35. AN L5 )

(Continued)
(c) Compensation of key management personnel (0 FERMEHEANBZME
The remuneration of Directors during the year was as FENZEHGHMW T
follows:
2008 2007
e 2255 S
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x T#T
Short-term benefits FE AR A 12,931 20,327
Post-employment benefits i i 1% 4% #1 27 24
Share-based payments DATBCHE S22 Ak = 14,835
12,958 35,186

The remuneration of Directors is determined by the
remuneration committee or the Board (or under the
authorisation of the shareholders of the Company as the
case may be) by reference to market terms, individual
responsibilities and performance.

The balances due from associates and a jointly controlled
entity at the balance sheet date are set out in Notes 22 and
23, respectively.

The above transactions were conducted in accordance with
terms mutually agreed between the Group and the respective
related parties.

36. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31st December, 2008, the following assets of the Group
were pledged to banks for facilities granted to the Group:

(a) certain properties under development and related
lease premium for land with carrying value of
HK$249,549,000 (2007: HK$823,029,000) were
pledged to banks to secure long-term bank loans of
HK$181,467,000 (2007: HK$170,849,000); and

HHEFM I hFME B e R#E S
iy (SR A A RUBOR 2 #5248 > 4
TEVLIAE ) 275 T 35 % K F- ~ il
N b 2 B 38 S SR BT 8 5 o

BEAFAEEEMERGEHEH Z B

7N
£ 73 Bl A B 5 22 B2 23 ©

bRl 52 Ty EAR AR 4R [ B4 R A L
B 05 [F] 2 R AOEEAT

36. B Z HiHp

REFFAEF AT A%
I b4 6 7 LA T 4R AT B

BREE R
(a) R T E %5 249,549,000 % JG (- &

F L4 ¢ 823,029,000 0 ) Z &
T8 b ) 3 R A B T A
BRI THRIT L B
181,467,000% 7o (— & & £ 4F :
170,849,000 ¥ 70 ) Z 1= H 4R 17 &
HZWER s K&
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

36. PLEDGE OF ASSETS (Continued)

(b) certain investment properties with carrying value
of HK$572,683,000 (2007: HK$557,600,000) and
property, leasehold land and buildings with carrying
value of HK$65,068,000 (2007: HK$62,208,000)
were pledged to banks to secure bank loans of
HK$204,151,000 (2007: HK$202,884,000).

37. BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY

The balance sheet of the Company as at 31st December, 2008

is as follows:

36. ¥ R Z A a)

(b) B M H £ 572,683,000 % JG(—
x££ 4 :557,600,000% G )
ZHETHREW ¥ XIKREER
65,068,000% JG(— & & L 4F ¢
62,208,000% 7T ) 2 W ¥ HE
b M B T ERAT > MR
204,151,000 Jo (. FEE L 4 :
202,884,000 % 70 ) Z RITE R Z
WR o

37. A2 A B E AR

AARAR_EEZNEFH=+—H
ZHEEAMBKNT

2008 2007
e = JITS ZEELF
Notes HKS$’000 HK$°000
i3 T T T

Assets <923
Interests in subsidiaries T B8 2 )M 4 637,404 637,404
Available-for-sale investments aJ fit B & 315 315
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Noze) FEU B 2 = 3K IE (B %) 3,246,114 3,107,769
Other receivables and prepayments LAt R A B 2k B LA kIR 3,022 1,279
Cash and bank balances 4 B SRAT 45 % 361,281 242,830
Total assets MR 4,248,136 3,989,597

Equity Bt
Share capital R A 27 661,755 658,710
Reserves A 29 2,596,663 2,481,108
3,258,418 3,139,818

Liabilities £
Amounts due to subsidiaries (Note) JREAST i 2 = 3K 3EL (At ) 986,159 835,583
Other payables Ho At A HR K 3,559 14,196
989,718 849,779
Equity and liabilities B 2 B £ 45 4,248,136 3,989,597

Note: The amounts are unsecured, interest fee and repayable on

demand.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY

CONTROLLED ENTITY

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December,

2008

Paid up

&l
aj

38. LRWIE A - B8 &

=g
) Sig:te

REFEZNELZH=+—H
Z B A

Proportion of

Place of issued ordinary issued share capital/
incorporation share capital/ effective interest in registered
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital capital held by the Company  Principal activities
MR CHL ARAFAZ
iR L)) WA, CEATRA,
WS 2 ) 44 1 Y358k kR AR ik 7 A 4 o ER =3
Directly Indirectly
Hi% fil %
% %
Charlesville Limited British Virgin Islands US$100 100 — Investment holding
PO LR 10078 BRTER

Cosmos Success Development Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 100 Investment holding

Limited i 10,0005 BRI
I 5 2 A PR A
Dafeng Property Management PRC US$500,000 — 100 Property management

(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (Note (1)) i 500,000 7T WEER
KU () RA A

(Wit (1)
Farskill Development Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 = 100 Investment holding
THB G REA R i 28T A
Garland Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 100 Investment holding
AR &l 10,0004 . BHTER
Grand Lion Limited Hong Kong HK$2 — 100 Investment holding
A R ] i 28T BEHM
Humphreys Estate (Strawberry Hong Kong HK$200 — 100 Securities trading

Houses) Limited i 200%7C BHEH
Ideal Movement Limited Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 Inactive
BRFARR i 27T e
Island Sky Limited Hong Kong HK$1 — 100 Inactive
SEHA RN i 1T e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 1 5 e A B e

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES, 38. 3¢
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY )3
CONTROLLED ENTITY (Continued)

i’
=
|
B

B a
&
i
>
3|

REFEZNELZH=+—H

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December,

2008 (Continued)

ZEERBA A )

Paid up Proportion of
Place of issued ordinary issued share capital/
incorporation share capital/ effective interest in registered
Name of subsidiary and operation  registered capital capital held by the Company  Principal activities
MR OB ARARHZ
i3y A WA, CEATRA
Y8 2 i) 4 1 R kR AR fialy e N1 s TR
Directly Indirectly
Hi% ke
% %
Jentime Limited Hong Kong HK$2 — 100 Providing property
A R il 2T services to the Group
AR MBS
Kuto Limited Hong Kong HK$2 — 100 Investment holding
T 18 A7 R 2 ) HiE 28T BE LR
Leway Limited Hong Kong HK$2 — 100 Inactive
HEA R F HiE 28T =
Model Year Limited Hong Kong HK$2 — 100 Investment holding
H AR FiE 28T BE R
Multiclassic Investments Inc. British Virgin Islands ~ US$40,200,000 — 100 Investment holding
FMELRE  40,200,000% 7T BATE
Owina Limited Hong Kong HK$2 — 100 Investment holding
Bk RA R HiE 28T BE LR
Shanghai Tomson Huangpu Real PRC US$18,500,000 — 95 Property development
Estate Development Co., Ltd. i 18,500,000 7T U E 3
(Note (2))
LhERHEERE AR
A (Hit (2)
Shanghai Tomson Outer Gaogiao PRC US$15,000,000 — 100 Property development
Development Co., Ld. i 15,000,000 7T YS9

(Note (1))

LiRGEA R EARA R

(HaE (1)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 1 5 e A B e

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY

CONTROLLED ENTITY (Continued)

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December,

2008 (Continued)

Paid up

&y
-
=5
»
&y

R-ZENEL+H=Z+—H
Z BB A )

Proportion of

Place of issued ordinary issued share capital/
incorporation share capital/ effective interest in registered
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital capital held by the Company  Principal activities
MR CHEAT ARARHHZ
i3l WA WA,/ 5k 2172 V4
W 24 vl 44 R ik EE A ETEE A BV 2 PR FEEH
Directly Indirectly
Hi% ke
% %
Shanghai Tomson Plastic Industry PRC US$9,580,000 — 58 Manufacturing of PVC
Co., Ltd. (Note (2)) I 9,580,000 7T pipes
LG EEBERARAR RERE
(Wit (2)
Shanghai Tomson Pudong Real PRC US$46,000,000 — 70 Property development
Estate Development Co., Ltd. Hr[E] 46,000,000F7T L E X3
(Note (2))
i R S B B A PR
Al (7 (2)
Shanghai Tomson Real Estate PRC US$100,000,000 — 100 Property development
Investment & Development Co., I 100,000,000t VE 2T
Ltd. (Note (1))
i R BB R A
(Wit (1)
Toben Limited Hong Kong HK$2 — 100 Investment holding
WA Bk 28T BE LR
Tomson (China) Limited Hong Kong HK$2 — 100 Investment holding
Yk (B R R i 2T BE LR
Tomson Corporation British Virgin Islands US$1 100 — Investment holding
FRIE LTS IES BEER
Tomson Empire View Co. British Virgin Islands  US$65,010,000 — 100 Investment holding
Limited RMELIES  65,010,000%5C e cdie
Vo b A SR A PR A
Tomson Financial Investment Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 100 Investment holding
Limited Eil 10,0004 ¢ B
B B G A RN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 1 5 e A B e

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY

CONTROLLED ENTITY (Continued)

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December,

2008 (Continued)

Place of
incorporation

Name of subsidiary and operation

Paid up

issued ordinary

share capital/

registered capital

capital held by the Company

i’
=
|
B

B a
&
i
>
3|

R-ZENEL+H=Z+—H
Z BB A )

Proportion of
issued share capital/

effective interest in registered

Principal activities

AR ) ARAFHZ
ik WA, CHfiA
W 2 7 £ BB kR AR ok I 7 T 2 P o ER >3
Directly Indirectly
H#% fil #
% %
Tomson Golf (Shanghai) Limited PRC US$40,000,000 — 100 Golf course and club
(Note (1)) H 40,000,000 7T operation, and
LiER#ER(EE) AR property development
(Wit (1) FIAR G R G IR
YLIE SIS
Tomson Group Garland (Shanghai) PRC US$16,000,000 — 100 Property development
Housing & Estate Ltd. Gl 16,000,000 ¢ ES IS
(Note (1))
HEEEEN (L) FEGR
N (it (1)
Tomson Group (Nominees) Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$20 — 100 Providing nominee
e E (RN AR i 20T services to the Group
and investment
holding
RAASEBRGEAEA
s A G I
Tomson Group (Nominees) No. 2 Hong Kong HK$20 — 100 Providing nominee
Limited il 20#7C services to its fellow
GiEEESE (KB ARAH subsidiaries
EIEEN o) b
REAMH
Tomson Haijing Garden (Shanghai PRC US$58,200,000 — 100 Property development
Pudong New Area) Co., Ltd. g 58,200,000E 7T EX T
(Note (1))
YRR (LR E) A
WRAF (W7 (1)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 1 5 e A B e

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,

ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITY (Continued)

Principal subsidiaries as at 31st December,
2008 (Continued)

i’
=
|
B

il
&
i
>
3|

R-ZENEL+H=Z+—H
Z BB A )

Paid up Proportion of
Place of issued ordinary issued share capital/
incorporation share capital/ effective interest in registered
Name of subsidiary and operation registered capital capital held by the Company  Principal activities
MR CHAT ARFARHZ
130/ A BHBA CHibA/
W 2 7 4 LR kit g A il A T A 2 e ER 23
Directly Indirectly
H# ke
% %
Tomson International Hong Kong HK$2 — 100 Securities trading and
Entertainment Company Limited i 2T investment holding
Vo b B PR R A PR A ) i e A MR
Tomson International Trade PRC US$16,800,000 — 100 Property development
Building (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. " 16,800,000 ¢ ESTS
(Note (1))
o b B R (L) A PR
(Wit (1)
Tomson Investment Limited Hong Kong HKS$3 100 — Investment holding
Y B RA A i 3T BE LR
Walsland Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 100 Investment holding
ELEARAH i 10,0001 72 RELM
Yamako Limited Hong Kong HK$2 — 100 Investment holding
FRICH R F i 2T BE LR

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding

at the end of the year, or at any time during the year.

Note: For those subsidiaries established in the PRC, their

classification of establishment is as follows:
(1) wholly foreign owned enterprise

(2)  sino-foreign equity joint venture

2 T B 2 ) AR 4 H AR PR AR ] I ]
MESEAT ] 1o R AFDR 2 (RS 5 T

Wit - o ST W 4 -
SR

(1) VAR h < E1oe

) AN E AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 1 5 e A B e

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEF+ - H=Z+—HILFEF

38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITY (Continued)

Principal associates as at 31st December, 2008

38.

EEHE A A - BE AN
EEBAE
R _ZEZNE+H=+—H
ZEHEGE AN

Paid up Proportion of
issued issued share capital/
Form of Place of ordinary effective interest in
business incorporation  share capital/ registered capital
Name of associate structure and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
MR CHEL ARFARAZ
13l A WikA, CEATRA
BB EBHEBEX RERRE ETEE A (AL Ud Eo i S 2
Directly Indirectly
H# k5
% %
Roma Era Limited Incorporated Hong Kong HK$45,000 — 26.7 Investment holding
EARAR RE MR SE B 45,00037C BE LR
Yankie Limited Incorporated Hong Kong HK$2 — 50 Investment holding
RO AR RE MR SE B 247 BE LR
LT & Partners Inc. Incorporated British Virgin ~ US$9,000,000 — 33 Investment holding
Gl Islands 9,000,000 T 8l
SRR LR
China Boom Enterprises  Incorporated British Virgin ~ US$1,280,000 — 44 Investment holding
Limited Gl Islands 1,280,0003 7% BEE
B EARA SRR LR
Tomson Entertainment Incorporated Taiwan NTD25,000,000 — 45 Investment in film,
Co. Limited G LA 6 25,000,000 3 ¥ television and

HERERHARAT

Tomson Group Limited 35 i M# B A 6]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 1 5 A B e

For the year ended 31st December, 2008 BE-EZENEFT+ - H=Z+—HILFE

38. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITY (Continued)

Principal jointly controlled entity as at 31st

December, 2008

Name of jointly

Place of

incorporation Paid up

TP RE
=
|
B

R gl
&
i
>
-

REFEZNEHZH=+—H

ZEESBEE

Percentage
of effective interest

in registered capital

controlled entity and operation registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
kI BMRZ AR AR Z
rREZAH Y338k ] VETEE A YR B W L ERE 3
Directly Indirectly
Hi% fil $%
% %
Shanghai Jinjiang - PRC US$24,340,000 — 50 Hotel owning and
Tomson Hotel Co.,  equity joint venture Y 24,340,000 7T operation
Led. B AT
IRL2 TRV
IR

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the

particulars of all subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled

entity would be of excessive length and therefore the above

list contains only the particulars of those subsidiaries,

associates and jointly controlled entity which significantly

affect the results or assets of the Group.

EHR ARSI A B LA - BEAE
LagdR BB EERERMRITR > i
b FRAEH ) % 5 A 4 T S A B A
REBZWE LR - BEAFRLGEREZ

B o
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Connected Transactions

i 2L A2 B}

In the ordinary course of business, current accounts have been
maintained between companies in the Group. At the balance sheet
date, the particulars and the aggregate balances of the current
accounts due by the following non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the

Company to the remaining members of the Group were as follows:

TEH W EG BT > AEHSARINKA T
HRERF - NGEAH > THIAANE Z 2 EH
J& A 7 R B AR B T EL R B N R 2 AR AR BRI
ZEIE R A ERAREEINT

Percentage shareholdings

Name of subsidiary attributable to the Group 2008 2007

Y5 22 v 4 A 7 435 1 M A% Bt HE ¥ B CRRNALE —EELAE

HKS$’000 HK$°000

T F 5T

Shanghai Tomson Huangpu Real Estate 95% 2,058 7,118

Development Co., Ltd.

Y B YR e B B A TR AN

Shanghai Tomson Plastic Industry Co., Ltd. 58% 35 32

b R BB AR AR

These current accounts are unsecured, interest-free and have no

fixed repayment terms.

Details of the other connected transactions are set out in Note 35

to these consolidated financial statements.
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEPER

Properties held by the Group and jointly controlled entity 4<% [l e &4/ 450 2 W2
As at 31st December, 2008 j* ~FE/NFE+ _H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

ARG E A 2k

Investment Properties EYE
Approximate
Gross
Term of Floor Area Group’s
Description Lot Number Lease (Sq.m.) Use Interest
HE 4 4 B i L]
L) b B 5 9% ALY HRECEGR) W% ZhEd
The whole of basement level 1, Lot 2-2-1 Medium term 15,655 for Commercial 100%
part of the level 1 and the Lujiazui offices and
whole of level 3 to 5 of the Finance and podium;
commercial podium and 141 Trade Zone 7,594 for
car parking spaces of car parks
Tomson Commercial Building,
710 Dongfang Road
Lujiazui Finance and Trade
Zone, Pudong New Area,
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
rhaE N\ B B 1A I RO FERXEEME S W B3 RS Y i A E 100%
IV % W <55 il 2 5 [ 2-2-1 95 B 15,655
BRI % 710 95 B4 K FITK
Hh RS 1 R A K 55 1 e THHL,
Z B S5 3 & 5 A 7,594 FJ7 K
141 fEAE AL
The whole of level 1 to 3 Lot C3-001 Medium term 36,249 for Commercial 100%
of the commercial podium, Waigaogiao Free offices and
4/F., 8/F. to 12/F., 14/F., Trade Zone podium;
17/F. to 25/F. and part of 4,299 for
7/F. and 12A/F. of the car parks
office tower and 105 car
parking spaces of Tomson
International Trade Building,
No. 1 Jilong Road
Waigaogiao Free Trade
Zone, Pudong New Area,
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
rhE N\ RN B T I SRR Hb i PR [ Hh 1 BYERMEYE  w¥E 100%
A1 s LRBE R e I 1 9% C3-001 5B 36,249 F 75
Vo BB R ) KA v K5 AL
F1E3ERE R 4,299 FJr K

WEA R4~ g 1248
1448 ~ 172 25 i T I
7 LB 12A HE2 ERA

105 f#7H # A
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Schedule of Principal Properties
TEYEER

Properties held by the Group and jointly controlled entity 4<4E [l Jo &5/ @ 3456 2 W2
As at 31st December, 2008 A —EEN4FE+_H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP AR A Z2 W3 )
(Continued)
Investment Properties (Continued) BEEWE 40
Approximate
Gross
Term of Floor Area Group’s
Description Lot Number Lease (Sq.m.) Use Interest
B 24 B4R A4
i b B % ALY HRECER) WS ZHEE
Whole of level 1 to 4 of Lot 1/1, Medium term 11,903 for Commercial 95%
the commercial podium and 244 Street, offices and
136 car parking spaces of Zhangjiabangjiedao, podium;
Tomson Business Centre, Lujiazui Finance 5,054 for
158, 188, 228 Zhangyang and Trade Zone car parks

Road, Lujiazui Finance and
Trade Zone, Pudong New Area,

Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
rhEE AR SEAINE L i R e R W < Pl 2 ) [ SR HTHETYE M 95%
T I [ R W 4 il R ) [ SRR B 11,903
A 158 ~ 188 ~ 228 %% 2441557 1/1 | FIK
B B PSR oK P THHLA
1% 4EATE K 136 RIAHAL 5,054 -5 K
Towers B & C, Tomson Riviera, Lot No.1 Long term 71,386 Residential 100%
28 Huayuanshigiao Road, 17 Jiefang,

Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone, Meiyuan Road
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China

R e N RS G (B YR SRR g ] = 71,386 = 100%
I 2% W 4z il 5 ) [ 17 55
1B A 15 3 28 77 1 55 b Bt
By B — i B C R
Tomson Waigaogiao Industrial Lot 1/1 & 1/4, Medium term 109,359 Industrial 100%
Park, No. 381, 383, 1 Futexi 19 Jiefang,
Road, 27 & 29 Huashen Road, Waigaogiao
358 Futebei Road, Free Trade
Waigaogiao Free Trade Zone, Zone

Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China

FREE A\ R AR b i AT R A A PR TR G 109,359 T 100%
A A PR [ 19 fhr b5
AP B 1 8% 381 M 383 HF 11Xk 1/4
FEH K 27 29 9%
&AL 358 5%
B EANE G T 2E R

Tomson Group Limited 35 i M# B A 6]



Schedule of Principal Properties

TRYER

Properties held by the Group and jointly controlled entity 4<% [l Jo &5/ @ 2456 2 W2

As at 31st December, 2008 A —EEN4FE+_H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

AR FA W

(Continued)
Golf Course W 8 R IR
Approximate
Gross
Term of Floor Area Group’s
Description Lease (Sq.m.) Use Interest
1B &% 48 B i ALK M
wE ik i 8 (7 75K ) Jjifc Z i
Tomson Shanghai Pudong Golf Club Medium Club Houses, An 18-hole 100%
No.1 Long Dong Avenue, driving range golf course
Pudong New Area, and maintenance
Shanghai, room of 12,652
People’s Republic of China with site area of
952,154
Sk INEEI Gk LGS : S ERCTEA PN 100%

b R [ AR KA 1 5%
B EIHHR R KRR

BB REER  BRYG
12,652V K

b5 TR 2

952,154 F 15K
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Schedule of Principal Properties

TRYER

Properties held by the Group and jointly controlled entity 4<4E [l Jo &5/ @ 3456 2 W2

As at 31st December, 2008 A —EEN4FE+_H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

(Continued)

Properties under development

4 LR S

AR FA W

Approximate
Gross Gross Estimated
Site Area Floor Area Group's Stage of Date of
Description Lot Number (Sq.m.) (Sqm.) Use Interest Completion Completion
W4
Aukmk  AMEER A&R st
Gl HERYE (FIK) CFIK) i b4 i} SERRE i
A piece of land between Lot 1/2, 96,700 60,000 Residential 70% Phase II Tomson Early 2010
Jianping Road and Sanba He 15 Jiefang, and Riviera Garden
in Pudong New Area, Huamu Zhen, club house is under
Shanghai, Pudong construction
People’s Republic of China New Area
TEARSHE LB AR 96,700 60,000 fEE &P 70% AMBERELE  —F-%)
EFREZANZF-REE kB AR
Bk
A piece of land near the B-2 and 800,000 —  Golf course 100% Dart of the land Please refer to the
junction of Lou Shan Road B-13-4 relocation work note at the end of
and Long Dong Avenue, Jingiao- completed this Schedule on
Jingiao-Zhangjiang District, Zhangjiang page 154.
Pudong New Area, Shanghai, District
People’s Republic of China
FEARSAE AR 46— RIE 800,000 L 100% il m s WARF 1545
&1 — RILEE B2 R BELf AIIERZIE -
YTV IN G B-13-4 318 B
Z-fith
A piece of land near the B-2 and 630,000 480,000  Residential 70% Dart of the land Dlease refer to the
junction of Lou Shan Road B-13-4 houses relocation work note at the end of
and Long Dong Avenue, Jingiao- completed this Schedule on
Jingiao-Zhangjiang District, Zhangjiang page 154.
Pudong New Area, Shanghai, District
People’s Republic of China
TEARSEHE LR &6 - RIE 680,000 480,000 FEH%E 70% fillimm it WAHF 1545
&1 — RILEHE B2 R HEL( AFIFEAZ I -
ARGk BRI AR B-13-4 18 IR
2t
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Schedule of Principal Properties
TEYEER

Properties held by the Group and jointly controlled entity 4<% [l Jo &5/ @ 2456 2 W2
As at 31st December, 2008 A —EEN4FE+_H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP AREEFEZ2WEw)
(Continued)
Properties held for sale (LRiE7ES
Approximate
Gross
Term of Floor Area Group’s
Description Lot Number Lease (Sq.m.) Use Interest
B &Y B8R AL
WE o B % e HAECEGR) Mg Z Hit:
Part of 6/F. to 7/F., 10/F., Lot 2-2-1 Medium term 3,039 Commercial 100%
11/E., 17/F. of Tomson Lujiazui
Commercial Building Finance and
710 Dongfang Road Trade Zone
Lujiazui Finance and Trade
Zone, Pudong New Area,
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
S EE N e e ) I 5% W <5 H i 3,039 EES 100%
[Pl % W 4 Pl B2 ) o B I B o I
710 95 B 4 K 2-2-1 581 B
GE7M - 108 11
K17 2 w0y
Part of 5/F., 6/F., 15/F., Lot C3-001 Medium term 4,035 Commercial 100%
and 16/F. of Waigaogiao
Tomson International Free Trade
Trade Building Zone
No.1 Jilong Road,
Waigaogiao Free Trade
Zone, Pudong New Area,
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
e NSRBI m A AR IR R 1 4,035 EES 100%
A1 e AR PR L R 2 1 5% C3-001 3 Bt
B BB BR ) KM s
6HE -~ 15 HE K 162 E A
Towers A & D, Tomson Riviera, Lot No.1 Long-term 43,871 Residential 100%
28 Huayuanshigiao Road, 17 Jiefang,
Lujiazui Finance and Trade Zone, Meiyuan Road
Pudong New Area, Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
i NRILME B R AR =31 43,871 i 100%
P 5% W <5 Tl 54 5 [ 17 i
At B 1 A % 28 FF 1 5% Hh Bt

B — i ABR K D B
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Schedule of Principal Properties

TRYER

Properties held by the Group and jointly controlled entity 4<4E [l Jo &5/ @ 3456 2 W2
As at 31st December, 2008 A —EEN4FE+_H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP

ARG F A W a0

(Continued)
Properties held for sale (Continued) W)
Approximate
Gross
Term of Floor Area Group’s
Description Lot Number Lease (Sq.m.) Use Interest
BE&Y B8R AL
i) o B % ALY HARCEGR) Mg Z HE%:
Phases VI, VII & VIII Tomson Lot 23/10 Long-term 1,287 Residential 100%
Golf Villas, 1 Long Dong Tong Le Cun,
Avenue, Pudong New Area, Hua Mu Xiang
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
e NSRBI AR AR 4E A = 1,287 i 100%
HE SRR A 1 985 b s AT < i 22 23/10 f&
BN~ /N
Part of Tomson Riviera Garden, Lot 3, 15 Jiefang, Long-term 3,424 Residential 70%
Lane 2255, Luoshan Road, Huamu Zhen,
Pudong New Area, Pudong New Area
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
e N\ RN E T RO [ A8 A 85 =i 3,424 £ 70%
b VB SRR [ AR 1L 2255 15 5
B e i) e A [ 2 BB A 3k
Part of Block B & F and Lot 47/1, Long-term 470 for Residential 100%
167 car parking spaces of Zhangbang Cun residential;
Tomson Golf Garden, 1 Long Jingiaozhen, 5,268 for
Dong Avenue, (2 of North Pudong New Area car parks
District), Pudong New Area,
Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China
S EE S NERE e e e ) TR BRI i 4 A B =i £ £ 100%
HEAR KA 198 (b 2 1) 5 B SRIEHR 47/1 I 470 F 7K
5 A AL [ B B F AL
Z Y > LA K 167 YA E AL 5,268 715 K
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Schedule of Principal Properties
TEYEER

Properties held by the Group and jointly controlled entity 4<% [l Jo &5/ @ 2456 2 W2

As at 31st December, 2008 A —EEN4FE+_H=+—H

PROPERTIES HELD BY A JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITY

Properties held for investment

TREERGZIIE

Fife ez Pk

Approximate
Gross
Term of Floor Area Group’s
Description Lot Number Lease (Sq.m.) Use Interest
HE 49 2t i AL H
wE A b B A 5% ALY W CEIR) g ZHEd
Hotel Inter-Continental Lot 12 Medium term 52,622 Hotel 50%
Pudong Shanghai Zhangyang
777 Zhangyang Road, Lujiazui Road
Finance and Trade Zone, Commercial
Pudong New Area, Shanghai, District
People’s Republic of China
i N RICATEY L AR B 7 2 A Gk i 52,622 5 50%
T SRR 8 X W < il B 5 [ 12 S Bt
SRAGEE 777 9%
bV SRV N R K s
Note: MizE -

The development plans are still under review, and prior to their
finalisation, the completion time for these property projects cannot be

estimated at this stage.

BEREET B BUEAR S > 1% 55 5B E R AT > Bl
LTS Y SR H 2 S8 U] o
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Five-year Financial Summary

o4 Yo 5 18 22

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT ey L B
Year Ended 31st December
BRET A= —HIRAEE
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
“ERNE ZERHFE ZZTAFE ZRTLE . ZRFNE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T T T Tk T#
(Restated)
(E71)
Gross proceeds from operations LG £5 AR 765,349 496,657 446,627 785,270 2,386,932
Profit before taxation W B i e A 450,664 233,992 184,860 3,646,058 1,105,368
Taxation FiIA (74,658) (28,166) (238,244)  (1,060,842) (484,369)
Profit (Loss) for the year FERF (B 376,006 205,826 (53,384) 2,585,216 620,999
Attributable to: HERG R :
Shareholders of the Company ANTRRE 363,332 203,664 (55,506) 2,588,314 451,986
Minority interests DY £ 12,674 2,162 2,122 (3,098) 169,013
376,006 205,826 (53,384) 2,585,216 620,999
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET Bagm R
At 31st December
Rt+ZH=1—H
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
“EERNE ZERHE CZTAFE CZRTLE . ZZFNE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TiBT Ti#T T TiET T#
(Restated)
(E51)
Fixed assets 7€ G 1,323,738 1,321,261 1,422,770 6,136,451 = 6,498,921
Lease premium for land T &% A 868,039 871,172 908,607 502,057 82,080
Properties under development BEHYIE 505,182 1,004,174 835,374 34,732 —
Intangible assets MG — — — 4,612 —
Goodwill TR 33,288 33,288 33,288 33,288 33,288
Deferred tax assets RAERIIE B = 4,241 5,626 603 2,027 873
Interests in associates and jointly NN R
controlled entities AEbEZER 99,038 123,619 154,602 217,648 234,311
Investments in securities BRRE 123,903 — — — —
Available-for-sale investments A S — 112,409 229,215 151,807 97,860
Other assets HihEE 23,395 4,033 — — —
Pledged deposits A 9,288 9,024 6,958 — —
Net current assets BB EFH 1,727,386 377,856 993,008 1,481,162 2,429,882
4,717,498 3,862,462 4,584,425 8,563,784 9,377,215
Equity attributable to shareholder 7/ S o A 25
of the Company 3,553,746 3,632,957 3,998,421 7,042,304 7,853,606
Minority interests DR £ 245,117 150,812 158,231 166,636 339,306
Total equity AtEs 3,798,863 3,783,769 4,156,652 7,208,940 8,192,912
Convertible bonds 2009 CERES A ES 385,764 = — — —
Long-term bank borrowings RT3 441,895 — 348,086 363,054 192,809
Deferred tax liabilities AR AT 76,105 78,693 79,687 991,790 991,494
Amount due to a jointly controlled entity K& &2 HIH 14,871 = — — —
4,717,498 3,862,462 4,584,425 8,563,784 9,377,215
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